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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Good morning, everybody.  My name
  

 2   is Tom Chenal.  I'm Chairman of the Line Siting
  

 3   Committee.
  

 4            Today is the time set for the hearing on the
  

 5   application of TEP for the Irvington to Kino 138kV
  

 6   transmission line.
  

 7            First, if we may have a roll call, please, of
  

 8   the Committee Members.
  

 9            Member Noland, if we could start with you,
  

10   please.
  

11            MEMBER NOLAND:  Patricia Noland, representing
  

12   the public.
  

13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.
  

14            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Jack Haenichen, representing
  

15   the public.
  

16            MEMBER WOODALL:  Laurie Woodall.  I'm the
  

17   representative of the Chairman of the Arizona Corporation
  

18   Commission.
  

19            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Mary Hamway, representing cities
  

20   and towns.
  

21            MEMBER PALMER:  Jim Palmer, representing
  

22   agriculture.
  

23            MEMBER RIGGINS:  John Riggins, representing the
  

24   Arizona Department of Water Resources.
  

25            MEMBER DRAGO:  Len Drago, representing Arizona
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 1   Department of Environmental Quality.
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you.  Let's
  

 3   just talk for a few minutes about the logistics, and then
  

 4   we'll have the applicant enter their appearance and we'll
  

 5   proceed with the hearing.  And as I indicated to the
  

 6   applicant, after the applicant provides its opening
  

 7   statement, we will take a call to the public because I
  

 8   see there are some people who would like to speak, and so
  

 9   we'll do that now instead of waiting later in the
  

10   proceeding.
  

11            I want to remind the party, the applicant, and
  

12   the people here that we'll take a break in about 90
  

13   minutes for the benefit of -- well, all of us, but
  

14   especially the court reporter.
  

15            I believe, Mr. Derstine, you have provided kind
  

16   of an agenda for, you know, locations for meals and kind
  

17   of a time table.  And you can talk about that in a
  

18   minute.
  

19            I want to admonish the public and, of course,
  

20   the applicant that we, as Members of the Committee,
  

21   cannot discuss the case with you once the hearing --
  

22   well, once the application has been filed, technically,
  

23   but certainly during the hearing.  We can talk to you
  

24   about just about anything but anything having to do with
  

25   the application.  Any information or evidence needs to be
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 1   on the record.  That's why we have a court reporter, and
  

 2   that's why we take evidence.
  

 3            So we don't mean to be impolite if we tell you
  

 4   that we can't talk about anything concerning the hearing,
  

 5   but we just can't.  I want to ask you not to ask any of
  

 6   the Committee Members or make comment about the substance
  

 7   of the application.
  

 8            We would normally, at this point, discuss the
  

 9   request for intervention, but there really have not been
  

10   any.  There was a couple of letters that were forwarded
  

11   that suggested that people wanted to -- entities wanted
  

12   to appear in this, and we will talk more about that
  

13   later.  But they were not represented by counsel, and
  

14   that's just not appropriate or permissible under Arizona
  

15   law.  So we'll take their comments if they wish to make
  

16   any for those groups in a public comments setting, but
  

17   they will not be formal parties to this proceeding.
  

18            So with that -- and I'm sure there will be other
  

19   things that will come up, but would the applicant please
  

20   make their appearance.
  

21            MR. DERSTINE:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman,
  

22   Members of the Committee.  Matt Derstine, Snell & Wilmer,
  

23   on behalf of the applicant, Tucson Electric Power
  

24   Company.  Also present, Megan DeCorse, regulatory counsel
  

25   for Tucson Electric Power Company.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  The hearing has been set to begin
  

 2   now, and we anticipate, based on the prefiling
  

 3   conference, just to remind the Committee Members, prior
  

 4   to the filing of the application, we actually have a -- I
  

 5   meet with the applicant and representatives to kind of
  

 6   discuss, you know, when they would like to have the
  

 7   hearing.  And we polled the Committee to make sure
  

 8   they're available, of course, and then we work out the
  

 9   logistics.  And then, usually, a week prior to today, we
  

10   have a prehearing conference, and we go over legal
  

11   matters and, you know, matters concerning the running of
  

12   this hearing.
  

13            So one of the matters that comes up, of course,
  

14   is the tour.  And, Mr. Derstine, if you could just spend
  

15   a moment talking about what's anticipated for the tour or
  

16   Mr. Beck could do so.  I just know -- basically, it's a
  

17   little out of order because you'll talk about this during
  

18   your case in chief, but just to kind of give the
  

19   Committee a view of when we anticipate having a tour and
  

20   just how long it would take.
  

21            So, Mr. Beck, you're not sworn in yet, but this
  

22   is just for informational purposes.
  

23            MR. BECK:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the
  

24   Committee, we are planning for a tour tomorrow at 9 a.m.
  

25   with the assumption that the Committee will choose to --
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 1   want to go on that tour.  We plan that that tour should
  

 2   last approximately two hours, leaving from the hotel
  

 3   here, going down, seeing all three routes that we're
  

 4   proposing in the project.
  

 5            On the screen up there, we have the three routes
  

 6   shown.  That, generally, is the route description.
  

 7   Coming down on the right side, we would be coming down
  

 8   from the hotel, get to the starting point in the lower
  

 9   right-hand corner.  All three routes have a common
  

10   starting point and a first portion that is common.
  

11            We would head in a westerly direction, loop
  

12   around on the blue line, which is our preferred route,
  

13   reaching the proposed substation at Kino up in the upper
  

14   left quadrant.  And then we would follow both routes B
  

15   and C on the way back.
  

16            We only intend to have one physical stop where
  

17   we exit the bus at this point.  We can get off the bus
  

18   whenever the Committee would prefer, but at least our
  

19   plan at this time is only one stop where we actually
  

20   physically get out to point out the various aspects of
  

21   the project.
  

22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you very much.
  

23            So we anticipate, of course, having the hearing
  

24   today, public comment this evening starting at 5:30.  So
  

25   there will be a short break from when the hearing
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 1   concludes this evening to the public comment.  We know of
  

 2   at least one person speaking at the public comment at
  

 3   5:30.
  

 4            We'll have the tour tomorrow morning at 9 to 11
  

 5   or so.  We'll come back and, depending on what time we
  

 6   get back, we'll continue with the hearing or break for
  

 7   lunch and then come back in the afternoon.  And I think
  

 8   the applicant anticipates finishing its case Tuesday or
  

 9   Wednesday, Wednesday morning.  And then we would go into
  

10   the review of the CEC.  So under all circumstances, we
  

11   anticipate that this will finish by Wednesday, sometime
  

12   Wednesday.
  

13            So does the Committee have any questions before
  

14   we go to the opening statement?
  

15            Member Noland.
  

16            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Just a
  

17   slight question or correction.  The exhibit that was
  

18   filed for the tour says the end of the tour and return to
  

19   the DoubleTree is at 3:30 p.m.
  

20            CHMN. CHENAL:  I told Mr. Derstine during the
  

21   prehearing conference, Member Noland, we read these
  

22   things, and I thought the same thing.  And these little
  

23   details are caught, so that's just one more example of
  

24   that.  So thank you for --
  

25            MEMBER NOLAND:  He told me to say that.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  So, Mr. Derstine,
  

 2   with that, any further questions?
  

 3            MEMBER WOODALL:  May I ask one?
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Oh, sure.  Of course.
  

 5            MEMBER WOODALL:  This doesn't relate precisely
  

 6   to this particular project, but I would be curious to get
  

 7   the perception of the utility and their environmental
  

 8   consultant about whether or not it would be a good idea
  

 9   or a bad idea to have different categories of siting
  

10   projects similar to how the federal government has an
  

11   environmental impact statement, an environmental
  

12   assessment, and then categorical exclusions.
  

13            And I'm not suggesting that.  I'm not proposing
  

14   that.  But it's just my observation has been there's been
  

15   orders of magnitude in terms of complexity, and there
  

16   might be an argument to be made for having a more simple
  

17   process in terms of the studies that need to be done.
  

18   I'm not talking about eliminating the hearings.
  

19            And I would just be curious to get your thoughts
  

20   regarding that.  Not today or this moment.  I just would
  

21   like to know.
  

22            Thank you.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  I'm sure that can be provided.
  

24            And one more thing.  I just want to advise --
  

25   just make sure it's clear on the record.  I forwarded
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 1   last evening Marie Cobb, my able, very able, assistant,
  

 2   two documents, one which we will make exhibits, I
  

 3   believe.  Maybe the applicant could assist with this.
  

 4   But one is a document which includes some language that
  

 5   I'm suggesting we consider for discussion purposes.  And
  

 6   the other document takes the applicant's proposed CEC
  

 7   with a few changes they've made.  But I have asked Marie
  

 8   to compare, and where they -- where the applicant sites
  

 9   to previous CEC conditions, as examples, I asked Marie to
  

10   go back and make redline changes to show if there were --
  

11   if the applicant used the entirety of that condition or
  

12   made changes to that condition and to reflect that on the
  

13   document.  So if there was additional -- if there was
  

14   language that wasn't completely used from a previous
  

15   condition, to include that language back in so we have
  

16   more or less a redline version of it.
  

17            So those are the two documents -- excuse me.
  

18   Normally I shut that off quickly when the Notre Dame
  

19   fight song comes on, but --
  

20            But, anyway, so those two documents, we'll make
  

21   them exhibits, but we thought that would be good to have
  

22   for the Committee to review and have as well as the
  

23   applicants.  So we'll make those exhibits later.
  

24            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Chairman.
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes, Member Woodall.
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 1            MEMBER WOODALL:  I'm just wondering if I could
  

 2   have a printed copy of those before the close of the
  

 3   hearing today so that I could pore over them in my hotel
  

 4   room until the dark hours -- wee hours.  Actually, I will
  

 5   probably look at them for about 45 minutes, but it would
  

 6   be helpful.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.  And Mr. Derstine has been
  

 8   kind enough to indicate that his team will provide those
  

 9   copies.
  

10            So, Mr. Derstine, if you would like to begin an
  

11   opening statement on behalf of the applicant, you may.
  

12            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman and Members of the
  

13   Committee, I want to start with also a correction of the
  

14   record.  I think when I announced my appearance and
  

15   Ms. DeCorse's appearance, I said "also present," which is
  

16   a slight because Ms. DeCorse happens to be my boss and is
  

17   really the co-counsel and is really the straw that stirs
  

18   this drink.  So I want to make that correction for the
  

19   record.
  

20            And, Mr. Chairman, you mentioned that we have a
  

21   prefiling conference and a prehearing conference.  I
  

22   guess I'll just mention up front that at the prehearing
  

23   conference, the Chairman, as we were wrapping up, said, I
  

24   want to remind you of two things.  One, this is business
  

25   casual.  At the last hearing, you showed up in a coat and
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 1   a tie, and I don't want that to happen again.  And I
  

 2   said, Point well taken.
  

 3            And now, looking at the Members of the
  

 4   Committee, I feel like I overshot it a bit with this golf
  

 5   shirt, but that happens to me frequently in life.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  You know, Mr. Derstine, I just
  

 7   have to say, if a lawyer feels uncomfortable, that's a
  

 8   good thing.  But not to worry.  You dressed casual, and
  

 9   you followed exactly what I wanted you to do.
  

10            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, thank you.
  

11            CHMN. CHENAL:  So don't worry.
  

12            MR. DERSTINE:  The second point the Chairman
  

13   made at the prehearing conference was -- and, he said,
  

14   Please shorten your opening.   We'd rather hear from it
  

15   from Mr. Beck and Ms. Darling.
  

16            And I took that to heart as well, and we'll see
  

17   how short this really is.
  

18            The name on the slide and the name of the
  

19   project really kind of tells you much about this project
  

20   and what we're going to present to you.  It's the
  

21   Irvington to Kino 138kV Transmission Line Project.  This
  

22   is a project that's going to string together two
  

23   substations, connect two new substations several miles
  

24   apart in an urban environment.
  

25            You can see the substations here on this map.

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 15

  

 1   They're also noted on the static map on the right.  But
  

 2   what you see there is the Irvington Substation there
  

 3   located close to Irvington Road and Contractors Way.  And
  

 4   then the Kino Substation, which is several miles away --
  

 5   three-plus miles as a direct line at the corner of -- or
  

 6   in the vicinity of Campbell and 36th Street.
  

 7            This photo -- and you might recall this from our
  

 8   last case.  This is the Irvington Campus, and the
  

 9   Irvington Substation is located on the Irvington Campus.
  

10   In our last case, we cited new generation, but we also
  

11   cited several miles of new transmission line to allow us
  

12   to relocate the substation and build a new substation to
  

13   support the RICE generation.
  

14            That new Irvington Substation is the starting
  

15   point for this project in this case, and we're going to
  

16   connect it to the Kino Substation, which has made its way
  

17   through the County's approval process, and we'll be
  

18   connecting it through with a 138kV transmission line
  

19   single circuit.  So this will be the site of the new
  

20   substation.  Again, 36th and Campbell Avenue,
  

21   approximately, so it's -- if I put my glasses on here --
  

22   you can see it on the static map here.  So we're getting
  

23   from Irvington to Kino.
  

24            And how do we do that?  That's the challenge,
  

25   right, building several miles of transmission line in an
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 1   urban environment while minimizing impacts on residents,
  

 2   businesses, schools, hospitals, libraries, all of the
  

 3   things that sit there in this part of town.
  

 4            The need for this project -- why we're building
  

 5   it -- this area of town -- you can see it here.  So this
  

 6   area of town where the Bridges development, which you'll
  

 7   here testimony from both of our witnesses about as well
  

 8   as just the residents and what's -- the growth that's
  

 9   happening here is served by a 46kV system.  That 46kV
  

10   system is essentially at its capacity and won't support
  

11   future growth in the area, which will be happening soon.
  

12            So the new Kino Substation is needed to support
  

13   the current and future growth and tie the area into the
  

14   138kV system.  And, again, the best way and the closest
  

15   substation and jumping-off point will be the Irvington
  

16   Substation to connect up to the new Kino Substation.
  

17            So, to Member Woodall's point, the process and
  

18   the planning process is to start with a study area, this
  

19   larger area, that encompasses the two -- the beginning
  

20   and the end point for this project, and then look at and
  

21   analyze all the different ways in which we can get from A
  

22   to B.
  

23            And so the process that you'll hear from
  

24   Ms. Darling was to take the study area, start with
  

25   segment analysis, a broader macro analysis, bring that
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 1   down to links, bring those links down to different
  

 2   segments, and from that, to bring forward routes.
  

 3            And what came forward through that process --
  

 4   again, that you'll hear a considerable amount of
  

 5   testimony about -- is the three routes that are set forth
  

 6   in our application.  There is a preferred route, a route
  

 7   that TEP likes the best.  That's Alternative A.  And then
  

 8   there is Alternative B and C.
  

 9            So you'll hear extensive testimony about those
  

10   three alternative routes, the impacts of those routes,
  

11   and then the factors and the considerations that TEP took
  

12   into account in deciding which routes to bring forward
  

13   and how to score or grade those routes and how
  

14   Alternative A came to be our preferred route.
  

15            Those considerations included the public and
  

16   stakeholder input from our public engagement program, the
  

17   various constructability considerations, the existing
  

18   right-of-way.  How much is there?  Do we have room to
  

19   build?  Do we have access rights through a franchise
  

20   agreement?  As well as the various environmental impacts,
  

21   visual impacts, biological impacts, land use impacts.
  

22   All that was taken into account in analyzing these
  

23   routes, bringing them forward, and then grading them.
  

24            So this slide shows a little bit of a summary of
  

25   some of the factors that were looked at and how
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 1   Alternative A became TEP's preferred route.  It scored
  

 2   the highest using the scoring methodology, the criteria,
  

 3   essentially ten factors, ultimately that were used once
  

 4   these three routes were brought forward, essentially ten
  

 5   different criteria to score.
  

 6            Subject matter experts were used to give a grade
  

 7   of 1, 2, or 3 to each route in different categories, and
  

 8   then that scoring was then used to grade and bring
  

 9   forward Alternative A as TEP's preferred route.
  

10            I think the important message is that we've
  

11   brought you three routes.  We obviously think
  

12   Alternative A is the best route, and we'll tell you why
  

13   that is, but that all three of these routes we think can
  

14   be built to satisfy the need.  All of them are
  

15   environmentally compatible in terms of the impacts that
  

16   they have.
  

17            They do have differing impacts.  You'll hear
  

18   testimony on Alternative B, certain segments have greater
  

19   visual impacts.  There are some differing biological
  

20   impacts depending on habitat that's located within a
  

21   specific area.  But all three of these we think satisfy
  

22   the requirements of the siting statute and would merit
  

23   your approval.  But, again, Alternative A is our
  

24   preferred route.
  

25            So the case presentation, our two witnesses will
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 1   be Ed Beck and Renee Darling.  We have a Google Earth
  

 2   simulation which you've seen I think in prior cases.
  

 3   We'll do a flyover -- Mr. Beck will narrate that -- and
  

 4   that will give you a simulated overview of the project
  

 5   before we go out on the route tomorrow, assuming you vote
  

 6   to take the tour.  And Mr. Beck will go into greater
  

 7   detail on the tour.  He's prepared to give you more -- a
  

 8   better understanding of the tour on the stops, if you'd
  

 9   like that, if that's helpful.
  

10            The Chairman mentioned you should have a sheet
  

11   that looks like this in front of you, which is an agenda.
  

12   It follows the timing that we discussed through the
  

13   prehearing process with the Chairman, but it also gives
  

14   you the time and the location for breakfast and lunch,
  

15   those kinds of things, and when we propose to take breaks
  

16   during the day, during the hearing day.  So this may give
  

17   you a bit more information in terms of where and when to
  

18   go for breakfast, lunch, and other information when we
  

19   have planned breaks.
  

20            As we have in our past few cases, we have our
  

21   exhibits loaded onto an iPad.  If anyone's not sure how
  

22   to access those, we can connect the iPad here and I can
  

23   show you, but it's essentially as simple as touching the
  

24   red icon when you open the iPad up.  That should give you
  

25   then the various -- the table of contents of the
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 1   documents that are loaded on the iPad.  And if you hit a
  

 2   specific -- say, the application, press the application.
  

 3   And then at the bottom, there's a book symbol or book
  

 4   icon that will give you the table of contents to that
  

 5   document and how you can access a specific exhibit or a
  

 6   portion of the application.  I'm happy to connect it and
  

 7   we can go through it, if that's helpful.
  

 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Derstine, that might actually
  

 9   be helpful.  Let's just try it once and run through it
  

10   quickly.
  

11            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  So Ranie's clicked on.  We
  

12   have a document that was open, so let's go back and
  

13   start -- why don't you go back to the beginning
  

14   page again, Ranie.  Thank you.
  

15            So the red -- is that the Acrobat icon?  Is that
  

16   what that is?  Acrobat Reader?  That gives you -- and
  

17   then here, this is the table of the various documents
  

18   that we have loaded onto the iPad itself, and then you
  

19   can click on any one of those.
  

20            In this case, it's the application.  And the
  

21   bookmark icon or the book icon, clicking that will give
  

22   you access to whatever specific portion of the
  

23   application in this instance.
  

24            So we've filed an original set of exhibits, and
  

25   we have since filed a supplemental set of exhibits.  Both
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 1   of those --
  

 2            Can you show those again, Ranie?
  

 3            So we have the application and then our
  

 4   testimony and exhibits that were part of our original
  

 5   June 6th filing.  And then on June 12th, we did a filing
  

 6   of a few supplemental exhibits.  Those included a
  

 7   supplement which is the additional affidavit of
  

 8   publication, which was not available at the time of the
  

 9   original filing, as well as a letter from Commission
  

10   Staff relating to this project.
  

11            What else do we have there?  We have the letters
  

12   from the University of Arizona and this MAS Real Estate,
  

13   which are the -- relate to the Bridges project.  And what
  

14   you'll hear in the testimony from Mr. Beck, both of those
  

15   organizations support this project.  And those are the
  

16   four items, TEP-8A, which is the supplemental affidavit
  

17   of publication notice of hearing, and then the two items
  

18   related to the Bridges project in support of this
  

19   project, the transmission line project, and the ACC Staff
  

20   letter.  So we'll have testimony on those items and the
  

21   supplemental filing.
  

22            CHMN. CHENAL:  So, again, once we access the
  

23   list of documents and we push -- put that back up.
  

24            For example, if you touch on the application,
  

25   the first document there -- it's the button on the lower
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 1   bottom right.  Tapping that will access all of the
  

 2   subparts of the table of contents, exhibits to that
  

 3   document and such?
  

 4            MR. DERSTINE:  That's correct.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.
  

 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Now for -- go back, Ranie, to the
  

 7   original document index.
  

 8            For the testimony and exhibits -- click on that.
  

 9   Why don't you go to, say, Mr. Beck's hearing
  

10   presentation.  So once you've accessed in the same manner
  

11   the hearing presentations, you can follow along with the
  

12   PowerPoints that the witnesses will be using today.
  

13   Point of note, Mr. Beck has prepared a supplement to that
  

14   with some minor changes to his original PowerPoint
  

15   presentation.  That is loaded on there.
  

16            Why don't you direct them to that.
  

17            So when we get to Mr. Beck's testimony, it will
  

18   be his -- is it referenced as revised or supplemental,
  

19   Ranie?
  

20            MS. ROZENBERG:  Revised.
  

21            MR. DERSTINE:  Revised, okay.  So we'll direct
  

22   you to that when we get there.
  

23            But that's -- does that help you in terms of
  

24   finding what you need to find?
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes, sir.  I think that was
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 1   worthwhile.
  

 2            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  And then, as always, we
  

 3   have the placemat, which is the static map that we will
  

 4   continue to screen on the right showing the three
  

 5   alternative routes as well as some additional
  

 6   information.
  

 7            The box on the left shows the costs of the
  

 8   project, so you can understand what the costs of each of
  

 9   these three alternatives are as well as the length and
  

10   the number of structures.  And there's a drawing there of
  

11   a sample of the structure, the single-circuit tangent
  

12   pole that will be used to construct the project.
  

13            And then, on the other side, we have a couple of
  

14   the -- selected some of the key observation points for
  

15   the alternatives.  The application contains many more
  

16   visual simulations of what this project would look like
  

17   along each of the three proposed routes, A, B, and C, but
  

18   the placemat here shows you a sampling of those visual
  

19   simulations, and Ms. Darling will go through the visual
  

20   impacts of the three routes in her testimony.
  

21            So at the end of our case, we will request a
  

22   Certificate of Environmental Compatibility.  We're going
  

23   to ask you to grant us a CEC for Alternative A, TEP's
  

24   preferred route, based on the evidence that we present to
  

25   you and why we firmly believe that that is the best route
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 1   to satisfy the need of getting from Irvington to Kino.
  

 2   Alternative A is 4.6 miles in length.  Again, the CEC
  

 3   will be for a single-circuit 138kV line on
  

 4   self-weathering structures.
  

 5            You've heard our cases in the past.  You
  

 6   understand there's -- that people from the County, that
  

 7   they believe that many of our projects should be built on
  

 8   galvanized steel.  That issue will come up again in this
  

 9   case.  You'll hear testimony about that.
  

10            And the corridor that we'll ask for is a
  

11   300-foot corridor, 150 feet from the centerline on either
  

12   side.  And we will get in depth into the -- we'll
  

13   circulate before the end of today a paper copy of the
  

14   proposed CEC as well as from what the Chairman circulated
  

15   to the Members before today so that you can see all
  

16   the -- what we had proposed as well as various conditions
  

17   that I think the Chairman would like the Committee to at
  

18   least consider and talk about.  We'll have that a paper
  

19   version, and then we'll load it on your iPads overnight.
  

20            So we'll be ready to go with that when we get to
  

21   the point of deliberating a CEC and whether or not you'll
  

22   grant us a CEC.  We hope you do, and we're ready to
  

23   proceed with our case whenever you are.
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you very much,
  

25   Mr. Derstine.
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 1            Before we begin, I just want to make sure if
  

 2   there are -- answer any questions that the Committee
  

 3   Members may have.
  

 4            (No response.)
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Seeing none, let's take public
  

 6   comment now as a courtesy to the people that have come
  

 7   today to express their views.
  

 8            If I would ask you to go to the microphone to
  

 9   your right and just state your name, and I would ask you
  

10   to sign in as well in the sign-in sheet.  And that's
  

11   important for reasons that later, if we have to get in
  

12   touch with you for contact information.
  

13            So the first one, sir, if you want to just come
  

14   up and give your name, we're interested to hear what you
  

15   have to say about this project.
  

16            MR. GREGORY:  Thank you.  Good morning, Chairman
  

17   and Committee.  My name's Andy Gregory with MAS Real
  

18   Estate Services.
  

19            I believe a letter of mine would be one of your
  

20   exhibits.  But to expound on that a little bit, we would
  

21   actually prefer Route B ourselves.  We're with the
  

22   Bridges Property Owners Association.  There's
  

23   approximately 340 acres there between Kino and Park, I-10
  

24   and 36 --
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Gregory, if you would be so
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 1   kind -- I gave Mr. Derstine my laser pointer.  If you
  

 2   would be kind enough just to outline --
  

 3            MR. GREGORY:  Sure.
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  For the Committee, that would be
  

 5   very helpful.  Thank you.
  

 6            MR. GREGORY:  I'll try from this distance.  So
  

 7   right here, you basically have a commercial development
  

 8   that has Costco and Walmart there and have various shops,
  

 9   McDonald's.  So that's owned by Retail West and
  

10   Eastbourne Investments.  They're basically out of Canada.
  

11            And then you have -- U of A has some land here,
  

12   and then you have KB Homes and I believe Lennar, and I
  

13   believe they're in escrow with Bourn Properties to do
  

14   some development there.  So that's about 340 acres.
  

15            We would love to see the substation go in.  We
  

16   would prefer Route B ourselves.
  

17            There is a real need, TEP's mentioning, to meet
  

18   the current needs.  As a property manager, commercial
  

19   properties have fire suppression systems and monitoring.
  

20   So if something goes wrong, there's a service that would
  

21   call somebody like myself.  I get those calls.  And then
  

22   I have to decide, why did we have a power outage?  What
  

23   do I need to do?  Those systems usually have a very small
  

24   battery -- you know, it's about the size of a motorcycle
  

25   battery -- to back those up.
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 1            And what I'm finding, typically, about every
  

 2   month, so it can't be somebody hitting an electrical
  

 3   pole.  It's something to do with the power supply to the
  

 4   Bridges.  And what happens, usually on a Sunday night
  

 5   about 10, it seems to be about once a month, so 12 times
  

 6   the last 12 months, we'll have a power outage, which,
  

 7   obviously, doesn't make a McDonald's happy that's open at
  

 8   10:00 at night or whenever this seems to happens.
  

 9            And that makes the battery drain, which makes me
  

10   have to go out and do something, which makes us have to
  

11   spend money, which, you know, we just don't seem to --
  

12   And I'm not an electrician.  I don't know TEP's -- how
  

13   much kilowatts they're bringing to us or anything of that
  

14   nature.
  

15            But, generally, we seem to have some outages in
  

16   that area, probably more than should be happening.  So
  

17   there is not just a need for future development of what
  

18   Bourn wants to do and the U of A.  I think it's really
  

19   just what we currently have there on site.  We have a
  

20   Smoothie King that goes out of power, and then that
  

21   messes up their equipment.
  

22            So I just wanted to say that we do support it.
  

23   We'd prefer the option B route.  And if anybody else has
  

24   any questions, I'd be happy to answer those.
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
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 1            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Gregory, why
  

 2   do you prefer the B route?  Can you give me a couple of
  

 3   specifics?
  

 4            MR. GREGORY:  We feel it's the shortest, which
  

 5   would probably be the least expensive, which would
  

 6   probably impact the least the environment.  And, quite
  

 7   honestly, we like the way that comes into our piece of
  

 8   land versus how it happens on Park Avenue.
  

 9            MEMBER NOLAND:  And also, Mr. Gregory, is Mike
  

10   Stilb still the owner of MAS?
  

11            MR. GREGORY:  Yes.  I work for Mike.
  

12            MEMBER NOLAND:  Just for disclosure sake, Mike
  

13   and I were previously partners in several businesses, and
  

14   we are still partners in one business but not in that
  

15   location.
  

16            MR. GREGORY:  Very good.
  

17            Any questions I could answer for anybody?
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, just a follow-up question
  

19   to Member Noland's.  Why -- you said the reason you like
  

20   Alternative B is it's less expensive, but that's really
  

21   the concern of TEP.
  

22            MR. GREGORY:  Uh-huh.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  And the way it enters your
  

24   property, you like it better.  What is it about the way
  

25   it enters that you like it better versus Alternative A?

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 29

  

 1            MR. GREGORY:  Well, honestly, I'd have to look
  

 2   at the -- exactly how it lays on the land, but I believe
  

 3   it's on the east side of Campbell that the taking would
  

 4   happen versus Park Avenue.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Could you use the pointer.
  

 6            MR. GREGORY:  To the best of my knowledge, so it
  

 7   comes up on the east side of what's called Kino or
  

 8   Campbell.  And what you don't see over here is that the
  

 9   Bridges also owns this -- I'm sorry.  I can't hold this
  

10   straight.
  

11            So right here is about a 40-acre parcel that
  

12   isn't clear, so it doesn't show as well as that.  So,
  

13   actually, the Bridges is actually this piece.  There's a
  

14   little piece that we -- that the people I represent own
  

15   on the east side of Campbell, and there's a small parcel
  

16   that's on the west side of Park.  So, essentially, this
  

17   is coming across our land, to the best of my knowledge,
  

18   this Park Avenue one.
  

19            So as a representative of the investors, we
  

20   would prefer to see it come up Kino versus essentially
  

21   coming across our property, best of my knowledge.
  

22            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you very much.
  

23            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I just have a question.
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Hamway.
  

25            MEMBER HAMWAY:  What was the reason that TEP
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 1   gave you for these outages?  Once a month at 10:00 on a
  

 2   Sunday, that seems like a weird time to kind of go -- to
  

 3   have an outage.  So what was their response?
  

 4            MR. GREGORY:  You know, I've actually not gotten
  

 5   ahold of TEP on that issue because it seems to be -- like
  

 6   for a 20-minute issue, I've never really contacted them
  

 7   for follow-up.  I just know that my tenants aren't real
  

 8   happy with it.
  

 9            I personally am not real happy with getting
  

10   calls at 10:00 or 11:00 at night from central alarm
  

11   saying -- what happens is the fire suppression system
  

12   basically doesn't -- you have to go back out and reset
  

13   it.  So once you have a power outage, it's not going to
  

14   see a fire an hour later.  So, literally, somebody like
  

15   myself has to get in a car and drive out there.
  

16            But to answer your question, I haven't
  

17   approached TEP on that.  I just -- as the property
  

18   manager, I know that seems to be happening out there.
  

19            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Haenichen.
  

21            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Chairman, I think it
  

22   would be a good thing if TEP could address this at some
  

23   point in these proceedings.
  

24            MR. GREGORY:  Should be able to be tracked.  I
  

25   know it's the McDonald's in particular.  It's also what
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 1   we call shops A, which is at -- I'd have to give you the
  

 2   address.  I think it's 15142.  It's one of our shops over
  

 3   there where Smoothie King is always seems to be going out
  

 4   in particular.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  I Think that's
  

 6   relevant information for TEP to include that in its
  

 7   presentation.  I mean, it goes to the need, so it's
  

 8   relevant.
  

 9            Anything further, Mr. Gregory?
  

10            MR. GREGORY:  Thank you very much.
  

11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Don't walk off with that laser
  

12   pointer.
  

13            MR. GREGORY:  Thanks.
  

14            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  I'm really short, so I was
  

15   wondering if maybe one of the tech guys could take this
  

16   off for me please, kindly.
  

17            Thank you, sir.  I think I barely reach 5 feet.
  

18   Thank you.  Okay.  Thank you.
  

19            Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.  My name is
  

20   Deonissa Cañez-Anderson, and I'm a local attorney.
  

21            Before I begin, I want to start off and give you
  

22   a little history about the area of Las Vistas Sunland
  

23   Gardens.
  

24            It's 1965, middle of the Civil Rights.  There
  

25   were three sisters who purchased homes.  Where did these
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 1   sisters purchase their homes?  Well, they purchased the
  

 2   homes on a street called Cameron Vista, which is right on
  

 3   the corner of 36th and Campbell.
  

 4            Let's see if I can get this technology to work
  

 5   for me.  And 36th and Campbell is roughly around there.
  

 6   And Cameron is -- it goes east and west, and it's roughly
  

 7   around there.
  

 8            So we're in 1965.  We've got three sisters.
  

 9   First-time homeowners in their family.  They've got
  

10   families, and they're God-fearing women trying to raise
  

11   their children.  I'm the product of one of those women,
  

12   and my mom actually still lives in that area.  I actually
  

13   have another aunt who still lives in that area.  And the
  

14   other aunt moved to California, but she left me her house
  

15   to manage.  So I've got some tenants in that area as
  

16   well.
  

17            Unfortunately, I had no notice, although there
  

18   is evidence that the location of the substation was sent
  

19   out to several residents.  But I personally did not have
  

20   notice of the substation on Kino.  That train has passed
  

21   by.  We know that.
  

22            So here we are trying to figure out what the
  

23   transmission lines are.  So, bottom line, on behalf of
  

24   myself, on behalf of my family -- and I also work for
  

25   Legal Aid, so I've got several clients who actually live
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 1   in this area as well.
  

 2            We endorse alternative Route A, which goes from
  

 3   Kino up through Park.
  

 4            Now, I know there's going to be people that are
  

 5   going to say, Why?  It's going through my area.  Why?
  

 6   Why?  Why?  Well, you know what?  There's a school right
  

 7   here.  There's little kids that live right here, and
  

 8   they've got a substation when they look out their window.
  

 9   What about them?  We've got residents.  There's
  

10   construction all down on Campbell.  What about them?
  

11            So what do we do?  Well, I think I learned this
  

12   in constitutional law back in the day when I was in
  

13   school.  We kind of have to balance things.  That's what
  

14   we have to do.  And not everybody's going to get what
  

15   they want, but we've got to balance it.
  

16            So we got stuck with the substation.  It is what
  

17   it is.  Move on in life.  And so I'm asking, Members of
  

18   this Committee, each and every one of you has the power
  

19   to make changes at anytime.  I'm asking each and every
  

20   one of you, Mr. Chairman, to endorse TEP's alternative
  

21   Route A from Irvington through Benson Highway up on Park
  

22   and to connect across on Kino to 36th Street.
  

23            Thank you.
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you very much.
  

25            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  Are there any questions?
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 1            (No response.)
  

 2            MR. DAWSON:  I'm John Dawson, and I'm
  

 3   representing the community of Sierra Court, 1551 East
  

 4   Benson Highway.  We're a community that has been
  

 5   established since 1946.  We have upwards in the
  

 6   neighborhood of 100 individuals living in our community.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Dawson, could you use the
  

 8   laser pointer and show us where your community is, sir.
  

 9            MR. DAWSON:  We're located about right there.
  

10            No, excuse me, right there.
  

11            And we have put a lot of effort into our
  

12   community to improve the aesthetics.  We also have a
  

13   component of winter visitors, and so we are also in the
  

14   hospitality business.  There are also other businesses
  

15   along Benson Highway that are also in the hospitality
  

16   business.  So aesthetics is very important to us.  Safety
  

17   is very important to us.  But if you look at the totality
  

18   of the preferred plan, all along here, you have
  

19   businesses on both sides and residences on this side.
  

20            When you cross over into I-10, right through
  

21   here through the Bridges, this here right in here on both
  

22   sides of Park Avenue and on the south side of 36th Street
  

23   is planned 1,084 residential units.  Has anybody asked
  

24   all those potential buyers what they think about having
  

25   150-foot pylons in their front yard?
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 1            We're also concerned about safety because along
  

 2   I-10 corridor, you have no businesses.  You have no
  

 3   residences.  You have businesses here and businesses
  

 4   here.  And along this one section of Campbell is the only
  

 5   place where we have residences, which is right here.  And
  

 6   on this side here, you have a few businesses which are
  

 7   nonhospitality businesses.  This road here carries very
  

 8   little traffic; whereas, Benson Highway, Irvington, and
  

 9   Park Avenue carry a great deal of traffic, and we're
  

10   concerned about having these large structures as
  

11   vehicular obstacles in terms of traffic safety.
  

12            So we have our own personal interests in terms
  

13   of keeping our air clear of large objects.  We've gone to
  

14   a lot of expense to put all of our utilities underground
  

15   so we clear the air of our community, and we also have
  

16   worked with TEP in taking down lines that are no longer
  

17   used.  So we're very concerned about the desirability of
  

18   our location as a business and as a place to live.
  

19            But we also don't understand why the B option is
  

20   not the preferable.  It is the shortest.  It requires the
  

21   least amount of pylons.  It involves less traffic flow.
  

22   It also impacts the fewest number of businesses and
  

23   residences.  And, as I said, right here and on the other
  

24   side, the gentleman mentioned, there's a 40-acre parcel
  

25   here that's all planned for residents.  That's impacting
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 1   a lot of homes, well over 1,000.
  

 2            So our preference is to go with Route B.  Thank
  

 3   you.
  

 4            And, by the way, we have a letter that we would
  

 5   like to leave with the Committee, if we may.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Sure, Mr. Dawson.  Thank you very
  

 7   much.
  

 8            Would you provide that letter to me, please.
  

 9            MR. DAWSON:  Who would like to receive that?
  

10   You?  Okay.
  

11            MEMBER HAMWAY:  You're going to hand it out?
  

12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  We'll make it an exhibit,
  

13   and I will make this a Chairman's exhibit.
  

14            Mr. Dawson, there might be a question or two for
  

15   you, so if you don't mind taking the microphone.
  

16            MR. DAWSON:  Sure.
  

17            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Chairman, I wanted to ask
  

18   the applicant, in particular Mr. Beck, what measures the
  

19   applicant is taking to ensure vehicular safety should the
  

20   structures be siting paralleling the highway there.  And
  

21   you don't need to do it now.  Just do it in the orderly
  

22   course of your testimony.
  

23            Thank you.
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Are there any questions
  

25   for Mr. Dawson?
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 1            (No response.)
  

 2            MR. DAWSON:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Is there anyone else
  

 4   that would like to speak during the public comment phase?
  

 5            (No response.)
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  It doesn't look like it.
  

 7            So, with that, Mr. Derstine, if you would like
  

 8   to begin with your first witness or your panel.  I don't
  

 9   know how you plan to do it today.
  

10            Please proceed.
  

11            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, one of the things
  

12   we had contemplated was the Google Earth flyover and
  

13   having Mr. Beck do that.  If you would prefer, we can do
  

14   that now or at a different point in today or do it
  

15   tomorrow morning before we start the tour.  What would be
  

16   your pleasure on that?
  

17            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think we can do it now.
  

18            Let's swear the witnesses, then.  And will they
  

19   be testifying as a panel?
  

20            MR. DERSTINE:  They will.  So we would have to
  

21   swear both Mr. Beck and Ms. Darling in as our witness
  

22   panel.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  I'll ask the witnesses if you
  

24   prefer an oath or an affirmation.
  

25            MR. BECK:  Oath.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Oath?  Okay.
  

 2            (Edmond Beck and Renee Darling were duly sworn
  

 3   by the Chairman.)
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thanks very much.
  

 5            So, Mr. Beck, if it's your preference at this
  

 6   point to present the Google flyover, I think we'd be
  

 7   interested in seeing that.
  

 8            MR. BECK:  Yes.
  

 9            Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, we have
  

10   prepared a Google flyover for the project which
  

11   effectively uses the Google aerial maps and the Google
  

12   product along with models of the lines and structures
  

13   that we've inserted into the Google platform.
  

14            We then set a flight path over the proposed
  

15   routes with the given height and angle to the line.  And
  

16   it would be very similar to flying over the line once
  

17   it's completed based on the aerial photos and then the
  

18   model that is inserted into the Google Earth.
  

19            So, as Mr. Derstine mentioned, this project is
  

20   taking off from the corner of the Irvington Campus that
  

21   was the subject of our last siting case -- and I'm trying
  

22   to get a laser that will work.
  

23            So, again, down here in the bottom of this
  

24   picture is the Irvington Campus.  We sited transmission
  

25   to go from the proposed new Irvington Substation to the
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 1   corner of that campus as the takeoff point for this line.
  

 2            So we would be leaving from the corner of
  

 3   Irvington Road and Contractors Way.  We'll head west in a
  

 4   westerly direction, and initially we'll follow alignment
  

 5   for Alternative A.
  

 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Beck, just for clarifying and
  

 7   understanding, do all three routes follow this initial
  

 8   leg that you're going to fly over?
  

 9            MR. BECK:  The initial portion of this alignment
  

10   is from the corner of the Irvington Campus, which is
  

11   shown on the map on the screen now.  And all three routes
  

12   are common over to Palo Verde, which is the north-south
  

13   road that Irvington crosses.  So you see the corner of
  

14   Alvernon and Irvington, the railroad tracks there.  We're
  

15   heading in a westerly direction.  The proposed alignment
  

16   is along the southern side of Irvington Road until we
  

17   get -- and we come up to Palo Verde Road.
  

18            At this point, the three alternatives disperse,
  

19   and you'll see that in the future portions of this
  

20   presentation.
  

21            We're going to continue west along the
  

22   Alternative A.
  

23            MR. DERSTINE:  And, Mr. Beck, the blue lines,
  

24   what do those designate?
  

25            MR. BECK:  So the blue lines on the other side
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 1   represent a 300-foot corridor, which is what we're
  

 2   proposing in this CEC, centered on the alignment of the
  

 3   line on the south side of the road.
  

 4            As we get to Benson Highway right there, we turn
  

 5   the corner, and we're on the southern side of Benson
  

 6   Highway.  We'll pass the sheriff's office here.  We're
  

 7   coming up to Park Avenue here, which is where we turn
  

 8   again.  So we go from Benson Highway onto Park.
  

 9            Our alignment would be along the east side of
  

10   Park Avenue.  You'll see we have a crossing of Interstate
  

11   10 at this location.  That is where we'll have much
  

12   taller structures just to make -- maintain clearance over
  

13   the freeway.  But our planned improvements to the
  

14   Interstate that we're working with ADOT on to be sure we
  

15   accommodate their future development.
  

16            There's a McDonald's right there, as was
  

17   mentioned.  This is the Bridges property here.  We come
  

18   up to 36th.  We turn east on 36th.  We stay on the south
  

19   side of the road.  Due to sewer line issues here, we will
  

20   probably be on the private land.
  

21            We get to Kino Parkway, and that is the location
  

22   of the Kino Substation.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

24            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Beck, can you
  

25   go back to where you cross the freeway, and now you're on
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 1   the east side; correct?
  

 2            MR. BECK:  Correct.
  

 3            MEMBER NOLAND:  Are you still using a -- are you
  

 4   using a 300-foot or 150-foot from centerline?
  

 5            MR. BECK:  We are showing and requesting at this
  

 6   point a 300-foot wide corridor centered on the line, the
  

 7   centerline of the proposed alignment.
  

 8            MEMBER NOLAND:  Okay.  Say that again.
  

 9            MR. BECK:  So we will be proposing a
  

10   300-foot-wide corridor centered on the line centerline,
  

11   which is just to the east side of Park Avenue.
  

12            MEMBER NOLAND:  And are there current structures
  

13   there?
  

14            MR. BECK:  As far as TEP structures, no.
  

15            MEMBER NOLAND:  Is there any utility easement
  

16   along that line there?
  

17            MR. BECK:  The sewer is out in the street.  So
  

18   as we go north of the freeway, we will have to go on the
  

19   private property to avoid the sewers that are right along
  

20   the edge of the right-of-way.
  

21            Again, this is a new restaurant.  I'm not sure
  

22   what the name of that one is.  This is a McDonald's.  I
  

23   believe this is a fitness center.  And there's some other
  

24   businesses here.
  

25            When I get into my testimony, I'll talk about
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 1   the Bridges and some of the development that is there,
  

 2   and this is a portion of that complex.
  

 3            The other piece of property on the west side of
  

 4   the road -- you'll see later in my presentation a much
  

 5   better picture, but that is also proposed residential in
  

 6   the future on this side of Park Avenue.
  

 7            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Beck, I guess my only
  

 8   concern is the amount of right-of-way that you're showing
  

 9   there and the impact on existing businesses and on
  

10   planned development.
  

11            MR. BECK:  Just to clarify, we're requesting a
  

12   300-foot corridor to give us flexibility for locating
  

13   structures.  Our intent for any private property we would
  

14   acquire, we would have a 100-foot right-of-way.
  

15            So for purposes of the CEC, we would have
  

16   approval to put structures within that 300-foot corridor,
  

17   but in the end we would only have a 100-foot right-of-way
  

18   on private land.  Where we are actually within road
  

19   right-of-way under our franchise agreement, there would
  

20   be no additional right-of-way.
  

21            MEMBER NOLAND:  Okay.  Well, when you get into
  

22   that, I'll have some more questions because you know my
  

23   concerns about clouding title, and I don't like that when
  

24   there's planned development and/or existing businesses,
  

25   people that have already filed their development plans
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 1   for areas and then have this come in and impact.  And
  

 2   residential areas.
  

 3            MR. BECK:  Yes, we'll address that.
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

 5            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck, do you ever record
  

 6   the CECs in land records?
  

 7            MR. BECK:  Mr. Chairman, Member Woodall, no, we
  

 8   do not record the CECs themselves.
  

 9            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  Okay.  And with respect
  

10   to the improvements that ADOT is doing, could you
  

11   elaborate a little bit more on what those improvements
  

12   are?  Do you know?
  

13            MR. BECK:  Yeah.  In general, they're going to
  

14   rebuild I-10 from -- basically, I believe, I-19 east and
  

15   widen it to match up widthwise or lanewise to the rest of
  

16   the freeway going north.
  

17            In addition, they will be doing major
  

18   interchange improvements.  One, specifically, is at
  

19   Irvington and Alvernon Way.  It has a large impact
  

20   specifically to TEP because it's going to be limited
  

21   access.  It will be Irvington going over the Interstate
  

22   or vice versa, I'm not sure which, but no access to
  

23   Irvington Road from that on- and off-ramp, which makes
  

24   physical access to the TEP Campus a little more
  

25   problematic because we'll have to come in at other
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 1   directions.
  

 2            But that's just a little bit of what they're
  

 3   doing.  But the two pieces are to widen I-10, ultimately,
  

 4   and then also major interchange improvements.  And the
  

 5   interchange improvements are being done in series as they
  

 6   go along.
  

 7            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you, Mr. Beck.
  

 8            MR. BECK:  Okay.  Let's move on to
  

 9   Alternative B.
  

10            Similarly, Irvington Campus again, same starting
  

11   point up at this corner.  You'll see this will be all
  

12   commercial development.  This is a Window Depot factory.
  

13   There's a restaurant right there, hotel there, gas
  

14   station on this corner.
  

15            Now, we're going on B, which is crossing over
  

16   and going along the Interstate.  And you'll see we vary
  

17   locationwise.  We swing out here due to some conflicts
  

18   that we identified, and then we come back in towards the
  

19   freeway.  We can't be on the ADOT right-of-way, so we're
  

20   just outside of ADOT right-of-way on private land.
  

21   You'll see that's a big cost driver and the reason
  

22   Alternative B is so expensive.
  

23            This is the Pima County Kino Park Complex.  They
  

24   have baseball fields, soccer fields up to the north of
  

25   the Interstate.  They have a much larger plan to expand
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 1   to the south of the Interstate and put more fields on
  

 2   this side.  You'll hear -- or there's some information
  

 3   within our application regarding letters from Pima County
  

 4   talking about this complex that they plan to build on the
  

 5   south side of the Interstate.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

 7            MEMBER WOODALL:  Can you tell me about the spans
  

 8   that we're looking at here.  Are they typical?  Remind
  

 9   me, if you would be so kind.
  

10            MR. BECK:  Typically, our 138kV spans are 750
  

11   feet.  We do span up to the range of 1,000 occasionally,
  

12   but typically around the 750-foot as long as we have no
  

13   underbuild on the structures.
  

14            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you.
  

15            MR. BECK:  Here is where we would deviate from
  

16   the Interstate, and, again, here is a big interchange
  

17   that we need to get around.  So we're coming starting to
  

18   the north just as we approach this off-ramp for Kino.
  

19   And you'll see that the alignment in this section right
  

20   over here, there's multiple poles and angles in here just
  

21   to get it around the curve.
  

22            Cross Ajo Way here, staying on the east side,
  

23   north side of that alignment.  And then we head north
  

24   along Campbell Avenue.  And our intent would be along the
  

25   western edge of Campbell Avenue.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  And, Mr. Beck, the structures
  

 2   that we see in the flyover, are those -- is that the line
  

 3   that -- assuming it's in place?
  

 4            MR. BECK:  Yes.  The structures you're seeing
  

 5   are representations of the line after it has been built.
  

 6   Now, keep in mind, this is a model.  We don't have final
  

 7   designs, so the poles may shift slightly.
  

 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Right.
  

 9            MR. BECK:  But, generically, these are a very
  

10   good representation of what that line would look like.
  

11            CHMN. CHENAL:  The point being that right now,
  

12   there's no such structures?
  

13            MR. BECK:  Correct.
  

14            Continuing north along Campbell until we get to
  

15   36th, where we would then turn west.  It would be along
  

16   the southern edge of 36th and coming into the substation.
  

17            The one point I will make here, I'll touch on it
  

18   further in testimony, but we have had indication --
  

19   because this property is Pima County, we've had
  

20   indication from Pima County wherever they are granting us
  

21   a right-of-way for a line that they likely will require
  

22   galvanized structures.  And so we'll talk a little bit
  

23   more about that in the testimony.  But this is one
  

24   location where that occurs, is on this County property,
  

25   so the structure of this corner, potentially, as well as
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 1   the structure dropping into the substation.
  

 2            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Beck, there was some public
  

 3   comment about a school that was located in this area.
  

 4   Were you able to crawl over there and see that or is that
  

 5   not in the captured?  Okay.  Got it.
  

 6            MR. BECK:  I assume you were told no.
  

 7            Basically, the school is generally up in this
  

 8   vicinity here, and we will have other pictures that we
  

 9   can talk about the school.
  

10            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

11            MR. BECK:  Again, same starting point.  This is
  

12   for Alternative C.  And you'll see along the way, the
  

13   businesses have not changed.
  

14            So we'll head westerly along the south side till
  

15   we get to Palo Verde Road, at which point we would turn
  

16   north, and we would follow the eastern side of Palo
  

17   Verde.  This used to be a hotel.  It's now a homeless
  

18   facility.  Some industrial complexes.  This is the Tanque
  

19   Verde swap meet location.
  

20            We reach Ajo Way.  We would cross Ajo and then
  

21   follow along the north side of Ajo in a westerly
  

22   direction.  Again, along the roadway.
  

23            Kino Hospital.  Some more ball fields here.
  

24   This is the Kino Sports Complex right through here.  A
  

25   little baseball stadium here.
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 1            And as we get to the Kino off-ramp here, we join
  

 2   in with Alternative B.  So, basically, from this point,
  

 3   it will be the same alignment.
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall has a question.
  

 5            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck, I noticed going back
  

 6   from whence we started here, it appears that the lines
  

 7   are near vegetation of some sort.  Is that shrubbery?  Is
  

 8   that bushes that we're talking about?
  

 9            MR. BECK:  Generally, it's shrubbery or bushes.
  

10   I'm not aware that there are any major trees that would
  

11   need to be cut.
  

12            MEMBER WOODALL:  So would those go as a part of
  

13   this project, likely, or not?
  

14            MR. BECK:  If it's just shrubbery, no.  We have
  

15   a plants requirement, and the shrubs and so on would not
  

16   reach into that zone.
  

17            MEMBER WOODALL:  So you would not be blading it?
  

18            MR. BECK:  No.  We would not clear-cut the
  

19   right-of-way.
  

20            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

21            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

22            MEMBER NOLAND:  This is also Pima County
  

23   property on the right, the courthouse, juvenile
  

24   courthouse.  Are they requiring any particular type of
  

25   structure there?  Is that a galvanized requirement?
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 1            MR. BECK:  This indicates we should be in the
  

 2   road right-of-way, so we would not be procuring specific
  

 3   Pima County right-of-way.  So that would only apply where
  

 4   we are obtaining private right-of-way.
  

 5            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

 6            MR. BECK:  So we go --
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Excuse me, Mr. Beck.
  

 8   Member Haenichen has a question.
  

 9            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Beck, could you comment
  

10   briefly on galvanized structures versus -- is it Cor-Ten?
  

11   Do you have preference, or what are the differences?
  

12            MR. BECK:  We will get into that some in our
  

13   testimony, but, basically, the Cor-Ten structures are TEP
  

14   standard because it has the lowest life cycle cost of any
  

15   of the finishes.
  

16            Long-term painted structures for us have not
  

17   worked well.  We've used various paint schemes, paint
  

18   methodologies, and some prime examples are along the
  

19   Rillito River in Tucson, where we have poles that were
  

20   placed probably in the '80s, and they are almost white
  

21   today.  They started out what we called Mohave Sage,
  

22   which was a dark green color.  It blended very, very well
  

23   in our -- in the city of Tucson with the mountains as a
  

24   backdrop.  But now that they're white, they stand out
  

25   like a sore thumb.
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 1            And the cost of going in and painting are very
  

 2   extreme.  And with some of the new environmental
  

 3   regulations, if you want to repaint a pole, because
  

 4   there's an assumption that there may be lead in the
  

 5   paint, it takes special schemes to capture all of the
  

 6   paint as you either sand it or scrape it off.  And then
  

 7   there's a cost to the painting itself as well as the
  

 8   outage times.
  

 9            With Cor-Ten, there is no painting, no real
  

10   maintenance to do with those structures.
  

11            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Why do you have to paint the
  

12   galvanized?  Can't you just leave it that way?
  

13            MR. BECK:  So if -- a galvanized structure, that
  

14   is another option.  If you use straight galvanized
  

15   structures, they stand out also like a sore thumb when
  

16   the sun hits them in the evening or in the morning,
  

17   depending on which direction you're coming from, and they
  

18   will shine.
  

19            So, to overcome that, you typically have to dull
  

20   the galvanizing, which is another process that adds
  

21   another cost.  It can be done.  We've done a lot of
  

22   dulling on lattice structures on our system over the
  

23   years, and we've found with those structures after a
  

24   number of years that the dulling process tends to also
  

25   cause those structures to chalk or get white on the
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 1   finish.
  

 2            So if you go with straight galvanized, it's very
  

 3   protective, lasts well, but can be real shiny unless you
  

 4   dull it.  Once you dull it, you're actually taking away a
  

 5   little bit of the galvanized protection.
  

 6            Also, with galvanized poles, because there are
  

 7   limits to the dunk tanks that they use to dip the
  

 8   structures in, you have to use multisection poles, which
  

 9   adds another cost to the actual construction of the
  

10   project.
  

11            So there's a lot of complexities with using
  

12   various finishes, and we found that the life cycle cost
  

13   for Cor-Ten is the cheapest over all.
  

14            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Good explanation.  Thank you.
  

15            CHMN. CHENAL:  And just to follow up, what is --
  

16   how does Cor-Ten differ from galvanized?
  

17            MR. BECK:  So Cor-Ten is also called weathering
  

18   steel.  I believe Cor-Ten was originally a manufacturer's
  

19   name.  But it's steel that will rust, but it rusts to a
  

20   point where it has a patina and will not rust any
  

21   further.  And you've got to be careful on a weathering
  

22   steel structure to also make sure you don't have pockets
  

23   that can hold water because if it holds water, it can
  

24   continue to rust.  But as long as they're designed
  

25   correctly, they reach that patina stage, and they don't
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 1   rust any further, and so it's a very good protection for
  

 2   the steel.
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.  I think we're still
  

 4   on the flyover for Route C.
  

 5            MR. BECK:  That is correct.  So we're at
  

 6   basically the Kino exit off of the Interstate, and we're
  

 7   going to be turning and heading to the north again along
  

 8   Campbell.  Still on the east side of -- or west side of
  

 9   Campbell Avenue.
  

10            Patrick, can you -- great.
  

11            So the school that's been discussed is right
  

12   over here, 36th Street just east of Campbell Avenue.  And
  

13   so that's the one school that has been raised in some of
  

14   our materials.
  

15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

16            MEMBER WOODALL:  So the area that is adjacent to
  

17   the routing of the proposed lines, how near would the
  

18   lines be to the building first?
  

19            MR. BECK:  Well, as you can see, we're showing a
  

20   300-foot-wide corridor, so, basically, 150-foot from the
  

21   structure to this line, and the building is beyond that.
  

22   So maybe 175 feet, possibly.
  

23            MEMBER WOODALL:  And can you tell me what this
  

24   area to the left of the school -- I mean, still on the
  

25   school property, but it looks like it's got -- I don't
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 1   know.  Are those trees or something?
  

 2            MR. BECK:  I believe that's the parking area.
  

 3   So I think you're seeing asphalt with some trees.
  

 4            MEMBER WOODALL:  So that's not an area that the
  

 5   children would be using for recreation?
  

 6            MR. BECK:  I don't believe so.
  

 7            MEMBER WOODALL:  Unless they were running around
  

 8   smashing windows in the parking lot, which I hope not.
  

 9            MR. BECK:  That could be a possibility, I guess,
  

10   yes.
  

11            MEMBER WOODALL:  So, basically, most of the
  

12   recreation -- passive recreation and active recreation is
  

13   going to be on the other side of the school is our best
  

14   guess?
  

15            MR. BECK:  I would believe so.  I don't know if
  

16   there's a courtyard in the center, but also there's a
  

17   field just to the east of their buildings.
  

18            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

20            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Beck, what's
  

21   on the left-hand side of Campbell there where you're
  

22   showing that 150 feet of right-of-way?
  

23            MR. BECK:  So we'll have some better maps a
  

24   little bit later, but this was a proposed park for Pima
  

25   County.
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 1            So when Kino Boulevard was developed, up on the
  

 2   map on the left, you can see this triangular piece of
  

 3   land.  It's between Campbell and Kino.  So when Campbell
  

 4   was developed to be the major route in from the airport,
  

 5   major wide road, Campbell was kind of left as-is.  And
  

 6   that sliver of land in there that's owned by Pima County,
  

 7   it was intended to be a park.  Pima County went out with
  

 8   a bond issue and the bond issue failed, so they never had
  

 9   funding to actually develop the park.
  

10            So one advantage that was identified with our
  

11   substation is the fact that when we buy the land, which
  

12   would be where that orange circle is, but it's the
  

13   western edge of that triangular piece, that the funding
  

14   from the sale of the land would then be used to actually
  

15   fund the development of the park.
  

16            And there's some exhibits or some diagrams in
  

17   our application that show what that proposed park would
  

18   look like.  There's some entryway signage that will be
  

19   put in as part of the combination of park and substation
  

20   that will match up to something that Bridges has done on
  

21   the other corner as a showcase for their project.
  

22            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Beck, so let me see if I'm
  

23   correct on this.  On this route, from, like, Country
  

24   Club, going west along Ajo, basically, both sides of Ajo
  

25   Way are Pima County parks or structures, Kino Hospital,
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 1   juvenile court center; is that correct?
  

 2            MR. BECK:  That is correct.
  

 3            MEMBER NOLAND:  And then, as you make the curve
  

 4   over to Campbell, again, businesses, there's residential
  

 5   on the full east side.  But on the west side, it's either
  

 6   vacant or business; is that correct?
  

 7            MR. BECK:  That is correct.
  

 8            MEMBER NOLAND:  Palo Verde, from Irvington to
  

 9   Ajo Way, is basically all business; is that correct?
  

10            MR. BECK:  It is primarily business with the
  

11   recent change to the old Holidome Complex, which is
  

12   now -- it's part of -- I believe it's the Gospel Rescue
  

13   Mission, actually.
  

14            MEMBER NOLAND:  But it's still -- it was a
  

15   commercial business --
  

16            MR. BECK:  Correct.
  

17            MEMBER NOLAND:  -- and its large parking lot and
  

18   then the building set back a ways.
  

19            Then the only other areas on Ajo Way between
  

20   Palo Verde and Country Club, I believe that was mostly
  

21   all business; is that correct?  There's an auto wrecking
  

22   yard and ...
  

23            MR. BECK:  Yes, that is correct.  It's primarily
  

24   business.  There's a fast food restaurant, auto wrecking,
  

25   I believe a truck parts location, and a few other
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 1   businesses.
  

 2            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.  I just wanted to be
  

 3   sure I was oriented correctly.
  

 4            MR. BECK:  You are.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland is already
  

 6   light-years ahead of me in many ways, but on this topic
  

 7   especially.
  

 8            But isn't there a zoning map somewhere in the
  

 9   materials that -- not little section by section, but kind
  

10   of an overall zoning map that has superimposed over it
  

11   the three routes that might assist me and other Members?
  

12            MR. BECK:  We'll take a look and, if not, we'll
  

13   have one prepared.
  

14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I think that would be
  

15   helpful.  Thanks.
  

16            MR. BECK:  So just finishing out Alternative C,
  

17   just turn the corner, again sitting on the south side of
  

18   36th and dropping to the substation.
  

19            Now, to my earlier point, this is the corner of
  

20   that triangular strip.  This is where the substation
  

21   would be located.  We had some signage proposed out here
  

22   to kind of identify the park.  And then, as I said,
  

23   there's information in our application regarding the
  

24   trails and areas that will be developed as a park around
  

25   the substation.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

 2            MEMBER WOODALL:  While we're looking at it, what
  

 3   type of fencing would you anticipate is going around the
  

 4   substation since it's adjacent to a park?
  

 5            MR. BECK:  This one, we're proposing a block
  

 6   wall, 10-foot-high block wall.
  

 7            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you.
  

 8            MR. BECK:  So that completes the Google portion
  

 9   of the presentation.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Hamway.
  

11            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I tend not to second-guess
  

12   routes because I know a lot of analysis goes into it, but
  

13   I was just curious why, on Route A, you didn't pop over
  

14   to Ajo Way and continue all on the same route?  Did you
  

15   just want to offer two -- see what I'm saying?
  

16            So you start at Irvington, and then you go up
  

17   Benson Highway, and then you go around to Park and over.
  

18   Why didn't you just cut over on Ajo Way and hit up with
  

19   the other two proposed routes?
  

20            MR. BECK:  To a large degree, that was brought
  

21   about from -- we had some issues along Ajo Way but also
  

22   the residential and, in particular, the school concerns.
  

23   And then also where we would cross I-10 near Kino became
  

24   problematic because of the future interchange there.
  

25            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.  Thank you.
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Other than -- so I think that
  

 2   completes Mr. Beck's -- the flyover simulation of the
  

 3   three routes.  And I don't know if there's -- he had a --
  

 4   I think we have a more detailed explanation, now that
  

 5   you've seen the flyover, of the proposed route tour if
  

 6   that would give you a better context of what we have
  

 7   planned for tomorrow morning and what we will show you.
  

 8   And if we're missing some things and you want to add to
  

 9   it, then maybe this would be the time to do that.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Sure.  That would be helpful.
  

11            MR. BECK:  Patrick, do you have that?
  

12            MR. DUBBERLY:  Yeah, one second.
  

13            MR. BECK:  Okay.
  

14            So we're going to put up on the screen again the
  

15   route tour map.  And at least initially, our thought is
  

16   that we would leave here at 9 a.m. on a bus.  Leave the
  

17   DoubleTree Hotel right out front.  Head south on Alvernon
  

18   Way.  We would come down to the starting point for the
  

19   projects, which is right there on Irvington Road and
  

20   Alvernon.  We would turn west, and there's an opportunity
  

21   to pull out just to the west of Alvernon, where we would
  

22   have the bus pull over and allow you to see what
  

23   Irvington looks like in that vicinity, what the routes
  

24   would look like.
  

25            We would proceed from there to Stop 2, which,
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 1   again, because of -- it's a kind of congested parking
  

 2   spot.  This is a Shell gas station.  We didn't intend to
  

 3   actually exit the bus but be able to point out from the
  

 4   bus where the three routes diverge from that point.
  

 5            Then we would continue on to the west to what we
  

 6   have called Stop 3.  There's a QT station that has a lot
  

 7   of room, and we would pull into there.  And the thought
  

 8   there was to actually exit the bus and get a better view
  

 9   of that alignment.  And looking across, you'll also be
  

10   able to see part of Route -- well, you really won't see
  

11   Route B because it's on the opposite side of the
  

12   Interstate, which is raised in there.
  

13            But then we would continue on to Stop 4, which
  

14   is just after we turn the corner at Benson Highway,
  

15   turning onto Park Avenue.  From there, you can see the
  

16   freeway crossing.  It's directly north of that, see what
  

17   that strip of land looks like.
  

18            Then we would continue on and pull into the
  

19   Bridges complex at Stop No. 5.  We didn't identify
  

20   getting off the bus.  That one would be an easy one to
  

21   get off the bus if anybody had the interest to do that.
  

22   You can see that alignment along 36th Street and as well
  

23   as see across to where the substation would be.  And then
  

24   we would continue on and stop in front of the substation
  

25   so you get a feel for what that looks like.
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 1            Then we intended to come back along Alternative
  

 2   C, back across -- we'll come down Campbell for a ways,
  

 3   and then, because of a one-way issue, we'll come out and
  

 4   around, get onto Ajo, Ajo to Palo Verde.  Come down to
  

 5   Palo Verde, which you're back to the point where all
  

 6   three routes diverge.
  

 7            Then we'll come back onto the Interstate.
  

 8   You'll be able to see the alignment adjacent to the
  

 9   Interstate.  We would take the Kino exit, and then we'd
  

10   come back on Kino up back to the hotel.
  

11            MR. DERSTINE:  And how long will the route tour
  

12   take?  We won't be ending at 5:00 in the afternoon.
  

13            MR. BECK:  No.  We projected maybe, at the most,
  

14   two hours.
  

15            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
  

16            MR. BECK:  And we tried to limit the number of
  

17   actual exits off of the bus due to the heat.  It's going
  

18   to be very warm tomorrow.
  

19            MR. DERSTINE:  So with that, my watch says it's
  

20   maybe 20 minutes before noon.  We can proceed with
  

21   Mr. Beck's direct.  Ms. DeCorse is going to direct
  

22   Mr. Beck's testimony.  Or we can break early for lunch.
  

23   Whatever Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee would
  

24   like to do.
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let me just see what the
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 1   Committee's preference would be.
  

 2            Member Woodall.
  

 3            MEMBER WOODALL:  Is there a logical breaking
  

 4   point in Mr. Beck's testimony after 20 minutes?
  

 5            MS. DeCORSE:  We could get through the initial
  

 6   exhibits.
  

 7            MEMBER WOODALL:  I can't hear you, ma'am.
  

 8            MS. DeCORSE:  We could get through the initial
  

 9   exhibits and the intro.
  

10            MEMBER WOODALL:  I personally would just as soon
  

11   go forward.
  

12            MS. DeCORSE:  All right.
  

13            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  I think that's the
  

14   will of the Committee.  So let's proceed, Ms. DeCorse.
  

15            MS. DeCORSE:  All right.
  

16
  

17                         EDMOND BECK,
  

18   called as a witness on behalf of the applicant, having
  

19   been previously first duly sworn by the Chairman to speak
  

20   the truth and nothing but the truth, was examined and
  

21   testified as follows:
  

22
  

23                     DIRECT EXAMINATION
  

24   BY MS. DeCORSE:
  

25       Q.   Good morning.
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 1       A.   Good morning.
  

 2       Q.   Mr. Beck, you're sworn in, but for clarity, can
  

 3   you please state your name again for the record.
  

 4       A.   Edmond Beck.
  

 5       Q.   And you are the Director of Transmission
  

 6   Development for Tucson Electric Power?
  

 7       A.   That is correct.
  

 8       Q.   Have you previously testified before the Arizona
  

 9   Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting Committee?
  

10       A.   Yes, I have in, I believe, 12 cases, starting
  

11   with case 111.  There was most recently case 177.
  

12       Q.   And can you please state -- can you please
  

13   explain your role in the project.
  

14       A.   I supervised the preparation of the application
  

15   for the project as well as the attached exhibits and
  

16   participated in the open meetings and public process
  

17   throughout our public process.
  

18       Q.   And before we start your testimony, I would like
  

19   to discuss the exhibits that you prepared for today's
  

20   hearing.
  

21            So I'm going to start with the application.
  

22   Mr. Beck, let me direct your attention to TEP-1.  Do you
  

23   have that in front of you?
  

24       A.   Yes, I do.
  

25       Q.   And could you please identify that document for
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 1   the record.
  

 2       A.   That is TEP's application for a Certificate of
  

 3   Environmental Compatibility that was filed on April 25th
  

 4   of this year.
  

 5       Q.   Was the application prepared by you or under
  

 6   your direction and supervision?
  

 7       A.   Yes.  I wrote certain portions of it, reviewed
  

 8   portions of it, and oversaw the preparation of the
  

 9   application itself.
  

10       Q.   And, to your knowledge, is the application
  

11   organized and prepared consistent with the Arizona
  

12   Corporation Commission's rules for applications before
  

13   the Line Siting Committee?
  

14       A.   Yes, it is.
  

15       Q.   And to the best of your knowledge, does that
  

16   application contain all of the exhibits that those rules
  

17   require?
  

18       A.   Yes, it does.
  

19       Q.   And, Mr. Beck, you prepared written direct
  

20   testimony and a set of slides for your hearing
  

21   presentation to assist you today.  Let's talk about
  

22   those.  So if you have TEP-3 -- do you have that exhibit
  

23   in front of you?
  

24       A.   Yes, I do.
  

25       Q.   And have you had a chance to review TEP-3, your
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 1   written direct testimony?
  

 2       A.   Yes, I have.
  

 3       Q.   And do you have any corrections or changes you
  

 4   would like to make to TEP-3 today?
  

 5       A.   I do not.
  

 6       Q.   So if I asked you the questions in TEP-3 today,
  

 7   would your answers be the same?
  

 8       A.   Yes, they would.
  

 9       Q.   And is your testimony true and correct to the
  

10   best of your knowledge, information, and belief?
  

11       A.   Yes, it is.
  

12       Q.   Moving on to your hearing presentation, TEP-4.
  

13   Have you had a chance to review that?
  

14       A.   Yes, I have.
  

15       Q.   And after reviewing it, do you have any changes
  

16   or corrections you would like to make to TEP-4 today?
  

17       A.   Yes.  I produced a supplemental PowerPoint which
  

18   makes some minor modifications to the slides that were in
  

19   my TEP-4.  There's some modified language on slides 1, 2,
  

20   8, 9, and 10.  We removed the original slide 12, and we
  

21   added additional slides 8 and 9 regarding alternative
  

22   routes as well as 11 and 13 discussing EMF.
  

23       Q.   So, to clarify, you are submitting a
  

24   supplemental exhibit marked TEP-4A, Supplemental Beck
  

25   Hearing Presentation.
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 1            MS. DeCORSE:  And I know that on the PowerPoint,
  

 2   we have it in your iPads as "Revised," but for the
  

 3   record, we're going to call it TEP-4A, Supplemental Beck
  

 4   Hearing Presentation.
  

 5       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  And so that reflects and
  

 6   incorporates the changes you just described?
  

 7       A.   Yes, it does.
  

 8       Q.   Were those changes as described in the
  

 9   information presented in TEP-4 and TEP-4A true and
  

10   correct to the best of your knowledge, information, and
  

11   belief?
  

12       A.   Yes, it is.
  

13       Q.   So, to clarify, TEP-4A is going to be the
  

14   hearing PowerPoint presentation that you're going to use
  

15   today?
  

16       A.   That is correct.
  

17       Q.   All right.  So they can follow along on their
  

18   iPads, but it's going to be called "Revised."
  

19       A.   Yes.
  

20       Q.   Now, Mr. Beck, we have loaded TEP-4A, your
  

21   updated PowerPoint presentation, on the computer, and
  

22   it's shown on the projector now.
  

23            Would you please describe for the Committee your
  

24   educational background and experience.
  

25       A.   Yes.  I have been employed by TEP as the
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 1   director of transmission development for 39 years.  I
  

 2   have a Bachelor of Science degree as well as an MBA from
  

 3   the University of Arizona.
  

 4       Q.   And would you please explain your role and
  

 5   responsibilities in the project.
  

 6       A.   I oversee siting projects for both TEP and UNS
  

 7   Electric, for both subtransmission as well as
  

 8   transmission facilities.  I supervised the preparation of
  

 9   the application and the exhibits in discussion today.
  

10       Q.   And if you could please describe the project and
  

11   what TEP's requesting in its application.
  

12       A.   TEP is requesting approval for a CEC for a
  

13   transmission line of 138kV to extend from our Irvington
  

14   plant site to the Kino Substation site to allow us to
  

15   serve existing load, more reliably as well as to expand
  

16   capacity for future needs.
  

17       Q.   Could you please give the Committee an overview
  

18   of your prefiled direct testimony and the topics you will
  

19   be covering today.
  

20       A.   Yes.
  

21            So I will be speaking about the purpose and need
  

22   for the Kino Substation and transmission line, the
  

23   proposed routes, the associated costs, the technical
  

24   parameters of the line that we are proposing, the notice
  

25   and signage that we dealt with in our process, as well as
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 1   the proposed CEC.
  

 2       Q.   And you mentioned the notice and signage.  I'd
  

 3   like to go back to that for a minute.
  

 4            If you could look at Exhibits TEP-8 and TEP-8A,
  

 5   identified as the Proof of Publication and Posting of
  

 6   Notice of Hearing.  Do you have those in front of you?
  

 7       A.   Yes, I do.
  

 8       Q.   And can you walk us through the Posting of
  

 9   Notice of Hearing and identify TEP-8, and if you could
  

10   speak to the sign locations and posting identified.
  

11       A.   So we placed into the Arizona Daily Star notice
  

12   regarding the project.  It was -- it was published in the
  

13   paper on May 5th and May 27th of 2018.  And it meets the
  

14   requirements for a CEC process.
  

15            For signage, we placed signs at ten locations,
  

16   as discussed in the prefiling conference.  Shown on the
  

17   map on the screen, you'll see ten squares.  Those are the
  

18   ten locations of signs.
  

19            We had an issue with the one sign along the
  

20   Interstate right there, sign No. 10.  We intended to post
  

21   a sign that was visible -- very visible and along the
  

22   freeway.  But because of ADOT restrictions, we had to be
  

23   so far off of the lane of travel that it pushed the sign
  

24   down the slope of the Interstate.  So instead, we
  

25   actually placed a sign along Country Club Boulevard right
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 1   at the Interstate crossing, placed it so that it was at
  

 2   least in the direction of the freeway travel and,
  

 3   hopefully, may have been able to be seen from the
  

 4   freeway.
  

 5            The signs were 3-by-4-foot signs, and there's a
  

 6   picture of one right there.  And on the left-hand side is
  

 7   an actual -- the language that is in that sign -- or on
  

 8   the signs.
  

 9       Q.   And, to clarify, you mentioned two publishings
  

10   in the newspaper, Arizona Daily Star.  Can you explain
  

11   the difference between TEP-8 and TEP-8A.
  

12       A.   So TEP-8 was filed with the application because
  

13   we had had the publication by that date.
  

14            The second publication in the newspaper was post
  

15   filing of the application, so we supplemented with an 8A
  

16   to give the affidavit.
  

17       Q.   And just by saying "the application," did you
  

18   mean our testimony and exhibits filed?
  

19       A.   That is correct.  That's what I intended to say.
  

20       Q.   And are you aware that the company also provided
  

21   notice of the hearing via certified mail to the areas of
  

22   affected jurisdiction?
  

23       A.   Yes, we did.  We sent on May 14th with a
  

24   read/receipt notice to the City of Tucson, Pima County,
  

25   and the City of South Tucson.

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 69

  

 1       Q.   And, to confirm, the City of Tucson, Pima
  

 2   County, and City of South Tucson were the only areas of
  

 3   affected jurisdiction the company identified?
  

 4       A.   That's correct.
  

 5       Q.   Do you have in front of you an exhibit marked
  

 6   TEP-7, Proof of Service to Affected Jurisdictions?
  

 7       A.   Yes, I do.
  

 8       Q.   And does that exhibit reflect the notice to the
  

 9   three areas of affected jurisdiction you mentioned a
  

10   minute ago?
  

11       A.   Yes, it does.
  

12       Q.   So I'm going to move on to the project itself.
  

13            So to provide background and context, can you
  

14   please give us an overview of TEP's system and current
  

15   constraints.
  

16       A.   Yes.  TEP, as most of the Committee I think has
  

17   seen before, relies on a lot of remote generation to
  

18   serve its load.  We have generation up along the northern
  

19   part of Arizona, the northwest corner of New Mexico,
  

20   southern portion of New Mexico down near Luna, and then
  

21   our most recent purchase was Gila River Power Plant,
  

22   where we own one block and we have a purchase power
  

23   payment for another which is in Gila Bend.
  

24            Our service territory, of course, is showing --
  

25   primarily, it's the City of Tucson shown in yellow.  As
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 1   we zoom in on the service territory, you'll see the
  

 2   underlying 138kV system, which delivers and distributes
  

 3   power from our bulk substations on the edge of that
  

 4   service territory into the internal part of the City of
  

 5   Tucson.
  

 6            For this project, the little yellow triangle
  

 7   here represents Kino Substation to give you context of
  

 8   where it sits within our service territory.
  

 9       Q.   And when was the need for the Kino Substation
  

10   and 138kV line first identified?
  

11       A.   So the need was first identified for a future
  

12   substation of 138kV back in 2007 when we prepared what we
  

13   call the saturation study.
  

14            So we looked at the City of Tucson and our TEP
  

15   service territory, took all of the underlying zoning
  

16   maps, met with all of the agencies, all of the -- for
  

17   example, the City of Tucson, Town of Oro Valley, Town of
  

18   Sahuarita, Pima County, and reviewed what their zoning
  

19   maps look like and got commitment that the zoning was
  

20   either correct or identified changes that needed to be
  

21   made.
  

22            Based on that zoning, we then did an analysis of
  

23   what -- the system that TEP would require to serve the
  

24   loads represented by that zoning.  We have a basic amount
  

25   of power that can be served out of a 138 station,
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 1   typically in the range of 80 megawatts.  So we looked at
  

 2   80 megawatt blocks throughout the city.
  

 3            It's hard to see on this map -- on this screen,
  

 4   but those little colored boxes are polygons that
  

 5   represent load.  And each one of those would require a
  

 6   substation.
  

 7            You can see down in the bottom right-hand corner
  

 8   a very, very large yellow polygon, very rural in nature.
  

 9   So very low load density, so you can cover a large area
  

10   with one substation.
  

11            You get into the central part of the city, you
  

12   see much smaller polygons.  Because of the density of
  

13   that future development, we would need much closer-spaced
  

14   substations.
  

15            As we went through that process, we identified a
  

16   substation in the general vicinity of where Kino is today
  

17   sited.  But 2007 was where we first identified it, and we
  

18   have carried that -- put that project into our ten-year
  

19   plan in 2008 and have carried it forward in various
  

20   configurations since 2008, each year adjusting the date
  

21   of in-service as we reforecast load growth.
  

22            And we're here today because we're reaching the
  

23   point where our load forecast now says the need is
  

24   imminent in the next couple of years.  And so that's why
  

25   we're siting now.
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 1       Q.   Now, Mr. Beck, since the 2007 study, TEP
  

 2   identified a need for additional support in the area.
  

 3   Can you please describe the current 46kV system and the
  

 4   load growth in the areas as it exists today.
  

 5       A.   Yes.  So today, kind of the area that we're
  

 6   taking about pretty much centered on the Bridges
  

 7   development because that is a large development coming
  

 8   into our system.  It's served by a 21st Street Substation
  

 9   on the northern edge.  That's a 46kV substation.  Pueblo
  

10   Gardens Substation, which is to the right, east of the
  

11   Bridges.  And just to give context, along that northern
  

12   corner of that map, you see a dark line.  That is the
  

13   UPRR Railroad and all the adjacent -- the sightings for
  

14   all their storage.  So there's a dividing line
  

15   throughout -- in our system that causes some problems for
  

16   serving from one side or the other.
  

17            We have, south of the Interstate, Fair Street
  

18   Substation and then, much further south, Drexel.  And
  

19   Drexel actually is a 46 and a 138 combined, and it's
  

20   quite a ways from that load center there.
  

21            So go to the next slide.  So this one is the
  

22   Bridges that we've talked about.  So this is the Bridges
  

23   development.  It's a 350-acre mixed-use development,
  

24   master planned, and it has four land uses identified,
  

25   commercial, residential, research, and open space or
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 1   recreation.
  

 2            In the northwest portion of that parcel or
  

 3   complex is planned residential as well as some
  

 4   residential here.
  

 5            We believe or understand that GEICO call center
  

 6   is now going kind of in the center part of this complex.
  

 7            The area in the upper kind of right quadrant --
  

 8   right-hand quadrant, upper quadrant, is the research area
  

 9   for the University of Arizona.
  

10            A hotel is planned for this location adjacent to
  

11   that incoming road.
  

12            Existing development is the Costco, big box
  

13   store, in the bottom right of that development.  There
  

14   are movie theatres, a restaurant, a Walmart, a
  

15   McDonald's, apparently a smoothie in here somewhere, and
  

16   a gym, gymnasium or fitness center, actually.
  

17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

18            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you.
  

19            Mr. Beck, do you know when that planned
  

20   development was filed with Pima County?
  

21            MR. BECK:  Not sure of the date.  I know that in
  

22   2011, in anticipation of some of this new load coming
  

23   in -- maybe if we go to the next slide.
  

24            This 21st Street Substation is what has been
  

25   serving the development that has occurred so far.  And I
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 1   know we added a transformer there in 2011.  So, likely,
  

 2   they filed somewhere just before that for the whole
  

 3   Bridges complex.
  

 4            MEMBER NOLAND:  Well, I'm trying to remember
  

 5   when the Costco went in, and it seems like it was before
  

 6   that, just having spent a lot of time at the court center
  

 7   there.
  

 8            MR. BECK:  Yeah.
  

 9            MEMBER NOLAND:  If you can, could you just
  

10   figure out when they filed that?  I think it was probably
  

11   before 2011 that they went through the process.
  

12            MR. BECK:  We can get that information.
  

13            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

14            MR. BECK:  We're thinking it may have been 2010,
  

15   but we'll verify that.
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

17            MEMBER WOODALL:  This is an impossible question,
  

18   but those are the best kind.  How do you assess the
  

19   viability, the reality, the sense that this project --
  

20   or, obviously, any real estate project is actually going
  

21   to happen and within what time frame?  So, in other
  

22   words, what's the absorption rate?  Because I've seen a
  

23   lot of plans, zoning, etc.  And how does TEP determine
  

24   that it's real?  And I mean no disrespect to the
  

25   developers, but, really, in the sense of you will be
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 1   required to serve it soon.  How do you do that?
  

 2            MR. BECK:  That is a difficult situation.  So,
  

 3   for example, in this development here, even though it's
  

 4   been on the books for a long time, we haven't done any
  

 5   new construction, at least at the major level such as
  

 6   138, because it's sort of imminent, but it's really not
  

 7   happening yet.  And so that is very difficult.
  

 8            Now, in the case of some of these developments,
  

 9   it's when they come in and actually make a request for
  

10   service, and they're committing to pay for certain
  

11   facilities.  And then -- and that's a go for us.
  

12            But that's easy on the distribution side where
  

13   it's the day-to-day stuff that we have to do, and they
  

14   know what they have to pay, and easy process.  But it's
  

15   that longer-term planning for the bigger needs that's
  

16   very difficult.
  

17            And so in this case, like I say, every year
  

18   since 2008, we take a look at is there actual -- has the
  

19   ground been turned?  Are they putting in foundations?
  

20   Are there committed outside development messages saying,
  

21   you know, future site of?  All of that plays into it.
  

22   But it is a very difficult situation.
  

23            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you, Mr. Beck.
  

24            MR. BECK:  So just, again, briefly, the Bridges
  

25   complex, we served the initial development, which is
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 1   along the southern edge of that commercial area from the
  

 2   21st Street Substation.  In 2011 --
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Excuse me.  Member Haenichen has
  

 4   a question.  Excuse me, Mr. Beck.
  

 5            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Beck, can you tell the
  

 6   Committee what the total peak load of the TEP system is
  

 7   today and maybe take a stab at how it changes out in the
  

 8   future?
  

 9            MR. BECK:  It's approximately 2,500 megawatts of
  

10   what we call city load, which is the load we serve within
  

11   in the city.  Under the saturation study, we identified
  

12   saturation as being in the range of I believe it was
  

13   approximately 5,300 megawatts.  So roughly doubling the
  

14   size of what we have today.  That is based on ultimate
  

15   buildout to the zoning code.  Doesn't reflect the fact
  

16   that zoning could change, and those numbers could go up
  

17   or down, but based on what it was at the time that we did
  

18   it.
  

19            We are actually right now in the process of
  

20   redoing our saturation studies, so in the next six months
  

21   we'll have new results.  But at the time we did this one,
  

22   which was in 2007, we approximately were going to double
  

23   the load.
  

24            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Thank you.
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
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 1            MEMBER WOODALL:  Can you explain to me the
  

 2   relationship between the studies that you do for
  

 3   saturation and those that you do for your integrated
  

 4   resource planning?  Are they the same?  Are they
  

 5   integrated together?  Could you expound on that a little
  

 6   for me?
  

 7            MR. BECK:  So we undertook the saturation study
  

 8   at the time when we had a lot of interest from the
  

 9   Commission to identify future needs, especially for
  

10   transmission, so that they could get put onto maps and
  

11   diagrams of the various entities, State, County, as well
  

12   as being identified for real estate developers to
  

13   identify for their future developments that site of
  

14   future transmission line, for example.
  

15            There was a law that was placed on the books
  

16   around -- in the time frame of 2006 or '7 stating that
  

17   the agencies should include in their typical ten-year
  

18   plans accommodations for utilities.
  

19            So that's why we embarked on the saturation
  

20   studies, to try and identify some of those future
  

21   alignments that we were going to be looking for.  And
  

22   more importantly from TEP's perspective, we were trying
  

23   to determine strategically how we planned to serve the
  

24   City of Tucson longer term.  Would it be at -- with
  

25   additional EHV transmission facilities or would we
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 1   continue expanding our HV, which is our 138kV system.
  

 2            And as a result of the study that we did and
  

 3   looking at the City of Tucson and how it had developed,
  

 4   the potential for siting and getting public approval of
  

 5   higher voltage transmission through the city was, we
  

 6   felt, pretty negligible.  And so we did make the
  

 7   determination we are going to stay with the 138kV system
  

 8   throughout the city and, therefore, identified some of
  

 9   the alignments that we're going to be required to have in
  

10   the future.
  

11            The problem is that the agencies, even though
  

12   there was some type of law on the books that they should,
  

13   they didn't incorporate into their planning maps any of
  

14   our future facilities.  We're hoping this time around,
  

15   that may change, but we'll see.
  

16            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck, if I understand you
  

17   correctly, the criteria that you're using for purposes of
  

18   the saturation study is the zoning and how much use you
  

19   anticipated based on the zoning; is that correct?
  

20            MR. BECK:  That is correct.
  

21            MEMBER WOODALL:  So for purposes of your IRP
  

22   planning, you take into account a lot of different
  

23   variables, the economy, etc., etc.  So my sense would be
  

24   that you probably have a higher confidence level in terms
  

25   of load coming from your integrated resource planning
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 1   than you would from your saturation study.  Would I be
  

 2   wrong?
  

 3            MR. BECK:  Relative to timing, you're absolutely
  

 4   correct.  We don't know when we would reach that
  

 5   saturation point.  It could be 20 years, could be 50,
  

 6   could be 100.  But on the IRP side, we are projecting out
  

 7   what does it look like in the next five years to ten
  

 8   years.
  

 9            And so there is a difference in the two
  

10   processes.  The IRP is intended more for the resource
  

11   side of the mix, and our saturation study is specific to
  

12   the transmission and distribution needs of our system.
  

13            MEMBER WOODALL:  Since you brought that
  

14   difference up, do you think it might make sense to have a
  

15   process that included both transmission planning and
  

16   resource planning?  And I know that was an evil thing to
  

17   do to you, Mr. Beck, but do you think that would be
  

18   logical?  I'm not asking you to endorse it on behalf of
  

19   TEP.  I'd just like to know your thoughts on it.
  

20            MR. BECK:  Well, tight coordination between the
  

21   two processes is absolutely critical.  And at least
  

22   within TEP, we do -- on the transmission side, we work
  

23   closely with our resource side as those plans are being
  

24   developed.  I know that the Commission is looking at how
  

25   to do that in the future.
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 1            Because the two processes do have different
  

 2   perspectives and probably different timelines in their
  

 3   development, bringing them all together I think would be
  

 4   difficult.  That's why, when the IRP process was set up,
  

 5   it was set up for the opposite year of the BTA process so
  

 6   that, in fact, on the Staff side at the Commission, they
  

 7   would be somehow be able to handle the workload that they
  

 8   would have.  Because it's not only the issue of the
  

 9   utilities themselves, but it all ends up at the
  

10   Commission Staff to deal with.  And, I mean, those are
  

11   two pretty large buckets of things to look at.
  

12            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you, Mr. Beck.
  

13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Ms. DeCorse, is this perhaps a
  

14   time to break for lunch?
  

15            MR. BECK:  If I could, I've just got a few
  

16   points to make on this slide, and then I think it would
  

17   be a perfect time.
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.
  

19            MR. BECK:  So I just wanted to point out that
  

20   21st Street Sub up here in 2011, we added a second
  

21   transformer.  As a result, there was some of this growth
  

22   coming in.  And timingwise, I'm not sure whether it was
  

23   Costco or Walmart first, but those drove the need for
  

24   some additional capacity.  We put a second transformer
  

25   in.
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 1            Since 2011, our load has doubled on that
  

 2   substation, and we are almost at the capacity of that
  

 3   upgraded substation.
  

 4            We have about 2 MVA of capacity at the Pueblo
  

 5   Gardens Substation.  We have 8 MVA available at Fair
  

 6   Street.  But a big problem with that is trying to get
  

 7   across the Interstate.  Especially with feeder-level
  

 8   facilities, it's very expensive and complicated as we try
  

 9   and do that.
  

10       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  Mr. Beck, if I could ask, what
  

11   does MVA mean?
  

12       A.   It's a measure of the capacity of the system.
  

13   So it's similar to megawatts.  There's a conversion
  

14   factor.  But you can consider it to be close to a
  

15   megawatt.
  

16            And then, as far as Drexel goes, it's so far
  

17   removed from this area that extending any feeders up
  

18   there are difficult.  So that's why we've come to the
  

19   conclusion that a 138 system or expansion is what's
  

20   required.
  

21            MS. DeCORSE:  It looks like now is a natural
  

22   breaking point.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Good.  Let's take our lunch break
  

24   now, and we'll come back in an hour.  Let's make it 1:15.
  

25            Thank you.
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 1            (A recess was taken from 12:07 p.m. to
  

 2   1:25 p.m.)
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Let's resume the
  

 4   afternoon session of the TEP application.
  

 5            I see all the Committee Members are back.  The
  

 6   witnesses are ready.  Is the applicant ready to proceed,
  

 7   Ms. DeCorse?
  

 8            MS. DeCORSE:  Yes.
  

 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Please proceed.  Thank you.
  

10            MS. DeCORSE:  And I believe before the break, we
  

11   were asked some questions regarding outages in the area.
  

12       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  Mr. Beck, do you have any
  

13   information to follow up on those questions?
  

14       A.   Yes.  Regarding outages, we pulled the
  

15   information for approximately the last year and at least
  

16   specifically to the McDonald's that is on the Bridges
  

17   property, and there was an outage on a Sunday for -- it's
  

18   a momentary outage.  Cause was a fault on one of our
  

19   lines.
  

20            Then we had an outage -- and so that was in
  

21   June, on June 10th.
  

22            And then on February 19th of this year, it was a
  

23   Tuesday, 12:31, midday, due to vandalism, we had an
  

24   outage for seven hours.
  

25            On January 24th, on a Wednesday at 8:37, there
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 1   was vandalism again.  There was a 36-minute outage.
  

 2            December of 2017, 8:30 in the morning, we had a
  

 3   pole hit.  There was an outage for two and a half hours.
  

 4            On August 10th of 2017, which was a Thursday, we
  

 5   had a broken pole, and there was a one-minute outage.
  

 6            On August 10th of 2017 at 1:06 p.m., it was a
  

 7   Thursday, we had a one-minute outage due to a pole hit.
  

 8            On July 19th of '17 at 3:36 on a Wednesday, we
  

 9   had poles go down due to a monsoon storm.  There was a
  

10   one-minute outage.
  

11            And then on July 11th of last year, it was a
  

12   Tuesday, we had a 1-hour-and-25-minute outage due to
  

13   substation equipment failure, and that was at 5:10 in the
  

14   afternoon.
  

15       Q.   Now, looking at those, is there any correlation
  

16   between maybe the need that you've discussed before the
  

17   break, or can you give some context to those?
  

18       A.   I think it goes right to the reliability issue.
  

19   Our system is strained in the area.  And even for a pole
  

20   going down, as you heard, there was at least one or two
  

21   of these outages that were only a minute long.  They were
  

22   basically a momentary outage.  But it's because that
  

23   system is stressed in the area.  And so that -- one
  

24   reason for the 138 is to improve that reliability.
  

25       Q.   And, Mr. Beck, would you say that as the area
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 1   grows with possibly more development, that that would
  

 2   only get worse?
  

 3       A.   Definitely, it would get worse, to the extent we
  

 4   could even serve the load in the future.
  

 5       Q.   And I believe --
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Hamway.
  

 7            Excuse me.
  

 8            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Do you have any redundancy built
  

 9   in in any of this?  I mean, had you had -- so do you
  

10   think that you're still going to have these outages?  I
  

11   mean, a lot of them are vandalism and monsoon.  So when
  

12   one of these poles goes down, is there a redundant system
  

13   that it can be switched to and nobody knows the
  

14   difference?
  

15            MR. BECK:  There is redundancy in the system.
  

16   And in this area, the backup capability from one circuit
  

17   to another is stretched.  It's very limited.  So when we
  

18   do have an outage, we will switch over to another
  

19   circuit.  But in some instances, if that circuit is at
  

20   its maximum load, we don't have that ability.
  

21            So that is one thing that the 138 system will
  

22   help.  It will give us a new feed that will support the
  

23   existing feeders that are in the area.  And we also have
  

24   the potential -- and I'm not sure if I mentioned it this
  

25   morning -- to eliminate one or two of our 46kV
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 1   substations on a go-forward basis.  That would be
  

 2   basically supplanted or replaced by the 138 station.  And
  

 3   our 138 system is much more robust and reliable than the
  

 4   46 or 13.8kV systems.
  

 5            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I can kind of see that
  

 6   gentleman's concern, you know, that gets called out when
  

 7   the fire backup system has to -- because every time it
  

 8   kicks over to the generator, it maybe doesn't have the
  

 9   same kind of power.  It's pretty annoying.  And just
  

10   within a year's time frame, I bet you mentioned ten
  

11   outages.
  

12            MR. BECK:  Eight to be --
  

13            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.
  

14            MR. BECK:  -- specific, but yes.
  

15            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Yeah.  That -- I can see their
  

16   annoyance, quite frankly.
  

17            MR. BECK:  I do not disagree.  And that's one of
  

18   the reasons we're here, is to try and improve that
  

19   reliability record.
  

20       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  And with respect to I believe
  

21   Member Woodall's question regarding how close the line
  

22   will be to the school on 36th and Campbell, do you happen
  

23   to have any more exact information?
  

24       A.   During the lunch break, we did measure and came
  

25   up with 220 feet as the distance from the closest corner
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 1   of the buildings to the alignment of the line.
  

 2       Q.   And was there anything else that you would like
  

 3   to address in regards to public comment?
  

 4            I know that we had Mr. Dawson, who I just
  

 5   believe you got passed out a letter, so there's a copy of
  

 6   that.  But is there anything specific that you would like
  

 7   to address?
  

 8       A.   The one thing I think we wanted to take a look
  

 9   at -- we can bring up via Google the location of that
  

10   Sierra Court just to show the Committee where that's at.
  

11            And so, basically, on the map you see there, the
  

12   location is right there on a physical map.  But if we go
  

13   to the Google street view, this is the entrance, I
  

14   believe, to their complex.
  

15            And then if we could go 180, Patrick.
  

16            So this is on the north side of Benson Highway,
  

17   and we're proposing the line to be on the south side.  So
  

18   it would be on the opposite side of the median from the
  

19   complex itself.  And as you can see, there's not too much
  

20   on the other side.  And, in fact, there's a wash that
  

21   runs through that area.
  

22            And if you want to just scroll around, Patrick.
  

23            So, as you can see, theirs is one of the -- kind
  

24   of the nicer-looking developments in that area.  They
  

25   have fixed it up considerably.  But, again, it would be
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 1   on the opposite side of the road.
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

 3            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck, those are 46kV
  

 4   transmission lines that are paralleling the roadway
  

 5   there?
  

 6            MR. BECK:  Yes, that's correct.
  

 7            MEMBER WOODALL:  And so the height of what you
  

 8   are proposing would be proportionwise how much higher?
  

 9            MR. BECK:  Those structures are probably in the
  

10   50-foot range, so we're going to be in the 75- to 80-foot
  

11   range.
  

12            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  And I'm assuming that
  

13   the width of the poles or the diameter of the poles is
  

14   going to be bigger than the existing 46kV?
  

15            MR. BECK:  They will be somewhat larger
  

16   diameter, yes.
  

17            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Hamway.
  

19            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So are those going to stay, the
  

20   wooden poles, the 23?
  

21            MR. BECK:  Yes, they would stay.
  

22            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

24            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Beck, however,
  

25   the poles on the other side of the street will have a
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 1   much greater distance between them, will they not?
  

 2            MR. BECK:  That is correct.  So they'd be 750 to
  

 3   1,000 feet.  We're probably in the range of 350 feet on
  

 4   the distribution 46kV.
  

 5            MEMBER NOLAND:  And would it be possible, if, in
  

 6   fact, that's the route that is chosen, that you try and
  

 7   space them a little bit so they're not directly across
  

 8   from that particular location?
  

 9            MR. BECK:  Yes.  So we'll -- we can work with
  

10   property owners to the extent possible to adjust pole
  

11   locations, shift them accordingly.
  

12            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

13       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  And, Mr. Beck, with respect to
  

14   Member Noland's question regarding the year of the
  

15   planned development in the area, do you -- do you have
  

16   any information on that, or is Ms. Darling going to speak
  

17   to that?
  

18       A.   No.  I do have that information.
  

19            So, Mr. Chairman, Member Noland, we did check.
  

20   And the first time that Bridges filed their PAD was in
  

21   February of 2007.  And there have been several
  

22   modifications since then, but it was February of 2007 was
  

23   the first time.
  

24            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

25       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  And I believe before the break,
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 1   we ended on a discussion of the company's identification
  

 2   of the need in the area of the 36th and Kino Boulevard
  

 3   area.
  

 4            One of the things you mentioned was the planning
  

 5   process for transmission.  And with respect to the
  

 6   company's most recent ten-year plan filing, has the
  

 7   applicant studied the technical feasibility of the
  

 8   project?
  

 9       A.   The company has studied specifically the
  

10   planning aspects of the project and the reliability
  

11   impacts as well as load-serving capability.  As a part of
  

12   our siting process, we look at the technical aspects of
  

13   the project itself.
  

14            But in our ten-year plan process, we do a study
  

15   that is then reviewed by the Commission Staff as part of
  

16   the BTA process, which is done every other year, which
  

17   this happens to be a BTA year, so it is being reviewed by
  

18   Staff.
  

19       Q.   If you could speak to the purpose and need and
  

20   maybe explain a little how those studies went into the
  

21   decision.
  

22       A.   So, as I think I've stated earlier, we did the
  

23   saturation study in 2007.  That highlighted a need in the
  

24   area.
  

25            As -- based on that information, we then had our
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 1   distribution planning group do specific area studies for
  

 2   where the substation should be located.  And for this
  

 3   case, they identified basically what we call a load
  

 4   center.  So they have an area of the system that is
  

 5   identified to need a substation within that area, and
  

 6   they identify where the load center is in that polygon if
  

 7   you want to think of it that way.  So the heavier load --
  

 8   it tends to go towards the heavier load, so it may be
  

 9   skewed from the center of the actual polygon.
  

10            In this case, the distribution planning study
  

11   showed the ideal location for a substation surprisingly
  

12   exactly where we are placing the substation.
  

13            When we first looked at the distribution side,
  

14   we did not think that piece of land would be available.
  

15   It was County land identified as a park.  We didn't think
  

16   there was any way that that could get approved for a
  

17   substation.
  

18            So we started to look for other sites throughout
  

19   the area.  And through the process of elimination, we
  

20   came down to a few sites, one of which was basically on
  

21   the Bridges property.  And during discussions with the
  

22   Bridges group, the City of Tucson, and Pima County, we
  

23   were informed that, in fact, there was the potential to
  

24   use a portion of that park area for our substation.
  

25            And during those discussions, it became clear
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 1   that not only could it benefit TEP, but it would benefit
  

 2   the County and the residents because any payments we make
  

 3   for the land would actually be used to then subsequently
  

 4   build a park, which they could not afford to do.
  

 5            And so, through the process, we ended up with
  

 6   the corner of 36th and -- 36th and Kino as being the
  

 7   location for the substation.
  

 8            And, again, a little more detail of what that
  

 9   area will look like in some of the planned development.
  

10   On the corner of that piece of property would be the Kino
  

11   Substation, and then adjacent to it will be the park that
  

12   would be developed.  It will have a bull end with some
  

13   parking areas on one edge, ramadas, and a lot of walking
  

14   paths with natural vegetation remaining throughout.
  

15            So we identified this as a win-win for both the
  

16   company, the County, and the residents in the area.  And
  

17   that's how we ended up with the specific site for the
  

18   substation.
  

19            Once we had identified that site, then we went
  

20   through our standard process for developing routing and
  

21   siting for a 138 transmission line to connect it to
  

22   Irvington.
  

23            Since 2007, as I said, we've had it in our
  

24   ten-year plan.  Originally, we had identified a project
  

25   that was called Irvington to Kino to Tucson station.  And
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 1   Tucson station is in the downtown area of Tucson, and we
  

 2   wanted to do a looped system.
  

 3            In the past year and a half, we've had some
  

 4   extensive discussions with the University of Arizona
  

 5   regarding some interest and need they have for 138kV
  

 6   service, and so we did not feel it made sense to build
  

 7   the Kino to Tucson segment or try and site it until we
  

 8   actually go through and review if we should site it
  

 9   through the U of A area and possibly even to a different
  

10   substation than Tucson.
  

11            So a decision was made to come forward with a
  

12   radial project, so it's not looped at this time.  In the
  

13   future, it will get looped in our system, but our initial
  

14   build will be an Irvington to Kino radial 138kV line.  It
  

15   will bring all the capacity benefits, a large degree of
  

16   the reliability benefit.  We'll get ultimate reliability
  

17   benefit when we do the loop in the future.  And, as I
  

18   said, that -- we're in the process of trying to
  

19   determine, along with U of A and others, where the
  

20   correct siting would be for that future segment.
  

21       Q.   Mr. Beck, if you could please walk us through
  

22   the three alternatives that the company is proposing
  

23   today.
  

24       A.   Sure.  So we went through a process for siting,
  

25   and you'll hear a lot more about it from Ms. Darling.
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 1   But in general, we identified a study area, which is this
  

 2   purple outline on the diagram for the actual siting
  

 3   process.
  

 4            Within that area, we put together a lot of
  

 5   Geographic Information System data on maps.  We ran that
  

 6   through a process to take into account all of that data
  

 7   and how it fit into our criteria for siting.  That kind
  

 8   of narrowed us down to a bunch of segments and links that
  

 9   we could use to put together to create routes.  We then
  

10   moved from that -- and this is all in context of a very
  

11   public- and stakeholder-driven process.  It was very
  

12   collaborative with the public.
  

13            And as we did that GIS information, it informed
  

14   some of the stuff we put on maps in our future meeting.
  

15   So we had our -- initial meeting was just kind of a site
  

16   area.
  

17            The next meeting had more information regarding
  

18   potential parts that could make up a route, whether you
  

19   call them links or segments, ultimately resulting in what
  

20   you see that we've brought forth to the Committee, three
  

21   alternative routes.
  

22            These three routes were taken to the public in
  

23   our public meeting as our proposed routes to bring
  

24   forward to the Committee.  And based on all of the work
  

25   that we had done up to that point and then, further, any
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 1   public comment we received from that public meeting, we
  

 2   narrowed the three routes down to what we identified as
  

 3   our preferred route, which is the line in blue or
  

 4   Alternative A.
  

 5            And then second to that -- well, not second, but
  

 6   another route was Alternative B, which is the green
  

 7   route, and then Alternative C, which is the orange route
  

 8   on the map.
  

 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Haenichen.
  

10            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Beck, could you take a
  

11   stab at explaining to us the difference between the green
  

12   one and the blue one in terms of preference.  I still
  

13   don't get it.
  

14            MR. BECK:  Okay.  The green route, to a large
  

15   degree, is adjacent and parallel to the Interstate.  From
  

16   a first look, it's a really good route.  And if I were
  

17   asked to pick a route just with a clean slate and no
  

18   other public process, I said that was a very good route.
  

19            When we went through the process, there were
  

20   various things that cropped up, access being one.  We had
  

21   a little bit less and poorer access to get along the
  

22   Interstate for construction as well as maintenance.
  

23            You'll see on the tour tomorrow -- you can't see
  

24   it really from this -- but I-10 is very elevated.  I'm
  

25   not sure if it's 15 or 20 feet higher than all of the
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 1   surrounding land.  So if there's no access off the
  

 2   freeway, everything would be down along the ADOT
  

 3   fenceline, which there really is no frontage room in
  

 4   there and no access.  So there's some access issues with
  

 5   it.
  

 6            There's potential encroachments into a few of
  

 7   the businesses along there, not that they can't be
  

 8   overcome.
  

 9            But the really big driver for us -- or one of
  

10   the big drivers is the cost.  And we would have to
  

11   procure all private right-of-way or easements along that
  

12   stretch of land.  And so it adds about $2 million to the
  

13   project that we don't have with the other routes that
  

14   we're able to use road right-of-way.
  

15            Also, in our public process, a lot of discussion
  

16   about the school and the concerns about the school
  

17   children.  We had one stakeholder meeting where quite a
  

18   large group of children from the school came to the
  

19   stakeholder meeting.  Very well behaved, the meeting went
  

20   very well.  But they lined the outside of our -- it was a
  

21   rather large meeting room.  And so there was a very
  

22   strong interest from the public to stay away from that
  

23   school.  And so that's really what -- one of the key
  

24   things that finally drove us to go with Alternative A, is
  

25   the proximity to the school and the input that we
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 1   received from all of the public in that area.
  

 2            We also had quite a bit of input that the
  

 3   neighborhood up here feels picked upon by the City of
  

 4   Tucson, and they feel that any projects that come along,
  

 5   people try and push them into their neighborhoods.  So
  

 6   they had a very strong voice that -- kind of "Stay away
  

 7   from our area."
  

 8            So a lot of the public input that we had drove
  

 9   us to Alternative A.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

11            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck, what was the
  

12   substance of the concerns with respect to the proximity
  

13   to the school?  Are we talking EMF or something?
  

14            MR. BECK:  They raised EMF.  They raised cancer
  

15   issues.  They raised their neighborhood being picked
  

16   upon.  I think those were kind of the major things that
  

17   were brought forward.
  

18            MEMBER WOODALL:  I'm assuming that you had
  

19   experts that could talk about the known impact of EMF
  

20   that relates to this distance?
  

21            MR. BECK:  We did.  We had diagrams showing the
  

22   levels of EMF.  In fact, you'll see one later on that I
  

23   have in my slides.  But it's a very personal issue to the
  

24   individuals involved there, so ...
  

25            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  Thank you very much.
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 1       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  And if you can walk us through,
  

 2   Mr. Beck, the technical components of the project and
  

 3   maybe explain any differences, major differences, between
  

 4   the three alternatives.
  

 5       A.   Yes.
  

 6            So the project basically consists of anywhere
  

 7   from 3.63 to 4.64 miles, depending on the route that is
  

 8   selected.  We would use anywhere from 41 to 50 structures
  

 9   along the routes.  We plan to use 954 ACSS rail
  

10   conductor, which has a maximum operating temperature of
  

11   250 degrees C under emergencies.  And everything would be
  

12   designed pursuant to NESC, NERC, and FERC requirements.
  

13            Here's a diagram showing the structure types.
  

14   You'll see on the left-hand side, that would be our
  

15   typical construction.  It's a -- these are double-circuit
  

16   capable poles, but we'll only be installing one circuit.
  

17   We're only asking for a CEC for a single circuit for this
  

18   case.  If it made sense in the future to add a second
  

19   138kV line, which we don't foresee, but it would be a
  

20   matter of coming back to request a CEC for the second
  

21   circuit.
  

22            The full buildout if those were built to double
  

23   circuit as shown there in the middle, but, again, that's
  

24   not part of this project.  Just to be clear, though,
  

25   these are double-circuit capable.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Excuse me.
  

 2            Member Woodall.
  

 3            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck, you said that if you
  

 4   needed a second circuit, you would come back and site
  

 5   that circuit.  Are you saying that you would undertake a
  

 6   new siting process, or you would request a modification
  

 7   to a CEC that may be issued on this matter?  And that
  

 8   might be a legal question, so ...
  

 9            MR. BECK:  Yes, Member Woodall, I believe that
  

10   is a legal question.  I mean, I'm not sure what the
  

11   difference is.  I think even if we were asking for an
  

12   amendment, we'd have to come back through with a public
  

13   process to show we had public input.  But from the legal
  

14   standpoint --
  

15            MEMBER WOODALL:  Well, recently, there have been
  

16   some requests to amend pre-existing CECs to lower the
  

17   voltage on some of the lines.  And, basically, there was
  

18   no real evidentiary public component to that.  And I'm
  

19   not criticizing the utility that came forward.  So I'm
  

20   just trying to figure out what you would be talking
  

21   about.
  

22            I mean, if you had to come back and site the
  

23   second circuit, then there would be a big public process
  

24   because it would be before the Line Siting Committee.
  

25   But if you're talking about amendments and
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 1   certifications, that would be a little less -- public
  

 2   outreach light.
  

 3            And so, I don't know, Ms. DeCorse, if you have
  

 4   anything to comment on that.
  

 5            MR. BECK:  Let me say my position is as long as
  

 6   I'm with TEP doing line siting would be that if we were
  

 7   coming back to add a second circuit to this line, I think
  

 8   our expectation would be we would go through a siting
  

 9   process because we're not siting two lines at this time,
  

10   and we're not making any attempt to do that.  So we just
  

11   want to be very clear that these are double-circuit
  

12   capable poles, so there's no question about that.  But
  

13   our intent is only to build one line at this time.  And a
  

14   siting process at some time is my expectation what we
  

15   would do if we added a second circuit.
  

16            MEMBER WOODALL:  I'm making a note, Mr. Beck,
  

17   but I think you'll outlast me.
  

18            MR. BECK:  We'll see.
  

19            MS. DeCORSE:  And, Member Woodall, I am not
  

20   familiar with what we've done in the past, but I would
  

21   have to tend to lead to Mr. Beck's opinion, because
  

22   that's how I've had it explained to me, but I could come
  

23   back and do some research if you prefer.
  

24            MEMBER WOODALL:  No.  Just thinking back to my
  

25   previous existence as a lawyer, I seem to recall the
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 1   definition of a transmission line is a series of
  

 2   structures.  So whether or not the actual conduit would
  

 3   be the subject of a siting proceeding -- and I understand
  

 4   you're telling me you don't plan on doing it, you don't
  

 5   think it's likely, but you are letting us know that it's
  

 6   physically and technically feasible.  Is that the long
  

 7   and the short of it?
  

 8            MR. BECK:  Correct.
  

 9            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

10       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  Mr. Beck, were you finished
  

11   with explaining the technical components?
  

12       A.   I believe so.
  

13       Q.   Okay.  And are you aware of any potential impact
  

14   the project may have on communication signals?  And, if
  

15   necessary, can you speak to the mitigation measures the
  

16   company may undertake?
  

17       A.   Yeah.  Our position is that there would be no
  

18   impact to radio or television or communication signals
  

19   from the project.  All of our hardware is designed to
  

20   minimize gap and corona discharge, which typically is the
  

21   cause of radio and communication issues.  So any radio
  

22   frequency-type noise would be nearly nonexistent from the
  

23   project.
  

24            If there are areas that have good reception
  

25   prior to the line going in that have problems later,
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 1   we'll go back and inspect primarily for loose or damaged
  

 2   hardware, because that's typically the cause of any
  

 3   interference.  If, in the case of an AM radio station,
  

 4   there's an area that had good reception prior to the
  

 5   project that doesn't after our project, we'll work with
  

 6   those in that area to determine if there's something they
  

 7   could do to their antenna system to help improve their
  

 8   reception.
  

 9            Two-way radios, typically, if you move as little
  

10   as 50 feet, it eliminates any interference.  And,
  

11   typically, those are for mobile applications; that
  

12   somebody just moves over from where they're at, then they
  

13   don't have a problem.  And, if necessary, we can work
  

14   with power operators to resolve any issues directly.
  

15            And, specifically, also for this project, we did
  

16   send letters to all holders of FCC licenses in the area.
  

17   We had one respondent who raised questions with us.  We
  

18   responded to them, and they appear to be satisfied with
  

19   our responses.
  

20       Q.   And just to jump back, is that in the
  

21   application, the letters that you're referencing?
  

22       A.   Yes, I believe they are.  I thought they were.
  

23   We'll have to check and clarify.  If they're not in the
  

24   application, we have them.  It may have been done just
  

25   after the application was filed.
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 1       Q.   And the application also references an EMF or
  

 2   magnetic field study.  Can you please summarize the
  

 3   results of that assessment.
  

 4       A.   Yes.  So up on the screen, you'll see a diagram
  

 5   that shows the magnetic field.  There's both electric and
  

 6   magnetic fields with transmission.  Typically, the
  

 7   electric aren't much of a concern.  Most concern is with
  

 8   magnetic, so I'm only showing the magnetic field here.
  

 9   But you can see that the numbers at the center of the
  

10   right-of-way right under the line, these are measured in
  

11   milliGauss.  And it's in the range of 13 and a half
  

12   milliGauss.  Under the 2026, we actually ran the numbers
  

13   with expected loading in 2021 and then looked out at 2026
  

14   also.
  

15            So just to put a little bit of context around
  

16   that, right at the middle of the right-of-way, we're in
  

17   that 13-and-a-half range.  From the National Institute of
  

18   Environmental Health and Science, in one of their
  

19   reports, an electric razor is 20 milliGauss.  A vacuum
  

20   cleaner is 60 milliGauss.  Electric blanket, unless you
  

21   buy a low-magnetic electric blanket, which I didn't know
  

22   they made those, but a normal one is 22 milliGauss.
  

23            So you can see even in the worst case, right
  

24   under the line, the magnetic field is much less than some
  

25   of your common household appliances.  And then if you get
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 1   to the edge of a right-of-way, which -- if you're in 50
  

 2   feet, we're down in that roughly 3-milliGauss range for
  

 3   138kV.
  

 4       Q.   And what is the company's experience with
  

 5   constructing this type of line?
  

 6       A.   So we have extensive experience in transmission
  

 7   construction and particularly with 138kV monopole-type
  

 8   structures.  We regularly develop lines with this type of
  

 9   construction but common along our road rights-of-way in
  

10   Tucson.
  

11       Q.   What is the overall cost of the project?
  

12       A.   So the overall cost is depending the route, the
  

13   lowest being Route C at 4.9 million.  The highest is
  

14   Route B at 6.6 million.  And our proposed preferred is
  

15   slightly above Alternative C at 5.1 million.
  

16            The cost of Alternative A is 4 percent higher
  

17   than the least cost, whereas Alternative B is 35 percent
  

18   higher than the least-cost alternative.
  

19            There are 28 percent more miles in Route A and
  

20   30 percent more poles over Route B, which is the lowest
  

21   number of poles.  And Route C has 17 percent more miles
  

22   than Route B and 22 percent more poles.
  

23            But bottom line, the cost of the project between
  

24   A and C, they're very close in cost.  You can see B
  

25   stands out as being much more expensive.  And, again,
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 1   it's because of the right-of-way.  It's driven by 2.3
  

 2   million of land acquisition as compared to either 300,000
  

 3   or 700,000 in the other two alternatives.
  

 4       Q.   So, Mr. Beck, this morning in public comment,
  

 5   Mr. Gregory, from the Bridges Property Association, made
  

 6   a comment regarding preference for Alternative B and
  

 7   explained it as the lowest-cost alternative.  Would you
  

 8   agree with that statement?
  

 9       A.   Well, I suspect that he was working from the
  

10   fact that he was looking strictly at the mileage of the
  

11   lines.  And Alternative B being the shortest route, just
  

12   off the top, you would expect it to be the lowest cost
  

13   route.  But when you factor in the right-of-way cost,
  

14   that isn't the case.
  

15            There's also a little bit more cost involved
  

16   depending on the number of angle structures and height of
  

17   structures.  But the biggest difference is the cost of
  

18   land acquisition.
  

19       Q.   And could you go back and maybe point us on the
  

20   map where specifically we would need -- the company would
  

21   be needing to acquire that land you were referring to?
  

22       A.   Yes.  So, primarily, it's in the stretch that is
  

23   parallel and adjacent to I-10.  So we would not be in the
  

24   ADOT right-of-way.  And the ADOT right-of-way is
  

25   basically real close to the toe of the slope.  So we
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 1   would need to have a flat area just beyond that.  And as
  

 2   you saw in the Google flyover, we actually had to go out
  

 3   and away a little bit from the Interstate over a portion
  

 4   of this route because of conflicts that were found.  And
  

 5   so that's driving that land acquisition of 100-foot
  

 6   right-of-way cost right there in that stretch.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

 8            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck, the right-of-way
  

 9   costs for this area, this part of B, have you factored in
  

10   potential severance damages, or are you just calculating
  

11   the value of the part taken?  Do you know?
  

12            MR. BECK:  We didn't calculate any severance, so
  

13   that number is strictly just land -- raw land cost.
  

14            MEMBER WOODALL:  Yeah.  And it's considerable
  

15   that property owners would say that their remaining
  

16   property has been made less valuable and might want to
  

17   claim damages due to the diminution in value, which are
  

18   severance damages.  That's conceivable?
  

19            MR. BECK:  Oh, absolutely.  Yes.
  

20            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you very much.
  

21            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Haenichen.
  

22            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Beck, would it be fair to
  

23   say that in any project like this, that ultimately the
  

24   ratepayers pay for the cost of the line?
  

25            MR. BECK:  That is truly the company's hope,
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 1   that the cost would ultimately be passed on to the
  

 2   ratepayer.  I mean, there is the potential if we -- in a
  

 3   rate case we're not allowed certain costs, that they will
  

 4   not reach the ratepayer, but more than likely all of
  

 5   these costs go back directly to the customer's bottom
  

 6   line.
  

 7            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  What I'm getting at is this:
  

 8   Is there any simple way you can help the Committee
  

 9   understand how much that is in terms of the rate?  For
  

10   example, if a $50 million project gets passed along to
  

11   the ratepayers, as a percentage, how much does that
  

12   increase their bill?
  

13            MR. BECK:  We can do a little research and
  

14   probably come up with a ballpark number.
  

15            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  It would be helpful for not
  

16   only in this case, but any case where they say, Oh, maybe
  

17   we'd better not pick that expensive one.
  

18            MR. BECK:  Yes, that's a valid point.
  

19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

20            MEMBER WOODALL:  Are you going to use as the
  

21   basis the plant in service?  Is that what you're going to
  

22   use to calculate the relationship between this number and
  

23   the customers?  Is that what you're going to do?
  

24            MR. BECK:  More than likely.  I will talk to our
  

25   rates department and have them run some numbers.
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 1            MEMBER WOODALL:  It's going to be a teensy
  

 2   number, is it not?
  

 3            MR. BECK:  It's probably going to look very
  

 4   small on the actual bill to the customer.
  

 5            MEMBER WOODALL:  Right.  Okay.  Thank you.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Beck, I had a question.
  

 7   Maybe it's a little out of order.  Maybe it will be
  

 8   addressed later.  But the concern of the owner of the
  

 9   Sierra Court Mobile Home Park along Benson Highway,
  

10   you've discussed interference, magnetic field.  The
  

11   visual, I think, is one aspect of their concern, the
  

12   height of the poles and the proximity to their project.
  

13            Are there any -- I'm not thinking of
  

14   undergrounding, but are there any mitigation measures
  

15   that are in the universe of possibility that might
  

16   mitigate the visual impacts?  And maybe that's something
  

17   for Ms. Darling.  But anything you can think of?
  

18            MR. BECK:  Well, from the specifics of the
  

19   Sierra Court location and entity, typically, the views
  

20   that are of interest to people in Tucson are looking
  

21   towards the Catalinas.  That's probably, to me -- at
  

22   least to me, the prettiest view.  Looking south across
  

23   Benson Highway is probably less so.  But I understand
  

24   your question about just in general the visual impact.
  

25   And to, I believe, Member Noland's point, the poles will
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 1   be spaced further apart, so they won't be as noticeable
  

 2   as a distribution line is.
  

 3            Beyond that, mitigation measures, that's a
  

 4   difficult one.  And Ms. Darling may touch on it a little
  

 5   bit also tomorrow or this afternoon.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Thanks.
  

 7       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  Mr. Beck, what sort of
  

 8   landowners are in the area we're referring to needing a
  

 9   right-of-way from?  Can you maybe refresh my memory on
  

10   the types of businesses or who we would be getting the
  

11   land from?
  

12       A.   Specific to Route B?
  

13       Q.   Yes.
  

14       A.   There's the Pima County complex right here,
  

15   which has the ball fields.  And it's in our application,
  

16   I think I might have touched on it, they plan to expand
  

17   that south of I-10.  They actually plan to put an
  

18   underpass in to get people from one side of the freeway
  

19   to the other.  So we'd be going right through the middle
  

20   of that county land, potentially getting towards the
  

21   galvanized structure issue because we'll be on private
  

22   right-of-way there.
  

23            And then there's some property owners over here
  

24   that -- I'm not exactly sure what business they're in.  I
  

25   think there's like a storage place and some kind of a

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 109

  

 1   place that sells trees.  I don't know if it's a nursery
  

 2   or not.  It's just a mix of commercial and industrial.
  

 3       Q.   Thank you.
  

 4            Mr. Beck, I'm going to turn to Staff's letter,
  

 5   Commission Staff's letter, that they filed in response to
  

 6   the Chairman's letter marked Exhibit TEP-12 labeled ACC
  

 7   Staff Report.  Do you have that in front of you?
  

 8       A.   I believe I do.
  

 9            Yes, I do.
  

10       Q.   And on the iPad, I believe it's in the
  

11   supplement tab labeled TEP-12.
  

12            Mr. Beck, have you had a chance to review
  

13   Staff's letter?
  

14       A.   Yes, I have.
  

15       Q.   And can you please summarize their conclusion.
  

16       A.   Basically, they say that the project is
  

17   technically sound.  They believe the project will improve
  

18   the reliability, resilience, and safety of the grid as
  

19   well as the delivery of power in Arizona.
  

20            And then they go on to recommendation the
  

21   inclusion of their standard condition regarding gas
  

22   lines.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Haenichen.
  

24            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Beck, regarding Route B,
  

25   the green line, you've testified that the explanation for

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 110

  

 1   why it's so much more costly was because there was a lot
  

 2   of right-of-way acquisition on private land; right?
  

 3            Would it also be fair to say that that process
  

 4   might increase the amount of time it takes to get the
  

 5   project done and even add uncertainty as to whether you
  

 6   would be 100 percent successful in doing it?
  

 7            MR. BECK:  Member Haenichen, that's absolutely
  

 8   right.  The time element for procuring that right-of-way
  

 9   is an unknown at this time.  If we run into an obstinate
  

10   landowner, it could really prolong any negotiations.  We
  

11   would prefer not to get into condemnation.  We do have
  

12   condemnation authority.  But if we had to go that path,
  

13   it takes even longer.
  

14            So it does bring into question the time frame of
  

15   when we could actually get the line constructed.
  

16            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Thank you.
  

17       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  Mr. Beck, there is also
  

18   exhibits in front of you labeled TEP-10 and TEP-11.  And
  

19   this is -- my question is going to be with respect to
  

20   comments filed in the docket by Bruce Wright on behalf of
  

21   the University of Arizona Tech Parks and MAS Services on
  

22   behalf of the Bridges Property Association.  Are you
  

23   familiar with those letters?
  

24       A.   Yes, I am.  In fact, we were I guess you could
  

25   say surprised when we saw those docketed.  We didn't
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 1   realize that those two groups -- entities were going to
  

 2   file to become parties to the case.
  

 3            And so I reached out to both the parties, and
  

 4   they did not realize at the time that in order to be a
  

 5   party to the case, they would have to be represented by
  

 6   counsel.  And as you would see in -- at least definitely
  

 7   in the letter from MAS Real Estate, they would be
  

 8   represented by their -- one of their employees.
  

 9            So upon discussion about the requirements for
  

10   being a party, they recognized they didn't truly want to
  

11   be a party.  They wanted to be in support of the project,
  

12   and so they -- in the case of MAS, they fashioned a -- or
  

13   drafted a letter, which we filed on their behalf, so it
  

14   was in docket.
  

15            And then regarding the University Tech Park,
  

16   Mr. Bruce Wright is planning to be here this evening to
  

17   provide public comment as opposed to being a party to the
  

18   case.
  

19       Q.   So, to clarify, TEP-10, MAS Real Estate
  

20   Services' letter, is the letter filed in support of the
  

21   project.  Generally, specifically, with Alternative A --
  

22   I mean, Alternative B.  Did they --
  

23       A.   I don't recall if the letter specifies a route.
  

24   So even the comment today that they prefer B is a
  

25   surprise to us because we've always been talking about A.
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 1   But I -- as I said, it may be the misunderstanding that
  

 2   the length doesn't necessarily equate to cost of
  

 3   construction.
  

 4       Q.   Moving on to the CEC we're requesting and
  

 5   proposing, did you prepare a draft of CEC pursuant to the
  

 6   procedural order?
  

 7       A.   Yes.  We prepared and presented and filed a
  

 8   proposed CEC for the case.
  

 9            In that proposal, we're requesting a 300-foot
  

10   corridor for whichever route is selected for the line
  

11   with 150 feet on either side of the centerline.
  

12            The draft was based upon Alternative A.  And
  

13   throughout -- for the CEC, we'll use a lot of our
  

14   franchise rights in the road right-of-way to eliminate
  

15   right-of-way costs.
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

17            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck or Ms. DeCorse, is
  

18   there somewhere in the Exhibit A to this proposed form of
  

19   CEC that provides a legal description and a map of the
  

20   proposed project?  Or will there be?  Let me ask it that
  

21   way.  Will there be?
  

22            MR. BECK:  Member Woodall, yes.  For
  

23   Alternative A, we have prepared a legal description, and
  

24   we do have a map.  And we're prepared to develop those
  

25   for Routes B or C, should they be chosen, forthwith.
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 1            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you.
  

 2            MS. DeCORSE:  And, to clarify, we didn't file
  

 3   them, but we have them as well, so -- but are not in
  

 4   Exhibit TEP-9.
  

 5       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  Can you briefly describe any
  

 6   specific conditions that may have differed from the last
  

 7   case, Case 177, to this case?  And when I say "this
  

 8   case," I mean the transmission portion of the CEC.
  

 9       A.   So this case is different than Case 177 in that
  

10   it's a single project.  It's a transmission line.
  

11   Whereas, 177 included both a transmission line as well as
  

12   a generation project.
  

13            So there is some language differences reflecting
  

14   it's a single -- a request for a single CEC.  Reference
  

15   to I believe it's in the previous case, 176, this is a
  

16   utility case, not a merchant case.  So there's a few
  

17   conditions that may be discussed that we would feel are
  

18   not applicable to a utility versus a merchant-type
  

19   project, and we drafted our conditions to reflect that.
  

20            And I believe, when we actually get to the
  

21   deliberation, there will be a different redline that we
  

22   will be showing the Committee to show exactly what the
  

23   changes were from previous cases to this case to make it
  

24   very clear for deliberation purposes.
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 114

  

 1            MEMBER WOODALL:  While we're talking about the
  

 2   draft CEC, is Staff's proposed condition relevant to this
  

 3   particular siting case, regardless of which route is
  

 4   selected?
  

 5            MR. BECK:  We do not cross any -- or parallel
  

 6   any gas lines of large size, so I don't think it has
  

 7   applicability.
  

 8            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.
  

 9            MR. BECK:  But, again, it is -- we understand
  

10   it's a standard condition and ...
  

11            MEMBER WOODALL:  Yeah.  I'm just curious if it
  

12   really has some relevance here.  So, thank you, you've
  

13   answered my question, sir.
  

14       Q.   BY MS. DeCORSE:  Mr. Beck, do you have any
  

15   concluding remarks?
  

16       A.   Yeah.  Basically, we need to -- TEP needs to be
  

17   able to enhance its ability to serve new load in the
  

18   project area, and we feel this project balances the --
  

19   our ability to construct and maintain while minimizing
  

20   impacts to the environment and -- minimizes the cost of
  

21   the project and cost of upgrading existing
  

22   infrastructure.
  

23            I touched briefly on we could do upgrades to the
  

24   existing 46.  What I probably failed to mention is trying
  

25   to bandaid that system to absorb more load in the end is
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 1   probably more costly than upgrading to the right fix at
  

 2   this time.  So that's really why we're proposing the 138.
  

 3            We have no reason to believe that the project
  

 4   will impact communication signals.  We have extensive
  

 5   experience in this type of construction and these types
  

 6   of projects.  The project is very technically feasible,
  

 7   and we feel it provides the most economic means to
  

 8   respond to the reliability requirements as well as any
  

 9   new load growth in the area.
  

10            MS. DeCORSE:  And I have no further questions.
  

11            But, Chairman, if I could move my exhibits.
  

12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Certainly.
  

13            MS. DeCORSE:  So with that, I offer TEP-1, which
  

14   is the application; TEP-2, which had been mentioned
  

15   earlier, the tour route and schedule; TEP-3; TEP-4;
  

16   TEP-4A; TEP-7; TEP-8; TEP-8A; TEP-9; TEP-10; TEP-11; and
  

17   TEP-12 into evidence.
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  So the applicant is
  

19   moving TEP-1, 2, 3, 4, 4A, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, and 12.
  

20   Is that correct?
  

21            MS. DeCORSE:  That is correct.
  

22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Any objection?
  

23            (No response.)
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  There being no objection, those
  

25   exhibits are admitted into evidence.
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 1            I'd like to introduce as Chairman's Exhibit 1,
  

 2   the letter from -- it's actually from Judy Dawson, owner
  

 3   of Sierra Court Mobile Home Park.  Copies were provided
  

 4   to the Committee.  I assume there's no objection to that.
  

 5   And I will have that marked at the break as Chairman's
  

 6   Exhibit 1.
  

 7            Are there any other matters for Mr. Beck at this
  

 8   time?
  

 9            MS. DeCORSE:  No.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
  

11            Mr. Derstine.
  

12            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  I'm ready to proceed with
  

13   Ms. Darling, but she's giving me the five sign.  And
  

14   before she gave me the five sign, I was going to give her
  

15   the five sign.  So if we could have a quick five-minute
  

16   break, and then we'll be ready to go.
  

17            CHMN. CHENAL:  A five-minute break is fine.
  

18            (A recess was taken from 2:18 p.m. to 2:40 p.m.)
  

19            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Are we ready to begin
  

20   the afternoon session after the five-minute recess?
  

21            Okay.  Very good.  Any questions of the
  

22   Committee before we turn it over to the applicant and
  

23   start with Ms. Darling?
  

24            (No response.)
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Mr. Derstine, I don't
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 1   know if you or Ms. DeCorse is going to --
  

 2            MR. DERSTINE:  It's my turn now.
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
  

 4            MR. DERSTINE:  And looking at the agenda, I know
  

 5   it's quarter to 3, but -- so we had another break planned
  

 6   at 3.  I assume we'll slide that back.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  We'll slide that back.
  

 8            MR. DERSTINE:  But Ms. Darling is reminding me
  

 9   that there are cookies that will be delivered sometime
  

10   around 3.  So at some appropriate time, we'll get to the
  

11   cookies.  We'll find a good breaking point in her
  

12   testimony to make our way to those.
  

13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.
  

14
  

15                        RENEE DARLING,
  

16   called as a witness on behalf of the applicant, having
  

17   been previously first duly sworn by the Chairman to speak
  

18   the truth and nothing but the truth, was examined and
  

19   testified as follows:
  

20
  

21                      DIRECT EXAMINATION
  

22   BY MR. DERSTINE:
  

23       Q.   Ms. Darling, I think you are sworn under oath,
  

24   but for the transcript, state your name again for the
  

25   record, please.
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 1       A.   Renee Darling.
  

 2       Q.   Ms. Darling, you are a senior environmental and
  

 3   land use planner for TEP, or you were at the time we
  

 4   prepared these materials.  What's your title now?
  

 5       A.   T&D supervisor.
  

 6       Q.   And that's a promotion?
  

 7       A.   Yes.
  

 8       Q.   And at the time of the preparation of the
  

 9   application and the public process and much of what
  

10   you'll testify to here this afternoon, you were the
  

11   senior environmental and land use planner?
  

12       A.   Yes.
  

13       Q.   Okay.  So let's go ahead and, using your
  

14   PowerPoint presentation, which we'll get to in a minute,
  

15   but advance your slide and remind the Committee about
  

16   your employment and your education and your experience.
  

17       A.   I've been employed with TEP for three years.
  

18   For this project, I was the senior environmental land use
  

19   planner.
  

20            I oversaw the alternative route analysis.  I
  

21   also oversee other parts of the permitting of the project
  

22   besides this permit.  I oversaw the resource studies that
  

23   were completed for the exhibits and oversaw the public
  

24   involvement process.
  

25            And I have a bachelor's degree in botany in 1991
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 1   and then post-degree education in project management and
  

 2   transmission line siting and public involvement.
  

 3            I was an environmental consultant from 1994
  

 4   until I joined TEP three years ago.
  

 5       Q.   Okay.  You know, as we spent the morning and
  

 6   then part of the afternoon, the major focus of this case
  

 7   is going to be these three routes, how they compare,
  

 8   their impacts, the factors that the siting Committee is
  

 9   required by statute to consider.  And that's going to be
  

10   really the subject of your testimony this afternoon;
  

11   right?
  

12       A.   Correct.
  

13       Q.   Okay.  Let's start before we get into that and
  

14   talk about the exhibits that you prepared.  You prepared
  

15   your direct testimony, which is marked as TEP
  

16   Exhibit 3 -- or, I'm sorry, TEP Exhibit 5.  And you
  

17   prepared a PowerPoint presentation, which is marked as
  

18   TEP Exhibit 6.
  

19            Let me start with TEP-5, your direct testimony.
  

20   Was that prepared by you or under your direction?
  

21       A.   Yes.
  

22       Q.   Do you have any corrections or additions to your
  

23   prefiled direct testimony, which is marked as TEP-5?
  

24       A.   No.
  

25       Q.   Is the testimony that's presented in TEP-5 true
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 1   and correct to the best of your knowledge?
  

 2       A.   Yes, it is.
  

 3       Q.   If I asked you the questions that are set forth
  

 4   in TEP-5, would your answers today be the same?
  

 5       A.   Yes, they would.
  

 6       Q.   Okay.  And let me ask you about TEP-6, your
  

 7   PowerPoint presentation.  That's what's being screened on
  

 8   the left side of the screens here?
  

 9       A.   Yes, it is.
  

10       Q.   Have you reviewed your PowerPoint presentation
  

11   since it was filed?
  

12       A.   Yes, I have.
  

13       Q.   Still the information presented there is
  

14   correct?
  

15       A.   Other than my title.
  

16       Q.   Okay.  Which is an important change -- important
  

17   to you.  And congratulations, way by the way.
  

18       A.   Thank you.
  

19       Q.   But other than that, you have no corrections?
  

20       A.   No, I do not.
  

21       Q.   The information to be presented in your
  

22   PowerPoint presentation, that information is true and
  

23   correct?
  

24       A.   Yes, it is.
  

25       Q.   In my opening, I described this case as
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 1   presenting the challenge of connecting two substations
  

 2   across Pima County and the City of Tucson with several
  

 3   miles of transmission line and trying to minimize those
  

 4   impacts on residents, businesses, mobile home courts, all
  

 5   the things that are in this part of town.
  

 6            Can we take a step back and just have you talk
  

 7   about kind of what the TEP's philosophy or methodology is
  

 8   in approaching this kind of a case.
  

 9       A.   Our goal is to use existing infrastructure and
  

10   corridors, to the extent practical, while taking into
  

11   consideration the environmental resources in the area and
  

12   to work with the public and stakeholders to understand
  

13   what their concerns are.
  

14       Q.   Okay.  Maybe start with kind of step 1 in the
  

15   planning process of bringing a project like this, and
  

16   this project in particular, forward.
  

17       A.   Step 1 is once we know the end points of the
  

18   project, is to develop a study area.
  

19            So the study area for this project, we extended
  

20   east to basically the Davis-Monthan Air Force Base
  

21   boundary to the north to 36th Street because that's where
  

22   the --
  

23       Q.   And can you use your laser pointer --
  

24       A.   Sure.  I'm sorry.
  

25       Q.   -- to direct and show us on the maps.
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 1       A.   I assume everybody knows what I'm talking about.
  

 2   I'm sorry.
  

 3            So here's Davis-Monthan Air Force Base.  So we
  

 4   extend it to the east boundary here, which is this
  

 5   black-and-white hatched line to the base generally.  And
  

 6   then 36th Street on the north, because this is the end
  

 7   point for Kino.  And then down to Drexel because we had
  

 8   an existing 138kV line that runs through there, and it
  

 9   was in the initial consideration potentially using that
  

10   same corridor.  It dropped off very quickly.  And then on
  

11   the west, as far as Park Avenue, we didn't look beyond
  

12   that.
  

13       Q.   And how do you make those judgments about how
  

14   far to extend the study area?
  

15       A.   It's based on our existing facilities.
  

16   Obviously, we don't want to go looping too far in any one
  

17   direction out of our way.
  

18            And there is a poster behind me that shows our
  

19   initial study area, our preliminary study area, which is
  

20   what we started with in our first public meeting, and
  

21   that got changed to this based on -- and expanded based
  

22   on, you know, input from the public and the stakeholders.
  

23   So it kind of morphed into being larger and more on the
  

24   south than it was initially.
  

25       Q.   Okay.  And when you're saying "this," you're
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 1   referring to slide 3 of your PowerPoint marked as TEP-5;
  

 2   right?
  

 3       A.   Yes, I am.
  

 4       Q.   So once you've kind of defined the study area,
  

 5   then what's kind of the next step in the process?
  

 6       A.   We start looking at what resource studies we
  

 7   need to do in the study area.  And that's based on the
  

 8   criteria within the statute, the Arizona Corporation
  

 9   Commission statute.  And also we look at all of the
  

10   existing infrastructure that's there, so the major
  

11   roadways, the utilities, our existing infrastructure,
  

12   zoning, visual impacts, concerns from all of the
  

13   stakeholders.
  

14            For example, we have in this area Arizona
  

15   Department of Transportation, Union Pacific Railroad, the
  

16   Air Force Base.  We have neighborhood associations.  We
  

17   have business owners.  We have Pima County, the City of
  

18   Tucson.
  

19            So just identifying who all of those entities
  

20   are and making our first contact with them so that we can
  

21   get them into the stakeholder process if they're
  

22   interested, if they have concerns.
  

23       Q.   Okay.  And you mentioned the -- taking into
  

24   account what's required by statute.  So what you're
  

25   referring to is 40-360.06, which sets forth the factors
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 1   that the Siting Committee is directed to consider.  In a
  

 2   sort of case like this, those include fish, wildlife, and
  

 3   plant life and associated forms of life; noise emissions;
  

 4   proposed availability of the site to public for
  

 5   recreational purposes; existing scenic areas, historic
  

 6   sites, structures, archeological sites; and the catch-all
  

 7   of the total environment of the area.
  

 8            Is that what you're referring to?
  

 9       A.   Yes.
  

10       Q.   And those are the factors that you're going to
  

11   be testifying to as we move on in your testimony?
  

12       A.   The majority of them.  Mr. Beck testified to --
  

13   did you testify to EMF?
  

14            And communications.
  

15       Q.   Okay.  So you mentioned these studies.  Can you
  

16   summarize the studies that were performed that address
  

17   the factors set forth in the statute?
  

18       A.   My slides are behind.
  

19            Yes.  We conducted a biological evaluation.  We
  

20   had an outside consultant do that as well as the cultural
  

21   resources records search.
  

22            In-house, we did the land use analysis, the
  

23   noise assessment, the recreation assessment.  And the
  

24   visual simulations were completed by an outside
  

25   consultant as well.
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 1       Q.   Okay.  So the biological evaluation, that's the
  

 2   vegetation, fish, wildlife, those are the kinds of things
  

 3   that are being studied and examined and the impacts on
  

 4   that under your heading of Biological Factors; right?
  

 5       A.   Correct.
  

 6       Q.   Okay.  So let's -- why don't you start and walk
  

 7   us through the biological study work that was performed
  

 8   for this project.
  

 9       A.   So we looked at federally listed special status
  

10   species as well as general wildlife and vegetation
  

11   impacts and migratory birds.  It was all written up -- or
  

12   researched and written up in a biological evaluation.
  

13            The biological evaluation identifies what the
  

14   concerns are and what the potential impacts are and what
  

15   mitigation we could do to offset any impacts.
  

16            The evaluation identified 13 special status
  

17   species and no critical habitats.  The biologists then
  

18   did a field survey of the three alternatives, and they
  

19   identified the potential for three of those species to
  

20   occur within the study area along one or all of the
  

21   corridors.  And I'll get into that in more detail.
  

22            The first species was the lesser long-nosed bat,
  

23   which uses saguaros and agaves in the project area for
  

24   food.  They're nectar-feeding bats.  It was listed as an
  

25   endangered species, but it was delisted in May of 2018,
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 1   which was after the study had been done.  So,
  

 2   technically, there's no requirements for us to do
  

 3   anything for the protection of that species.  However, it
  

 4   would be unlikely that we would have affected the habitat
  

 5   anyway as it's not in our plans to remove any saguaros or
  

 6   agaves from any of the alignments if any of the
  

 7   alternatives were built.
  

 8       Q.   Can I stop you right there?
  

 9       A.   Yes.
  

10       Q.   So stepping back one minute, so the first thing
  

11   that was done in terms of the biological study work is
  

12   that TEP conducted a biological evaluation.  And in that
  

13   evaluation, they identified 13 special status species
  

14   that may occur within the study area; is that correct?
  

15       A.   That's correct.
  

16       Q.   And what is a special status species?
  

17       A.   It can be anything from a locally listed, by the
  

18   Arizona Game and Fish Department, as something
  

19   vulnerable.  It could be a federally listed endangered or
  

20   threatened species.  So it just means special status.  It
  

21   holds -- some jurisdiction considers it to be vulnerable,
  

22   sensitive, and so it's a listed.
  

23       Q.   Okay.  But then you went on to say there's no
  

24   critical habitat in the study area.  So although there
  

25   are these 13 special status species, there's no
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 1   designated critical habitat that supports any or any all
  

 2   of those 13 species?
  

 3       A.   Right.  Well, a critical habitat designation is
  

 4   something the Fish and Wildlife Service can place along
  

 5   with a species.  So if a species is federally listed, it
  

 6   can also have associated critical habitat.
  

 7            So, for example, southwestern willow flycatcher
  

 8   is endangered, and it has limited habitat available to
  

 9   it, so that associated habitat where it's known to occupy
  

10   becomes critical habitat.  So it becomes an extra layer
  

11   of protection.  Not only can you not impact the species
  

12   itself, you can't impact its habitat.  The lesser one is
  

13   that.
  

14            And there other two species that I will discuss
  

15   next do not have critical habitat because they have a
  

16   broader habitat that they use.  They use saguaros and
  

17   agaves, the bat does, anywhere that they're available to
  

18   it, so it's impossible to associate critical habitat with
  

19   it.
  

20       Q.   And I think I misstated your testimony.  You
  

21   screened for these 13 special status species and found
  

22   only three as occurring possibly within the study area;
  

23   is that right?
  

24       A.   Right.  So, initially, when I do a broad
  

25   screening, you show the whole study area.  13 species
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 1   came up as potentially occurring.  And that's based on
  

 2   very general guidelines.  And then you have a specialist,
  

 3   like a biologist, look closer and actually walk the area,
  

 4   look at the area, associate what they're seeing with
  

 5   those species' requirements, and that's how they narrow
  

 6   it down.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

 8            MEMBER WOODALL:  Ms. Darling, are you using a
  

 9   database provided by any agency for purposes of doing
  

10   this review?
  

11            MS. DARLING:  Yes.  So we use Fish and
  

12   Wildlife -- the United States Fish and Wildlife Services'
  

13   database as well as the Arizona Game and Fish
  

14   Department's database.
  

15            MEMBER WOODALL:  And I could sit at home in my
  

16   pajamas and do that?
  

17            MS. DARLING:  Yes.
  

18            MEMBER WOODALL:  It's no special access?
  

19            MS. DARLING:  No.
  

20       Q.   BY MR. DERSTINE:  So you were starting -- you
  

21   were telling us about the lesser long-nosed bat.  And go
  

22   back and kind of summarize what the findings were for
  

23   this the western yellow bat.
  

24       A.   I hadn't gotten to the western yellow bat.
  

25       Q.   Oh, am I jumping ahead to the wrong bat?
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 1       A.   Yes.  We were on the lesser long-nosed bat,
  

 2   which I said was delisted.  And even though it was
  

 3   delisted, we still do not intend to impact any lesser
  

 4   long-nosed bat habitat.  If we find that we had to impact
  

 5   an agave or saguaro, they're easily movable within the
  

 6   right-of-way, so we'll make sure to do that if that
  

 7   becomes the case.
  

 8       Q.   Okay.
  

 9       A.   Do you want me to continue?
  

10       Q.   Please.
  

11       A.   Okay.  So the next species is the western yellow
  

12   bat, and it is listed as a Tier 1B vulnerable species by
  

13   the Arizona Game and Fish Department.  It only has the
  

14   potential to occur in the study area along Benson
  

15   Highway, which is our preferred Alternative A, up in this
  

16   area, where there are Washington fan palms planted
  

17   along -- and you can see kind of in this picture, this is
  

18   along Benson Highway, these Washington fan palms.  So
  

19   this species only occurs in the dead fronds.  It's where
  

20   it hibernates, within the dead fronds of the Washington
  

21   fan palm.
  

22            So, again, it's not a listed species, it's not
  

23   threatened or endangered, but it is on the vulnerable
  

24   list.  So impacts, direct impacts, would be removal of
  

25   the palm trees.
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 1            We have no intention -- we're on the opposite
  

 2   side of Benson Highway, and we have no intention of
  

 3   removing any palm trees as part of the project.  If
  

 4   Alternative A is approved, we will have more discussion
  

 5   with Arizona Game and Fish regarding any indirect impacts
  

 6   and whether we need to take that into consideration
  

 7   during maybe timing of construction.  But as I said, no
  

 8   direct impacts are anticipated.
  

 9            The third species is the western burrowing owl.
  

10   It is a Fish and Wildlife Service national bird of
  

11   concern.  It can occur on any of the three alternative
  

12   alignments within undisturbed open habitat.
  

13            So, for example, the Bridges site, where it's
  

14   undeveloped, and in this area, we've talked about a
  

15   number of times where Pima County is intending to expand
  

16   the Kino Sports Complex.
  

17            There's a few other areas, like back in here
  

18   coming up.  There's a little bit right on Ajo.  And over
  

19   on Alvernon near our campus kind of in this area, there's
  

20   a little bit of undisturbed habitat.
  

21            So the field work that was done for the
  

22   biological evaluation did not identify any burrowing owl
  

23   burrows or individuals.  However, they didn't do the
  

24   extensive survey that's required to totally rule them
  

25   out.  So once we do have an alignment approved, that
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 1   would be done prior to construction.  And, again,
  

 2   mitigation for them is to move them to another burrow
  

 3   outside of the area to be disturbed.
  

 4       Q.   Okay.  Other than the biological evaluation and
  

 5   the screening of these special status species that you've
  

 6   just covered, was there any additional biological
  

 7   evaluations or study work that were done?
  

 8       A.   Well, the biological evaluation also considered
  

 9   general wildlife and vegetation, migratory birds, not
  

10   just weeds and those kinds of things.  There was nothing
  

11   significant identified.  TEP has best management
  

12   practices for construction that addresses those kinds of
  

13   concerns.  So nothing that distinguishes one alternative
  

14   from another or is of any major concern.
  

15       Q.   Okay.  I think it was during the flyover that
  

16   Mr. Beck narrated, Member Woodall had a question about --
  

17   there appeared to be some vegetation, whether or not
  

18   there were trees or -- can you recall that and can you
  

19   speak to that?
  

20       A.   Yes.  Along Ajo Way, there are some trees.  I
  

21   don't recall the engineer identifying any of them needing
  

22   to be removed.  Sorry, the project's design engineer.
  

23            There were some trees along the Park Avenue, but
  

24   they were on the west side.  So those were avoided as
  

25   well.
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 1            So I don't think there's any tree removal that
  

 2   we're anticipating, and the lower shrubs and things like
  

 3   that that landscape the rights-of-way don't need to be
  

 4   impacted.  If a pole had to be placed right there, again,
  

 5   that's something that we could transplant or mitigate by
  

 6   planting a new one.
  

 7       Q.   Okay.  So that covers kind of the biological
  

 8   studies and evaluation that were performed concerning
  

 9   potential impacts from this project.  I guess the next
  

10   kind of overarching category or what you've referred to
  

11   as nonbiological studies, can you summarize those.
  

12       A.   So that was the land use analysis, the noise
  

13   assessment, the EMF study that Mr. Beck already
  

14   discussed, recreation, and the historic sites and
  

15   archeological sites.
  

16       Q.   Let's start with the land use because,
  

17   obviously, that's a big issue in terms of the impacts and
  

18   the concerns that residents and businesses along those
  

19   routes have concerning this project.  So why don't you
  

20   start us there.
  

21       A.   Most definitely.  I think land use is probably
  

22   the biggest concern to everyone because of the urban
  

23   environment.
  

24            So how we start with assessing land use is we
  

25   look at ownership, and then we look at what are the
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 1   existing land uses in the study area and what are the
  

 2   planned land uses that we know of.  So it's usually
  

 3   something -- planned land use is something that's
  

 4   documented and close to being pretty sure that it's going
  

 5   to happen, not generally like a verbal conversation where
  

 6   somebody thinks they're going to plan on doing something.
  

 7       Q.   So you're looking through PAD amendments,
  

 8   zoning, things that are of record?
  

 9       A.   Correct.
  

10            So ownership in the project area is all private
  

11   or jurisdictional.  So it's either owned by Pima County,
  

12   the City of Tucson, or private landowners, except for
  

13   maybe the ADOT right-of-way and the UPRR right-of-way.
  

14   These are like transportation corridors.
  

15            But where the line would be placed in any of the
  

16   alternatives is either on City or County road
  

17   right-of-way or on private land.
  

18            This black hatch represents all of the Pima
  

19   County's jurisdiction in the project area.  So you can
  

20   see it's mostly along the west -- sorry, the east side of
  

21   the project area and going up Palo Verde and a little bit
  

22   onto Ajo Way.
  

23            And then this is the City of Tucson's
  

24   jurisdiction.  You can see all of the previously black
  

25   hatched is gone, and the remainder is the blue hatching,
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 1   which is, I guess, the majority of -- two-thirds,
  

 2   probably, of the project alignments.
  

 3            And then just to show you that the South Tucson
  

 4   was in our study area.  However, none of the alternatives
  

 5   actually impacts South Tucson.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

 7            MEMBER NOLAND:  Yes.  Can you go back -- yes,
  

 8   right there.  Tell me again what the black hatch is.
  

 9            MS. DARLING:  That's Pima County jurisdiction.
  

10   So that's Pima County and not City of Tucson.
  

11            MEMBER NOLAND:  Not ownership, jurisdiction?
  

12            MS. DARLING:  Yes, just jurisdiction.  Sorry.
  

13       Q.   BY MR. DERSTINE:  And then on the jurisdiction
  

14   point, does TEP have agreements with the City of Tucson
  

15   and Pima County?
  

16       A.   We do.
  

17       Q.   And that gives you access to road right-of-way
  

18   under the terms of those agreements?
  

19       A.   Correct.
  

20       Q.   Okay.
  

21       A.   Okay.  So this is the -- this is the land use
  

22   map.  So this is the zoning -- either City or County
  

23   zoning in the study area.  And I know it's very colorful,
  

24   very hard to interpret, so I will do my best to kind of
  

25   give you an idea of what's going on here without
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 1   blinding ...
  

 2            So it's really hard to see, but here is I-10
  

 3   just to give you an idea, B.  Here is Benson Highway.
  

 4   And here is Ajo.
  

 5            So this is the base.  Down here is our campus.
  

 6   These gray colors all in here are industrial zoning.
  

 7            The purple -- all of the purple and this kind of
  

 8   lighter colored purple here and down in here, that's all
  

 9   residential.
  

10            And then the pinks and the reds are commercial
  

11   zoning.
  

12            So just to give you an idea, Alternative A
  

13   follows along Irvington.  So industrial into the
  

14   commercial corridor along Benson Highway.
  

15            I realize there are a couple mobile home parks
  

16   and the Sierra -- Sierra Court is zoned commercial, but
  

17   it's a nonconforming -- it has a nonconforming
  

18   residential use, just to let you know.  Doesn't make it
  

19   not residential.  It has residential -- people are living
  

20   there.
  

21            And then up Park, you'll see a combination of
  

22   commercial and residential zoning.
  

23            Along B, we have, again, same as the beginning,
  

24   that's the industrial use, industrial use.  We get into
  

25   the underlying use where the park is, the Kino Sports
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 1   Complex, is commercial.
  

 2            And then residential as you get up into
  

 3   Campbell.
  

 4            And then Ajo Way, industrial, industrial.  And
  

 5   then the underlying zoning under this park is residential
  

 6   on the north side of Ajo and commercial on the south side
  

 7   of Ajo.  And then again back into the residential along
  

 8   Campbell.
  

 9            Are there any clarifications?
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Just a question.
  

11            So it seems like the preferred Route A does
  

12   impact more residential than B or C; is that correct,
  

13   looking at the map?
  

14            MS. DARLING:  It doesn't.  I'm going to get to
  

15   another -- I think it's -- is it next?  There you go.
  

16   Yeah, it's the next one.
  

17            I don't know if it's time to move on.
  

18            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, yeah.  So the next slide,
  

19   she'll show the breakdown and the route by route in terms
  

20   of impacts on residential.
  

21            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
  

22       Q.   BY MR. DERSTINE:  But I guess to wrap up this
  

23   one, Ms. Darling, in terms of --
  

24       A.   I just wanted to clarify that on this one, we
  

25   did talk to Davis-Monthan Air Force Base.  None of the
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 1   alternatives did they feel would have any impacts on
  

 2   their current or future land use plans.
  

 3            We did talk to ADOT, and they are, you know,
  

 4   doing the improvements along Aviation Parkway down
  

 5   Alvernon.  Alvernon will become part of Aviation Parkway
  

 6   and all of the improvements on I-10.  So in -- I don't
  

 7   know which map, actually.
  

 8            On your placemat, place card map, you'll see all
  

 9   those gray areas, the exclusion areas.  So you'll see
  

10   that ADOT -- all of the ADOT plans were excluded from our
  

11   study.  So we didn't consider those as segments to route
  

12   on.  One, because they're not entirely sure where they're
  

13   doing everything, and, two, they've indicated that their
  

14   new policy is not to allow any parallel within their
  

15   right-of-way.
  

16            Obviously, we didn't want to build on
  

17   Davis-Monthan Air Force Base, so they were excluded.  And
  

18   then Union Pacific Railroad, when we contacted them, said
  

19   that they would not allow us to parallel within 300 feet
  

20   either side of the railroad tracks.  So you'll see that
  

21   even fatter line coming out from our campus along
  

22   Contractor's Way is where the railroad turns to the
  

23   north.
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Could you show us that?  It's
  

25   much easier to follow with the laser pointer.
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 1            MS. DARLING:  Going up -- here's the railroad.
  

 2   It goes up like this.  So all of that is excluded from
  

 3   our segment analysis.
  

 4            And then we spoke with ASLD, who has some land
  

 5   south of the Irvington Campus, and, again, no concerns
  

 6   with that.
  

 7            Just to point out future land uses, there are 14
  

 8   recorded development plans in the study area.  Those are
  

 9   indicated in the table in the bottom right of the exhibit
  

10   here, and it's in the application under the land use
  

11   exhibit.  And there are three planned area developments
  

12   as well as the Irvington Campus, which is one of them,
  

13   Irvington Campus, the Bridges, and I think the other one
  

14   is in here, which is a commercial planned area
  

15   development.
  

16            I think I'm done with the slide now.
  

17       Q.   BY MR. DERSTINE:  What is the difference between
  

18   a planned area development and a development permit?
  

19       A.   So development permit is something that meets
  

20   all of the existing zoning.  So the zoning always has
  

21   conditions associated with it, height restrictions,
  

22   access requirements, setback requirements.  So you can go
  

23   get a development plan from the city or the county if you
  

24   can meet all of those restrictions that are placed on
  

25   that zoning.
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 1            A planned area development is where you want to
  

 2   do something different with that zoning, and it's not
  

 3   necessarily rezoning.  So it is -- I mean, a PAD is a
  

 4   rezoning, but it's, a lot of times, when you're going to
  

 5   do a mixed use.  So you take residential, and you make it
  

 6   residential at a higher density or you make it
  

 7   residential and commercial or residential and industrial,
  

 8   those kinds of things.  And so it goes through a
  

 9   different process in order -- but then it becomes like
  

10   its own zoning just for that one little area.
  

11       Q.   Okay.  So as you've said at the beginning,
  

12   there's a lot going on on this Slide 14 to your
  

13   PowerPoint presentation.  But what it communicates is
  

14   that TEP took into account the existing land use, which
  

15   is reflected by all of the colorful boxes and patchwork
  

16   quilt there, as well as future land use, which are
  

17   designated by the numbers that correspond to the box in
  

18   the bottom right of that slide; right?
  

19       A.   Yes.
  

20       Q.   So why don't you move on to the next slide,
  

21   which addresses the Chairman's question about did you --
  

22   did TEP take into account the differing impacts on
  

23   residential areas.
  

24       A.   Yes.  Okay.
  

25            So this is -- the red represents residential
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 1   zoning.  So this is existing zoning.  It's not
  

 2   necessarily existing use.  It's zoning.  And I will --
  

 3   let me expand or -- so we're looking at zoning.  The
  

 4   green portions along each of the corridors represents
  

 5   where the corridor, which we looked at 150-foot-wide
  

 6   corridor, touches residential zoning.  And then for each
  

 7   alternative determined what percent of the route touches
  

 8   zoning.
  

 9            So A, actually, based on zoning alone, existing
  

10   zoning, is the lowest.  It's 22.8.  And B is 61.3.  And C
  

11   is 43.8.
  

12       Q.   What do those numbers designate?
  

13       A.   They designate the percent of the route that
  

14   touches residential zoning.
  

15            So I also --
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Hamway.
  

17            Excuse me.
  

18            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So the mobile home court we were
  

19   just talking about, you said, had a --
  

20            MS. DARLING:  Commercial.
  

21            MEMBER HAMWAY:  -- commercial.  So is it -- how
  

22   does it show up on here?
  

23            MS. DARLING:  It doesn't show up because it
  

24   didn't have residential zoning.
  

25            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Right.  So if you were to
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 1   include that in your percentages, what would that do?
  

 2            MS. DARLING:  So it would raise the percent that
  

 3   A touches residential zoning.
  

 4            So what I did was, based on comments I
  

 5   received -- heard this morning from everyone is I went
  

 6   and calculated -- because we don't normally look at
  

 7   things in kind of a -- it would be a biased way of
  

 8   looking at it if we went in and said, Well, you know,
  

 9   this isn't zoned that way, but we know or maybe we think
  

10   this is how it's going to happen.
  

11            For example, even on the Bridges, this is not
  

12   zoned residential; right?  And this is zoned residential,
  

13   but it's a park.  So we just go with what the facts are
  

14   because, otherwise, we have to make judgment calls, this
  

15   or that, and then things don't get looked at equally,
  

16   necessarily, because it's our judgment.
  

17            So I went ahead and did a biased or judgment
  

18   call, and I added in this length of where we understand
  

19   may be a residential and this little bit that wasn't
  

20   counted as residential and this little bit right here.
  

21   So what that did was it raised the percent to 32 percent
  

22   from 22.8.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let me -- Ms. Darling, let me ask
  

24   a question.
  

25            I understand what you said.
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 1            MS. DARLING:  Yes.
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  So where the mobile home park is
  

 3   somewhere along Benson there, you included that as part
  

 4   of the percentage; is that correct?
  

 5            MS. DARLING:  Yes.  As well as the
  

 6   residential -- potential residential zoning at the
  

 7   Bridges.
  

 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  But that area is going to become
  

 9   residential, is it not?
  

10            MS. DARLING:  Yes.
  

11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Did you include that?
  

12            MS. DARLING:  Yes.
  

13            CHMN. CHENAL:  And when you said the little bit,
  

14   my understanding is this is going to be entirely
  

15   residential, isn't it?
  

16            MS. DARLING:  So I added all of this.
  

17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.
  

18            MS. DARLING:  Okay.  So see where the green is
  

19   already?
  

20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Right.
  

21            MS. DARLING:  So whatever didn't have green
  

22   right there and then this little bit -- because these are
  

23   overlapping.  I didn't want to count them twice; right?
  

24   So both sides of the road are residential.  So it's
  

25   this -- it's by length.  It's the percent by length.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I understand better.  When
  

 2   you said "that little bit," it's the entire side of that
  

 3   project.
  

 4            MS. DARLING:  Right.  And I did all the entire
  

 5   left side of the project and then the entire right side
  

 6   of the project that hadn't been previously captured as
  

 7   well as the bit along Benson Highway.
  

 8            And then I -- for the other ones --
  

 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let me just -- slow down.
  

10            So looking just at A, when you include this
  

11   section here and over to there, the percentage goes from
  

12   22.8 to what?
  

13            MS. DARLING:  32.  It adds 10 percent.
  

14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Member Noland.
  

15            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  

16            This is really not helpful to me.
  

17            MS. DARLING:  Okay.
  

18            MEMBER NOLAND:  Because you've included actually
  

19   built-out courthouse, juvenile center, detention center,
  

20   parks, and used that as residential.
  

21            You've -- if that's residential that you've said
  

22   on the other side of the freeway, that's going to be Pima
  

23   County, going to be more parks, then you're showing it as
  

24   residential.
  

25            And I think it's -- you're mixing apples and
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 1   oranges for me.  I'd like to know what the current use
  

 2   is.  If you have a map of current use, is this
  

 3   commercial?  Is this business?  Are there residences
  

 4   here?  This is how we have looked at it previously.  And
  

 5   I can't wrap my head around which route is best with this
  

 6   particular map.
  

 7            I'm sorry.  I know you intended to do it the
  

 8   best you can and show existing zoning, but existing
  

 9   zoning doesn't mean existing land use.
  

10            MS. DARLING:  Right.
  

11            MEMBER NOLAND:  And so this doesn't do anything
  

12   for me in the percentages.  I'd like to know, what is the
  

13   percentage of impacted residences, existing residences,
  

14   and maybe planned residences?  What is commercial?  What
  

15   is business that are actually businesses or commercial,
  

16   not something -- I understand you need commercial zoning
  

17   to do -- or you're allowed to do like a mobile home park,
  

18   and there are apartments and things like that.
  

19            But this -- I'm sorry, this just isn't doing it
  

20   for me.  I can't put the numbers together and really make
  

21   a decision on which is more of an impact to residential
  

22   facilities as compared to business or commercial or
  

23   existing parks or whatever.
  

24            MS. DARLING:  So I did recalculate for all three
  

25   routes doing what you just said.  So that is how the A
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 1   got recalculated to 38 percent.  And I can go on and show
  

 2   you how I recalculated B and C.
  

 3            MEMBER NOLAND:  Do you have a map?
  

 4            MS. DARLING:  Or we can do a new map, if you'd
  

 5   like, and bring it tomorrow.
  

 6            MEMBER NOLAND:  I would really -- I'm sorry if
  

 7   that's a lot of work, but I would like you to take out
  

 8   the red where you've got a detention center and you've
  

 9   got parks and you've got a hospital.  Those are just kind
  

10   of, as far as I'm concerned, off the table as far as
  

11   residential.
  

12            MS. DARLING:  Okay.  We will redo the map and
  

13   have it for you tomorrow.
  

14            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, is that a fair
  

15   request?
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think it is.  I mean, I --
  

17            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I do.
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think it is.  I don't think
  

19   anyone disagrees it's a fair request.  I think we're
  

20   trying to get to -- I mean, it's how you approach it.  I
  

21   get it.
  

22            But I think what you'd like to see is more what
  

23   the actual use is, the reality of what we're looking at
  

24   versus, you know, the zoning or the planned use when we
  

25   already know it's full of, you know, nonconforming uses
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 1   and, you know -- the impact is on the residential is what
  

 2   we're getting at.  And so let's see what that is, and I
  

 3   think a new map would be helpful.
  

 4            Member Woodall.
  

 5            MS. DARLING:  I was just going to say, so the
  

 6   reason we use existing, one example -- and I want to know
  

 7   how you want -- if you want me to redo a map, how you
  

 8   want me to handle it.
  

 9            For example, this whole area has a development
  

10   plan.  It has a residential development plan in place.
  

11   Pima County has indicated that they want to expand the
  

12   Kino Sports Complex to this area.  They have no formal
  

13   plan to do so.  And that's why, like I said in the
  

14   beginning, is we don't want to be making biased decisions
  

15   about what do we count as residential and what do we not
  

16   count as residential.
  

17            And I understand your point about parks.  The
  

18   underlying zoning is still residential.  And so it's just
  

19   trying to make that decision of when to include something
  

20   and when not to include it.  And I'm more than happy to
  

21   do a new map.
  

22            I want to know, are we going to go with they
  

23   indicate they want to make something here a park?
  

24            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, can I just help?
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Absolutely.
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 1            MEMBER NOLAND:  Let me see if I can just help
  

 2   you a little bit.
  

 3            What is currently built out like the Pima County
  

 4   complexes --
  

 5            MS. DARLING:  Uh-huh.
  

 6            MEMBER NOLAND:  -- they may have underlying
  

 7   residential zoning, but it's not residential.
  

 8            MS. DARLING:  Okay.
  

 9            MEMBER NOLAND:  If it's planned residential,
  

10   make it a different color.
  

11            MS. DARLING:  Okay.
  

12            MEMBER NOLAND:  If there's a plan.  If there's
  

13   no plan, then there's no plan.
  

14            You know, zoning is a really strange thing.  It
  

15   just doesn't always stay that zone, and it -- you don't
  

16   know when it's going to get built.  So just do what's
  

17   there currently.  If there's an actual plan, show it as
  

18   that.  It's a plan.  Planned development.  It doesn't
  

19   mean it's going to happen.  We all know that.  But don't
  

20   make it all look residential.  I think it's a little
  

21   misleading.  Just do some different colors, I think.
  

22            MS. DARLING:  So, just to reiterate, south of
  

23   I-10, the plan is residential.  Pima County has indicated
  

24   they want to make it a park.  How would you -- do I go
  

25   with the plan that's registered, or do I go with a verbal
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 1   from somebody who says they --
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Is it that area?
  

 3            MS. DARLING:  Yes.  Because it will have a major
  

 4   impact on the percent.  That's what I'm saying.
  

 5            MEMBER NOLAND:  Exactly.  That one's hard.  I
  

 6   think you've done it correct in that respect.  You can
  

 7   just put "slash Pima County may develop a park."  And
  

 8   it's going to throw off the --
  

 9            MS. DARLING:  So you understand why we did what
  

10   we did, is that we didn't want to say -- I mean, it's
  

11   residential zoning where there's park now on the north
  

12   side of Ajo.  Technically, Pima County could sell it and
  

13   make it residential.  I'm just saying, this is why we
  

14   don't make judgments of our own.
  

15            MEMBER NOLAND:  Well, the other thing,
  

16   Mr. Chairman, is you can do existing residential also.
  

17   You can do that as a separate color and a percentage as
  

18   compared to planned residential.
  

19            I've never seen a presentation using this method
  

20   before, and I think you now understand why it's maybe a
  

21   little confusing.
  

22            MEMBER WOODALL:  If I may, not to torment you
  

23   further, but I have a question about why we're just going
  

24   to be using -- since we're measuring linear feet and
  

25   since some of these developments are going to have a lot
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 1   more people in them than others, I really question about
  

 2   how helpful this is by measuring in linear feet when, in
  

 3   one 100-foot area, you might have two people, and in
  

 4   another 100-foot area, you might have others.
  

 5            So, frankly, I don't think -- I agree with
  

 6   Member Noland, I don't think this was helpful, but I
  

 7   don't know trying to do it again is going to be helpful
  

 8   because I question the underpinnings of your analysis.
  

 9            I mean, not to be -- critique, but I don't know
  

10   how it helps us because there are more people going to be
  

11   in certain areas.  The mere fact of zoning is not
  

12   helpful.  I know in the past, you -- there's an exhibit
  

13   that you normally file about existing land uses, and I'm
  

14   assuming that you have one in the application.
  

15            MS. DARLING:  Uh-huh.
  

16            MEMBER WOODALL:  And then you have a map of
  

17   that; correct?
  

18            MS. DARLING:  Yeah.  That's the one that we
  

19   looked at before.  It's zoning.  Yeah.
  

20            MEMBER WOODALL:  Well, that's existing uses or
  

21   that's just zoning?
  

22            MS. DARLING:  I don't think there's an existing
  

23   uses map.
  

24            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  That was one of my
  

25   questions.
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 1            MS. DARLING:  Yeah.
  

 2            MEMBER WOODALL:  But, anyway, I don't find this
  

 3   helpful at all because I don't know how many people are
  

 4   being impacted.  So that's just my two cents.
  

 5            MS. DARLING:  So resident -- you know,
  

 6   obviously, the residents in the area are the ones that
  

 7   are concerned about it being in proximity to them.  And
  

 8   so we developed a way for them to compare one route to
  

 9   another.  And that's what this was supposed to be.  And
  

10   we don't know how many people are in one home or another,
  

11   you know.  We can't go by the number of people.
  

12            MEMBER WOODALL:  I personally would not find it
  

13   worth the whistle -- I mean, the whistle would not be
  

14   worth the penny here for you to redo this.  I just don't
  

15   think it's helpful in the first place, but that's just
  

16   me.  Member Noland has the expertise here.
  

17            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, this is the last
  

18   I'm going to say on this for the moment.  What I want to
  

19   know right now is the existing residential uses.  That's
  

20   my bottom line.  And I want to know how many along A, B,
  

21   and C.  You know, businesses, if they're existing, you
  

22   know, and they're going to be impacted, then maybe we
  

23   want to know that too.
  

24            We can't predict the future.  We don't know if
  

25   it's going to be a park or a residential community.  But
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 1   right now, the existing residential uses is what I'm
  

 2   concerned about on all of the routes.
  

 3            MS. DARLING:  Will do.
  

 4            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, Member Noland, so a
  

 5   revised map showing existing residential uses as well as
  

 6   a breakdown of how they have -- the company has
  

 7   calculated those percentages of existing residential use
  

 8   along each route is what you're looking for?
  

 9            MEMBER NOLAND:  For me personally, that would be
  

10   a big help, Mr. Chairman.  And I think we've done that
  

11   before.  We've seen it before, and I think TEP has done
  

12   it that way before on other transmission lines, yes.
  

13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

14            MEMBER WOODALL:  I don't know that the
  

15   percentages are going to help me that much.  Looking at
  

16   the diagrams are probably going to help me because,
  

17   again, as I say, there's going to be people within
  

18   certain linear areas.  So I just need to know where they
  

19   are, so big blobs would be fine.  I don't need you to
  

20   calculate percentages because I don't find that very
  

21   helpful.
  

22            MS. DARLING:  Okay.
  

23            MR. DERSTINE:  To all of those points, I think
  

24   our objective is to try to give you information, whether
  

25   it's visual -- I mean, you can see -- from this map, you
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 1   can see what appear to be residential areas and houses.
  

 2   And at the same time, to Member Noland's point, we have
  

 3   shown you the existing zoning for residential areas that
  

 4   are not residential areas today.
  

 5            MEMBER NOLAND:  And probably never will be.
  

 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Maybe never will be.  But, you
  

 7   know, and so it's -- we want to present you with the
  

 8   information you need so you can submit your judgments and
  

 9   the judgments you have to make in the case.
  

10            So we'll prepare a revised map as you've
  

11   described it, Member Noland, and we'll provide you with
  

12   that information.  We'll provide the percentages and
  

13   calculate them.  Whether you find them helpful or not,
  

14   some may and some may not.
  

15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  That's probably a good way
  

16   to do it.
  

17            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  With that in mind, would it help
  

19   to go back to a previous slide that -- what I'm trying
  

20   to -- I'm struggling here.  Was it a zoning -- a previous
  

21   slide, was it zoning?
  

22            MS. DARLING:  This is zoning.  And then the
  

23   planned development that isn't in place yet are numbered
  

24   on top of the zoning.
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  The slide we were discussing is
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 1   more of a satellite view with an overlay of the routes.
  

 2   This is your typical land use map, and it's much harder
  

 3   to see the overlay of the routes.
  

 4            MS. DARLING:  Right.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  And it's also to a different
  

 6   scale because the other one seems like it's a --
  

 7            MR. DERSTINE:  They are different scales.
  

 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah, it looks like it's a
  

 9   different scale.  So, I don't know, it might be fun to
  

10   see the slide we're looking at, which is the land use,
  

11   with -- is there -- I don't know if there's a way to blow
  

12   that up a little and overlay the routes on top of it so
  

13   we can see that.  That might be helpful to see as well,
  

14   given the conversation we just had.
  

15            MR. DERSTINE:  I think the issue -- and going to
  

16   Member Noland's point and Member Woodall's point, we hear
  

17   you.  It's how we present this information to you so it
  

18   resonates with you and you feel like you're getting the
  

19   information you need to make an informed judgment.
  

20            This is zoning.  To Member Noland's point,
  

21   zoning doesn't necessarily show you what's there.
  

22            Now, to the next slide with all the red all over
  

23   it, I think you can see where there is -- where there are
  

24   existing residential subdivisions.  Other areas have been
  

25   painted red because they are designated as residential
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 1   areas.  And to Member Noland's point, they may or may not
  

 2   turn out to be such.
  

 3            So we'll prepare a new map.  And then if there's
  

 4   a way -- we'll caucus and see if there's a way to better
  

 5   identify what are residential areas along each of the
  

 6   routes so that you feel like you have as much information
  

 7   as you can about -- other than what you gain tomorrow
  

 8   driving the routes and looking and seeing and making some
  

 9   judgments about which route is the best.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah, that sounds like a good
  

11   plan.
  

12            Member Noland and then Member Woodall.
  

13            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, the reason that
  

14   this is somewhat misleading -- and maybe if you
  

15   designated Pima County-owned land, they don't have to
  

16   rezone.  They don't have to do anything.  North of Ajo
  

17   Way is basically a jail for juveniles and some park area.
  

18   They didn't rezone to do that.  So they can put anything
  

19   in there that they want.  It may be a residential zone,
  

20   but they don't have to go by that.  They're a government
  

21   entity that doesn't have to do that.
  

22            MR. DERSTINE:  Understood.
  

23            MEMBER NOLAND:  So if you just maybe designate
  

24   it that that's County land that could be anything, and
  

25   really not -- you could do that up above too where the
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 1   detention center and the courthouse is.
  

 2            It just -- you know, it is apples and oranges,
  

 3   especially with the County land.  And even with City
  

 4   land, if there is any within there that is City-owned
  

 5   land, they have the same kind of latitude to build
  

 6   anything they want.
  

 7            MR. DERSTINE:  And as you well know, Member
  

 8   Noland, in terms of even private developers where they
  

 9   have designated areas as residential, Bridges designated
  

10   a portion of residential, my understanding is some of
  

11   that has changed and has become mixed use or commercial
  

12   use.  These things change over time.
  

13            And so we can't predict the future, and so how
  

14   are we going to base the decision in this case?  And I
  

15   think the existing uses is certainly the valuable way.
  

16   So let's do a better job of presenting you with the
  

17   existing use, and we'll go from there.
  

18            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

20            MEMBER WOODALL:  Ms. Darling, try not to think
  

21   of this as name biased, but rather, you're doing field
  

22   research.  And I think some of the aerials are going to
  

23   help you a lot with this.  I understand your professional
  

24   reservations about you want to do what you know is black
  

25   and white through the land management agency.  I grasp
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 1   that, and I understand the reason why you did what you
  

 2   did.  But just try to look at it as not like being
  

 3   biased, but you're doing field research.
  

 4            MS. DARLING:  Thank you, ma'am.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  This is an interesting case, and
  

 6   we haven't always had alternatives.  And here is a case
  

 7   where we have an alternative that, as Mr. Beck said, at
  

 8   first blush, B was probably -- Alternative B was probably
  

 9   the one that sticks out as the most obvious.  Then you go
  

10   through a process, and then you've got a room packed with
  

11   kids along the wall, and all of a sudden, you know, it
  

12   turns into Alternative A may make the most sense.
  

13            And then the project developer for the area
  

14   around which A goes comes in today and says, Well, we
  

15   think Alternative B is better.  And heretofore, it was
  

16   Alternative A based on the conversation.  So it's not
  

17   just the Committee that seems to be, you know, watching
  

18   the moving target.
  

19            So -- and it's a big -- it's a big issue.  I
  

20   mean, obviously, there's some public sentiment here for
  

21   people that are going to be impacted by this.  And the
  

22   whole purpose of these hearings is really to try to be a
  

23   forum where we take that into consideration.
  

24            So this is one of those where it's not an
  

25   academic exercise.  We're really trying to do the right
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 1   thing.
  

 2            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman.
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

 4            MEMBER NOLAND:  And it's been said a couple of
  

 5   times that the people up off 36th and Campbell feel they
  

 6   always get everything going in their area, but I think
  

 7   it's the same along Benson Highway.  And they've been
  

 8   trying to redevelop and reimage Benson Highway for some
  

 9   time.  It's the gateway into the airport from Aviation
  

10   Highway and across.  And so I think the people along
  

11   there have just as much right to say that things get
  

12   shoved down along Benson Highway.
  

13            And we had one other case where, if you
  

14   remember, went right down along Benson Highway because it
  

15   couldn't go along the freeway.  And a lot of residences
  

16   were impacted.
  

17            So I just -- you know, we've got to look at the
  

18   whole picture.
  

19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.
  

20            MR. DERSTINE:  We have one more slide, and I'd
  

21   like to have Ms. Darling talk about the sensitive
  

22   receptors, which is important information for you to also
  

23   take into account in addition to impacts to residences
  

24   along these three alternative routes, and then that's
  

25   probably a good breaking point for us.
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 1            Is that good?
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  That would be fine.
  

 3            MS. DARLING:  So we also looked at sensitive
  

 4   receptors, which were educational institutions,
  

 5   hospitals, and libraries.  These are areas that people
  

 6   indicate, when you talk to them, are of concern in siting
  

 7   a transmission line next to.
  

 8            We also looked at whether there were any daycare
  

 9   or adult care facilities in this area, and there weren't
  

10   any documented.  So just the results of that are that
  

11   Alternative A has two sensitive receptors here and then
  

12   here.
  

13            CHMN. CHENAL:  And what are those, Ms. Darling?
  

14   I'm sorry.  Maybe if you could explain what a sensitive
  

15   receptor is again.
  

16            MS. DARLING:  It's any educational institution
  

17   like a school, a hospital, or a library.
  

18            And the symbols on the map indicate which type
  

19   it is.
  

20            CHMN. CHENAL:  So what is -- okay.
  

21            MS. DARLING:  School.  This is the library.  A
  

22   school, a school, a school, a school, school, hospital,
  

23   school.  So mainly schools, a hospital, and a library.
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Let me just ask a
  

25   question.  That -- I'm circling what you indicated was an
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 1   educational sensitive receptor.  It looks to me like a G
  

 2   that's in the center of the blue dot there.  And I don't
  

 3   really see --
  

 4            MS. DARLING:  I can't see it from here.
  

 5            MR. DERSTINE:  It's intended to be the flag on a
  

 6   building.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  All Right.  Okay.  Just wanted to
  

 8   make sure we're seeing the same thing.
  

 9            Member Noland.
  

10            MEMBER NOLAND:  Well, Mr. Chairman, I don't even
  

11   know what a sensitive receptor is.  I mean, really, I
  

12   don't know what the definition of that is, and I've never
  

13   heard it used before.
  

14            So Kino Hospital is a sensitive receptor?
  

15            MS. DARLING:  Correct.
  

16            MEMBER NOLAND:  What does that mean?
  

17            MS. DARLING:  So sensitive receptors are used a
  

18   lot in analysis in that when there are sick people,
  

19   children, aged adults, things like that, they become more
  

20   sensitive -- not as sensitive as a residence, but more
  

21   sensitive to the public than commercial zoning or
  

22   industrial zoning.
  

23            So they're just locations where people may be
  

24   more sensitive to the fact that there's a transmission
  

25   line there.  I don't mean like sensitive on their skin or
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 1   something like that.  I mean the perception of a
  

 2   transmission line makes it a more sensitive topic of
  

 3   concern.
  

 4            MEMBER NOLAND:  Okay.  And what is the one that
  

 5   you have on Ajo Way to the west of Kino Hospital?
  

 6            MS. DARLING:  There is an educational -- it's
  

 7   probably like a charter school or -- what do you call
  

 8   those -- applied occupational school.
  

 9            MEMBER NOLAND:  Actually, it's a detention
  

10   center, and there is an educational component within the
  

11   detention center.  They don't have windows, really --
  

12            MS. DARLING:  Okay.
  

13            MEMBER NOLAND:  -- that look out that way.  And
  

14   the courthouse is actually in front of it.
  

15            MS. DARLING:  Okay.
  

16            MEMBER NOLAND:  So I don't think that I would
  

17   consider that a sensitive receptor.
  

18       Q.   BY MR. DERSTINE:  I guess that raises the
  

19   question, how are these sensitive receptors located or
  

20   how do we determine -- are they in a database?
  

21       A.   Yes, it's data.  Pima County and the City of
  

22   Tucson actually identify educational facilities,
  

23   hospitals, and libraries in their GIS data.  So we
  

24   download that, we collect that, and we show that.
  

25       Q.   Okay.  And sensitive receptor is something
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 1   that's used through -- EPA uses that terminology through
  

 2   NEPA and --
  

 3       A.   Yeah, NEPA.
  

 4       Q.   Okay.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  I'm not sure that I've heard -- I
  

 6   mean, this is probably a first for me to hear the term.
  

 7   I accept everything that was said, but I just --
  

 8            MEMBER NOLAND:  First for me.
  

 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  It's a new data point, I think,
  

10   that we're learning.
  

11            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, I think the bottom line is
  

12   we're showing you what showed up based on the various
  

13   databases as hospitals, libraries, and schools along the
  

14   three routes.
  

15            MS. DARLING:  So I later talk about our
  

16   alternatives analysis, and we are trying to use more
  

17   modern forms of alter -- geospatial analysis, which I'll
  

18   talk about later.  And sensitive receptors are one type
  

19   of data that are used in, you know, analysis.
  

20            So I should have maybe introduced it more
  

21   thoroughly, having not understood that it had not been
  

22   used before.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  It's a learning process, but I
  

24   think it's something that we're familiar with.
  

25            Member Drago, you have a question.
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 1            MEMBER DRAGO:  I was just going to say that
  

 2   being in the environmental field, it's a very common term
  

 3   we use for -- in the air quality, when we do dispersion
  

 4   modeling to look at whether or not the stacks are at the
  

 5   right height to disperse the air pollutants so that they
  

 6   don't end up in the sensitive receptor area.  So it's a
  

 7   very common term.
  

 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.
  

 9            MS. DARLING:  Yeah.  It matches up with the EMF
  

10   and health concerns, so that's why it was considered.
  

11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  It seems like another data
  

12   point that we can look forward to in the future.
  

13            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Look forward to?
  

14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, I'll look forward to having
  

15   the sets of data receptor analysis provided with Member
  

16   Noland waiting to ask some questions.  That's what I look
  

17   forward to.
  

18            Okay.  Was there anything further on this point?
  

19            MR. DERSTINE:  There's nothing further on
  

20   sensitive receptors, and this is probably a good time for
  

21   us to take a break.
  

22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Let's take a 15-minute
  

23   break.
  

24            (A recess was taken from 3:45 p.m. to 4:25 p.m.)
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  This is the time to
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 1   commence the afternoon session.  A little delay there.
  

 2   Sorry about that.  But we'll go back on the record and
  

 3   commence with the testimony of Ms. Darling.
  

 4            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.
  

 6       Q.   BY MR. DERSTINE:  Ms. Darling, we were finishing
  

 7   up.  You covered -- I think you covered the -- some of
  

 8   the land use analysis that was performed.  You walked
  

 9   through the slides that showed zoning as well as future
  

10   land use, and we talked -- spent some time talking
  

11   through the map that designated what's currently zoned
  

12   residential, and we're going to prepare a new map
  

13   overnight that shows existing residential developments
  

14   along the route.  So we'll have that tomorrow.
  

15            I think that covers, for now, the land use
  

16   analysis or the land use studies that were performed in
  

17   connection with this project.
  

18            Is the next category of impacts you looked at
  

19   noise impacts?
  

20       A.   Yes.
  

21       Q.   Okay.  Why don't you just cover the noise
  

22   impacts.
  

23       A.   So there will be typical construction noise
  

24   during construction of the transmission line.  We
  

25   anticipate that that would be temporary because we're
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 1   only going to be at one given location for a couple of
  

 2   days, and it would also only be during daylight hours.
  

 3            And then the long-term impacts once the line is
  

 4   in place, we do not anticipate any impacts at all.
  

 5       Q.   So no measurable or significant increase in
  

 6   noise moving from a 46kV transmission line to a 138kV?
  

 7       A.   No.
  

 8       Q.   So other than the noise impacts, you also, I
  

 9   think, looked at, as required by the statute, the
  

10   potential impact of the project on recreational
  

11   facilities and sites; correct?
  

12       A.   Yes.
  

13       Q.   Why don't you talk about that.
  

14       A.   So this is a map of the study area with the
  

15   alternatives as well as in the greenish-blue hatch are
  

16   all of the recreational facilities and then as well as
  

17   the white dashed lines.
  

18            So let me find my -- sorry.  These kind of white
  

19   dashed lines are trails, to give you an idea.
  

20            So the ones we're majorly adjacent to, we've
  

21   talked a lot about, is the Kino Sports Complex.  They
  

22   have a north complex and they also have the south
  

23   complex.  And then we have discussed their indication
  

24   that they may expand the south complex south of I-10.
  

25            There also appears the Quincie Douglas Library.
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 1   They have an associated recreation center and pool.
  

 2            And then over in here is kind of a -- back in
  

 3   here is a natural sort of walking trails and open space
  

 4   area and fields on the Ajo side.
  

 5            So the project will not impede access to or
  

 6   limit the use of any of these recreation facilities.
  

 7       Q.   When you mention trails, what are we talking
  

 8   about?  Where are the trails?
  

 9       A.   So they're bike paths or walking paths.  They're
  

10   these white dashed lines.  They basically -- there's a
  

11   pretty extensive trail system in Tucson.  I'm sure a lot
  

12   of people are aware of it.  And these are just the
  

13   portions that are in the study area that you can walk or
  

14   bike.  They get you from residential areas to, you
  

15   know -- residential to recreational facilities.  You can
  

16   actually interconnect all of them and get from one side
  

17   of town to another or loop all the way around Tucson.
  

18       Q.   And any of the routes proposed for this project
  

19   will not cut off access to any of those trails?
  

20       A.   Right.  They can easily be spanned.
  

21       Q.   Okay.  Anything else you want to add on
  

22   potential impacts to recreational areas or sites?
  

23       A.   No.
  

24       Q.   Okay.  So one of the other requirements is that
  

25   we examine the impacts on historic or archeological sites
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 1   and structures.  Did we do that?
  

 2       A.   Yes, we did.
  

 3       Q.   Okay.  Let's talk about that.
  

 4       A.   So we conducted a Class 1 survey.  A Class 1
  

 5   survey is where you look at existing surveys that have
  

 6   been conducted and whether there are any known historic
  

 7   properties or archeological sites that have been
  

 8   previously identified.
  

 9            We did that and determined that the project will
  

10   not directly or indirectly impact any historic properties
  

11   or archeological sites because there is only a single
  

12   historic El Paso Natural Gas pipeline within the route
  

13   corridors.  And it is actually an active pipeline, but we
  

14   will obviously not impact it and span it.  So we're not
  

15   expecting any impacts.
  

16            And then once a preferred alternative is
  

17   selected, we will go back to the Class 1 data and
  

18   determine if there are any areas that have not previously
  

19   been surveyed, and we will survey those areas not
  

20   surveyed.  And if we do identify at that time any new
  

21   unknown at this time sites or historic properties, we
  

22   would document them as required by Arizona statute and
  

23   mitigate them per any jurisdictional requirements,
  

24   whether they're in the City of Tucson or Pima County,
  

25   whatever their requirements would be, if we can't avoid
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 1   them.
  

 2       Q.   So the one historic or archeological site is an
  

 3   El Paso Natural Gas pipeline?
  

 4       A.   Yes.
  

 5       Q.   And we're not going to impact that?
  

 6       A.   Correct.  There are other -- there are other
  

 7   sites in the project area but not within the project
  

 8   corridors that we are identifying.
  

 9       Q.   Okay.  And I won't ask you what the historic
  

10   natural gas pipeline is or what we do with it, but --
  

11       A.   We avoid it --
  

12       Q.   Okay.
  

13       A.   -- like any pipeline.
  

14       Q.   Yeah.
  

15            So we've touched on -- ticked off those
  

16   elements, the factors that are required by the statute.
  

17   But certainly one of the key considerations in any kind
  

18   of a -- any project, but in particular, a project being
  

19   built in an urban environment like this, will be visual
  

20   impacts; right?
  

21       A.   Yes.
  

22       Q.   And did we study the visual impacts of the
  

23   project?
  

24       A.   We did.
  

25       Q.   And how did you go about analyzing or studying
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 1   the visual impacts from this project?
  

 2       A.   We hired a specialist, a visual resources
  

 3   specialist, and, with him, identified 18 key observation
  

 4   points along the three alternative routes.  And he took
  

 5   existing condition photographs from those key observation
  

 6   points in all directions.
  

 7            And then he was provided by TEP a model,
  

 8   somewhat like the model you saw in the Google flyover, a
  

 9   model of the transmission structures and their potential
  

10   proposed locations, and placed those in a simulation on
  

11   the existing condition photograph to simulate what the
  

12   line would look like along each of the routes and at
  

13   those KOP locations.
  

14       Q.   So the slide that we're looking at, Slide 20 of
  

15   your PowerPoint presentation --
  

16       A.   Right.  It shows the locations, these circles of
  

17   each of the key observation points.
  

18       Q.   And where would the Members of the Committee see
  

19   this -- find these 18 -- the simulation, these 18 key
  

20   observation points?
  

21       A.   In Exhibit G.
  

22       Q.   To the application?
  

23       A.   Yes, to the application.
  

24       Q.   And we're going to cover a few of them here, but
  

25   we're not going to present all 18.
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 1       A.   Correct.
  

 2       Q.   But if the Members of the Committee want to view
  

 3   all 18 of the KOPs that were prepared along each of the
  

 4   three proposed routes, they would be in Exhibit G to the
  

 5   application?
  

 6       A.   That is correct.
  

 7       Q.   Okay.  So how did -- of the KOPs that you
  

 8   selected to present in your PowerPoint presentation, how
  

 9   did you pick those or what was -- how did you decide
  

10   which to present here for the purposes of the hearing?
  

11       A.   I selected two for each route, and they were the
  

12   two that I felt were the most -- had the most impact.  So
  

13   they would have been kind of the worst-case scenario.
  

14   And, again, it was in my opinion.  So the rest of the
  

15   simulations are there to be viewed by the Committee.
  

16       Q.   Okay.  And they can make their own independent
  

17   judgment about the impacts and how they would rate them?
  

18       A.   Correct.  I would add that in the land use
  

19   section or -- I'm sorry.  The -- let me get the exhibit
  

20   number.
  

21            Sorry.  In Exhibit E, there is a write-up of the
  

22   impacts from the visual resource specialist.  So that's
  

23   his opinion on what he felt were the differing impacts
  

24   from one alternative to the next.  And that's what I'm
  

25   going to summarize kind of as I discuss each route and
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 1   the two simulations that I selected.
  

 2       Q.   Okay.  So just to make sure I understand, we
  

 3   engaged a visual expert who then prepared a simulation of
  

 4   what the project would look like at various points along
  

 5   each of the routes, and that's set forth on this prior
  

 6   slide to your PowerPoint.  Those KOPs or key observation
  

 7   points are shown on Slide 20 that we're looking at right
  

 8   here.
  

 9            And then all of the -- all those 18 KOPs are
  

10   contained in Exhibit G to the application, if the Members
  

11   want to view those, and they will be out on the route
  

12   tomorrow, so they'll have their own -- they can use their
  

13   own eyes --
  

14       A.   Right.
  

15       Q.   -- to assess what the route looks like and try
  

16   to imagine what the structure would look like out on the
  

17   route.
  

18            But, in addition, this visual expert prepared a
  

19   narrative report where that individual made a judgment
  

20   about the impact at each of the 18 KOPs?
  

21       A.   That's correct.
  

22       Q.   Okay.  So why don't you walk us through the
  

23   simulations that you are using for your testimony today
  

24   and talk about them.
  

25       A.   Okay.  So this is Alternative A on the left.
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 1   I'm going to show you on the map where we would be at.
  

 2   This is the intersection of Benson Highway and Tucson
  

 3   Boulevard.  And it's from the proposed Kino Sports
  

 4   Complex expansion looking towards that intersection.
  

 5            So the individual taking the photo is standing
  

 6   within the area to be developed looking southeastish
  

 7   towards the intersection.  So this is the proposed
  

 8   development area.  This is the intersection back here.
  

 9            This is the existing condition photo on the top.
  

10   It shows our existing 46kV transmission line and the
  

11   underbuilt distribution as well as, I believe, cable and
  

12   phone.
  

13            On the bottom, we'll see numbers with arrows
  

14   pointing down to the proposed locations of the new
  

15   transmission line were it to be built in this location.
  

16   So you can see kind of the addition of these three
  

17   structures in the view.  And his assessment was that that
  

18   was a low added impact to this area.
  

19            The view on the right is on -- also on Benson
  

20   Highway.  Park Avenue is back here.  So we are -- oh, we
  

21   changed photos.  Okay.  So we are at 4 here.  So it's
  

22   Benson Highway and looking towards Park Avenue standing
  

23   on the south side of the road.
  

24            So in this view -- and I -- oh, can I add that
  

25   these are the Washington fan palms that potentially have
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 1   the yellow bat habitat.
  

 2            So you can see here the addition of the
  

 3   transmission pole and then following along kind of going
  

 4   back to the north on Park Avenue.  So this is a more
  

 5   significant impact in this area of Benson Highway.  There
  

 6   are no existing transmission poles or lighting like the
  

 7   lighting pole -- the big lights, the streetlights.  So
  

 8   the only real linear feature along this stretch of Benson
  

 9   Highway would be at the intersections where the traffic
  

10   signals are.  So that was considered a moderate increase
  

11   because of the additional linear structures.
  

12            Moving on to Alternative B, the first simulation
  

13   is on I-10 in this area where you see 11, 12 -- 10, 11,
  

14   12.  And this was No. 10.
  

15            So in this area, I-10 is a raised-grade highway.
  

16   And because of that, you're kind of up above the
  

17   surrounding landscape and you have much longer-range
  

18   views towards both the Tucson Mountains.  If you're
  

19   traveling westbound and to the North, if you're, like,
  

20   the passenger or heading -- if you're heading eastbound
  

21   looking sort of towards the North, you're to see the
  

22   Catalina Mountains.  So you have these long-range views
  

23   where poles are really up against the blue sky and the
  

24   mountains, and you have a lot of people using I-10.  So
  

25   that was determined to be a greater impact because of the

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 173

  

 1   fact that it had more people viewing it, it was -- you
  

 2   were up above it and seeing it at that level.
  

 3            And then also for Alternative B on the right --
  

 4   sorry -- this is here at No. 14.  So it's within the
  

 5   residential neighborhood looking west across -- towards
  

 6   the transmission line, and you can see there's existing
  

 7   distribution in the area and then the taller structure
  

 8   here of the new transmission pole.
  

 9            This would be the same view for Alternative C in
  

10   this location as well, the one on the right.  For
  

11   Alternative C, this is the one along Ajo Way.  That's at
  

12   No. 18 here, looking to the east.  Ajo Way does not have
  

13   any transmission lines or power poles on it.  It does
  

14   have some lighting as well as traffic signals.  So the
  

15   addition here of a new transmission line in a setting
  

16   where there isn't one was considered a moderate
  

17   additional impact to the area.
  

18            And then the view on the right, this one, is
  

19   from the school here at the corner that we've spoken of
  

20   earlier looking towards the Kino Substation, and the
  

21   transmission line kind of crosses and turns here for
  

22   Alternative C and for Alternative B.  So this one on the
  

23   right would be, in either case, B or C, the view that
  

24   they would have from the school parking lot.
  

25            You can see this is the existing 46kV system
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 1   that's on 36th Street, and you have the addition of a new
  

 2   pole here, that turning structure.  And then this is the
  

 3   poles coming into the substation.  And the substation is
  

 4   back here.
  

 5            So those are the simulations that I wanted to
  

 6   share.
  

 7            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't know -- Mr. Beck, so in
  

 8   terms of the route tour coinciding with these various
  

 9   KOPs, I assume that we'll cover most or all of these
  

10   points on the route tour tomorrow?
  

11            MR. BECK:  We'll be adjacent to all of
  

12   these; so as we reach them, we can point out which
  

13   observation point it would be.
  

14            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
  

15       Q.   BY MR. DERSTINE:  Ms. Darling, I think you also,
  

16   then, in terms of the visual simulations that were
  

17   compared, you did a --
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Hamway.
  

19            Excuse me.
  

20            MR. DERSTINE:  Oh, I'm sorry.
  

21            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So when something -- when a
  

22   power -- extra high voltage lines run parallel to a major
  

23   freeway like I-10 versus, you know, Ajo or -- I don't
  

24   know how that street is defined.  Is it a major
  

25   collector?  Is it a --
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 1            MS. DARLING:  Yes, I believe so.
  

 2            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So, to me, adding poles next to
  

 3   I-10 is less -- to me, that doesn't have a very high
  

 4   impact, even though you said it was a moderate impact;
  

 5   correct?  So how do you take a road that's a major
  

 6   interstate versus an internal urban collector?  Do you
  

 7   weigh those differently?
  

 8            MS. DARLING:  Well, I'm not the visual resource
  

 9   expert.  However, my understanding is that even though
  

10   I-10 is a major highway, there's a lot of commuters and
  

11   travelers that use it.  So there's a lot of -- the number
  

12   of viewers is way higher than the number of viewers for
  

13   another road.  So that's kind of -- I mean, I'm not --
  

14            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I know.
  

15            MS. DARLING:  I'm not saying that that makes it
  

16   more important.  It's a lot of subjectivity.  I mean, one
  

17   person can consider it a minor impact and somebody else
  

18   could say it's high.
  

19            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Yeah.  I think we're almost
  

20   insensitive to power poles along a freeway.  And when
  

21   you're going 78 miles an hour, I don't really think that
  

22   having some power poles, anybody's going to think about
  

23   that.
  

24            If you put it on an internal collector street,
  

25   to me, that has a higher impact.  That's just my opinion.

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 176

  

 1            MS. DARLING:  And I would add that there's also
  

 2   all of the sports complexes there.  So those fields are
  

 3   used by kids and adults and people every day of the week
  

 4   all day long.  There's all different activities going on
  

 5   there.  So I think that was also a consideration that
  

 6   there was the view from the sports complex to the line
  

 7   because it runs right along the fields there.
  

 8            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.
  

 9            MS. DARLING:  And I think that's discussed in
  

10   the -- in his analysis.
  

11            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Thank you.
  

12       Q.   BY MR. DERSTINE:  So I think the next visual
  

13   simulation that was prepared is a comparison of the
  

14   galvanized steel to the self-weathering, the Cor-Ten
  

15   structure.
  

16            Now, Mr. Beck spent some time talking about that
  

17   it's Pima County's preference and directive to use
  

18   galvanized on any right-of-way or land owned by the
  

19   County.  And they asked -- and I also -- or at least I
  

20   think I understand that they directed us to prepare some
  

21   sort of a simulation showing what the two different pole
  

22   finishes look like; is that right?
  

23       A.   So Pima County regularly indicates that they
  

24   would prefer all of our poles to be galvanized.
  

25       Q.   Right.
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 1       A.   And in their comment letter, they specifically
  

 2   said that anywhere where they would issue a right-of-way,
  

 3   they would require it to be galvanized outside of our
  

 4   franchise agreement because our franchise agreement does
  

 5   not require that.  And they requested that we do a visual
  

 6   simulation with the galvanized and show that to the
  

 7   Committee.  So this is -- we did.
  

 8            And on the left is the self-weathering steel,
  

 9   our standard, here; and on the right is the galvanized.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

11            MEMBER WOODALL:  I know Mr. Beck indicated that
  

12   there was like shiny galvanized and dull galvanized.  For
  

13   purpose of this simulation, what is it?
  

14            MS. DARLING:  It's the nonreflective, which
  

15   still can be bright if it's backlit.
  

16            MEMBER WOODALL:  So this is the one that's going
  

17   to get chalky and turn whiter over time; is that correct,
  

18   Mr. Beck?
  

19            MR. BECK:  That's correct.
  

20            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you.
  

21            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't know if it's Mr. Beck or
  

22   Ms. Darling, you have these numbers, but I think we
  

23   also --
  

24            MS. DARLING:  Yes.
  

25            MR. DERSTINE:  -- did some breakdown of the
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 1   additional cost per route if we went between galvanized
  

 2   or self-weathering pole.
  

 3       Q.   MR. DERSTINE:  If you have that information, why
  

 4   don't you present it to the Committee.
  

 5       A.   I do.
  

 6            So galvanized poles would cost roughly 8 percent
  

 7   more plus the additional cost of slip joints and labor.
  

 8   To jack the poles together, I think Mr. Beck mentioned
  

 9   that when they're dipped, they can't be these long poles,
  

10   so they have to be assembled, which is called jacking.
  

11            So the cost of the galvanized would be, for
  

12   Alternative A, $400,000 more.  These are rough numbers.
  

13   Alternative B, 340,000 more.  Alternate C, 365,000 more.
  

14            And Pima County also said that they -- you know,
  

15   painted.  They said galvanized or painted.  So I just
  

16   want to say that on average, we spend $8,300 per pole to
  

17   repaint them when that's necessary, and that does not
  

18   count the cost of an outage.
  

19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

20            MEMBER WOODALL:  How many poles would be under
  

21   the purview of the Pima County requirements?
  

22            MS. DARLING:  Well, this is all of the poles
  

23   because their preference would be all of the poles.
  

24            MEMBER WOODALL:  But what do they mandate?  I
  

25   mean, what are you on the hook for?
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 1            MS. DARLING:  The ones on the substation site
  

 2   and coming in, depending on which alternative, there
  

 3   could be three poles up to, if B was selected, the poles
  

 4   that are on the park, the Kino Sports Complex there on
  

 5   the north side of I-10, I believe there's three or four
  

 6   there.  So it could be as few as three, as many as
  

 7   probably six or seven.
  

 8            MEMBER WOODALL:  And that would be the only
  

 9   thing that you would be required to do by the terms of
  

10   your negotiations with the County; is that right?
  

11            MS. DARLING:  Yes.
  

12            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.
  

13            MS. DARLING:  Yes.  But we know that -- we just
  

14   want to let you know the full cost if they -- what their
  

15   preference would be, the -- all the galvanized.
  

16            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  So that's their
  

17   preference, but that's not what they're requiring?
  

18            MS. DARLING:  Correct.
  

19            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

20            CHMN. CHENAL:  I'm sorry.
  

21            Go ahead.
  

22            MEMBER RIGGINS:  Is there a reason why they
  

23   prefer the galvanized?
  

24            MS. DARLING:  Two reasons that I know of.  One
  

25   is all of their lighting structures and traffic signals
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 1   are galvanized, and they feel that if our facilities were
  

 2   also galvanized, that it would be more cohesive and
  

 3   match.
  

 4            MEMBER RIGGINS:  So aesthetically --
  

 5            MS. DARLING:  Aesthetically match what they're
  

 6   doing.
  

 7            And then the landscape architect that's in
  

 8   charge of the Pima County DOT, she testified at the last
  

 9   hearing, Ellen Alster, she also feels that against the
  

10   blue sky, that the galvanized blends much better.
  

11            MEMBER RIGGINS:  Are they flexible as far as if
  

12   public feedback wanted one over the other?  Have they
  

13   been in the past, or is that something that they're --
  

14            MS. DARLING:  I don't know.
  

15            Ed, do you know?
  

16            MR. BECK:  Member Riggins, in the past, we have
  

17   never really been in the situation where we were using
  

18   the County right-of-way and we had to abide by a
  

19   direction from them.
  

20            We have, in some instances, used galvanized
  

21   poles at the direction of the Committee based on public
  

22   input.  And those cases were adjacent to the Interstate
  

23   where there are a lot of interstate lighting poles that
  

24   were galvanized.  And that's where the public came
  

25   through on that issue, that they should be galvanized.
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 1            But relative to the County, I think we had very
  

 2   few instances where we're actually on County land where
  

 3   they could dictate a color to us.
  

 4            MEMBER RIGGINS:  Thank you.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Hamway.
  

 6            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Does Tucson request one color
  

 7   over the other?
  

 8            MS. DARLING:  The City?
  

 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.
  

10            MS. DARLING:  No, they have not indicated a
  

11   preference.
  

12            CHMN. CHENAL:  So where does Pima County put
  

13   that request?  Is it in their general plan?  Is it --
  

14            MS. DARLING:  It was in their letter to us, the
  

15   comment letter that's in the application.
  

16            And they verbally have said it to us many times.
  

17   And, specifically, Ellen has testified a number of times
  

18   to it as well here at different hearings.  But it's not
  

19   in their -- it's not a standard or in writing in their
  

20   code or anything like that, if that's what you are
  

21   asking.
  

22            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So does it bother TEP that you
  

23   might have a mismatch of poles?
  

24            MS. DARLING:  I'll let Ed answer -- or Mr. Beck.
  

25            MR. BECK:  I would say it would not be our
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 1   preference to mix and match poles, especially on a single
  

 2   project.  We have done it when we are directed to.  We
  

 3   can do it.  We do incur additional cost.
  

 4            This may be the opportunity to respond to the
  

 5   earlier question regarding cost.  For a $2 million
  

 6   addition to plant, basically, for us, that would equate
  

 7   to approximately a 2.6-cent increase to the average
  

 8   customer's bill.  Assuming the average customer uses 800
  

 9   kilowatts of energy in a month, we calculate roughly 2.6
  

10   cents, which -- in and of itself, that's a very small
  

11   number.  But as you spread it over a bunch projects, each
  

12   increment increases the cost to the customer.  So we try
  

13   not to look at it on cents per customer per se.  I mean,
  

14   we're trying to reduce costs overall for projects.
  

15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Haenichen.
  

16            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Just so I'm clear, that
  

17   wasn't 2.6 cents per kilowatt hour.  It was to the total
  

18   bill?
  

19            MR. BECK:  It was to the total monthly bill.  So
  

20   it's .003 cents per kilowatt hour or something like that.
  

21   That equates out to about 2.6 cents to the average
  

22   monthly bill for a customer.
  

23            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  So it's negligible?
  

24            MR. BECK:  Yes.  But, again, it's negligible for
  

25   any given -- you know, if it's just $2 million, it's
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 1   negligible.  But if we have multiple projects and incur
  

 2   $2 million on multiple projects, it does start to add up.
  

 3            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Thank you.
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  So just one question on the
  

 5   comparison of the terminology.  In your slide that's on
  

 6   the screen, it says:  Simulated condition with weathered
  

 7   steel pole.  And it looks -- it's the lower left photo,
  

 8   and it looks kind of brown, rusted.  Is that the Cor-Ten?
  

 9            MS. DARLING:  Cor-Ten, yes.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  That's the Cor-Ten?
  

11            MS. DARLING:  Yes.
  

12            CHMN. CHENAL:  And then the lower right is the
  

13   stainless steel.  Is that the galvanized?
  

14            MS. DARLING:  Does it say stainless steel?
  

15            MR. BECK:  That represents the galvanized
  

16   structure, yes.
  

17            CHMN. CHENAL:  I was going to say, stainless
  

18   steel pole is what it says.
  

19            MS. DARLING:  Does it?
  

20            MR. BECK:  Yeah.
  

21            CHMN. CHENAL:  So we're looking at, basically,
  

22   the Cor-Ten versus the galvanized.  Okay.  I just want to
  

23   make sure --
  

24            MR. BECK:  Apparently, we --
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- we're --
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 1            MR. BECK:  Excuse me.
  

 2            Apparently, we hired an expert in visual
  

 3   simulation, but it's not the naming of the --
  

 4            MS. DARLING:  Not the materials, yeah.  And I
  

 5   didn't catch it, so I apologize.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Haenichen.
  

 7            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  One of the problems I had
  

 8   with that simulation is that, the one on the right, the
  

 9   galvanized one is going to radically look different
  

10   depending on how much sunlight is on it, whereas the
  

11   Cor-Ten will look about the same no matter what.  So you
  

12   don't know what condition that was as sunlightwise.  So I
  

13   think it's very subjective.
  

14            MR. BECK:  Absolutely.  I agree with that.
  

15            CHMN. CHENAL:  I mean, looking at those photos,
  

16   I mean, if it's Pima -- I can't remember if you said it
  

17   was Tucson or Pima County's view that the galvanized
  

18   seems to blend -- work better with a blue sky.  You'd
  

19   have to agreement, looking at these photos, the Cor-Ten
  

20   is brown and kind of sticks out against the blue sky,
  

21   where the galvanized is less noticeable.
  

22            But, again, it depends on the time of day and
  

23   whether the sun is reflecting off it and a lot of other
  

24   factors.
  

25            MS. DARLING:  I agree.  It could be the depth of
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 1   the blue too.  If it was a really dark blue sky that day,
  

 2   it probably would stand out more.
  

 3            Again, it's very subjective.
  

 4            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  And I guess the point --
  

 5   the takeaway from the company, for -- the simulations
  

 6   aside, cost -- up-front cost, maintenance, and then how
  

 7   this galvanized steel pole will -- given its finish, will
  

 8   change over time and likely become more visible given as
  

 9   it lightens and becomes chalked over time.  What you see
  

10   is what you get with the Cor-Ten, and that's how it will
  

11   look.
  

12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Hamway.
  

13            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So how long does it take for the
  

14   Cor-Ten to get to that rusty state, and how long does it
  

15   take for the galvanized to get the white state?
  

16            MR. BECK:  Relative to the Cor-Ten structures,
  

17   typically, as they're received in our storage yard, they
  

18   have started to rust, and they're pretty well along the
  

19   way to reaching their patina.
  

20            We have had an instance first time we used them
  

21   where we had a really dry weather season, and
  

22   accidentally, it was dry all the way back to the factory.
  

23   And we received poles that were raw steel.  They had not
  

24   rusted whatsoever.  So before we actually installed them,
  

25   we went and sent a watering truck out into the yard to
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 1   wet them down each day to get that rust in development,
  

 2   because that is an issue.  We don't want those poles to
  

 3   stand out as we install them.
  

 4            Relative to the issue of how long does it take a
  

 5   pole to start chalking, it depends on the level of
  

 6   de-glaring that is done and how much of that galvanized
  

 7   finish is taken off.  I don't have a specific number of
  

 8   years.  It probably would be five to ten years before you
  

 9   would see that.  If you look at some of our towers that
  

10   have been in place for going on 30 years now, they are
  

11   very white.  It's very noticeable.
  

12            And the other thing on the towers that we do
  

13   have where we have seen this effect, it's not consistent
  

14   or continuous.  So you'll see the lower levels seem to be
  

15   whiter than the upper levels.  I assume it's related to
  

16   the weather and any dust and other impacts.  But the
  

17   poles actually -- the towers in this case actually are
  

18   blotchy looking.
  

19            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Thank you.
  

20            MR. DERSTINE:  So this covers our testimony from
  

21   Ms. Darling on visual impacts.  And then our next topic
  

22   or subject matter is our public engagement process.  We
  

23   can move forward with that, or if you'd like us to take a
  

24   break -- it's 5:00.  Whatever your preference is.
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, here's kind of the dilemma
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 1   that I'm seeing.  This is normally the time for the
  

 2   break, and I'm happy to take a break now and then we
  

 3   resume at 5:30.
  

 4            We have the tour tomorrow.  How much time do you
  

 5   think you're going to need with Ms. Darling and any
  

 6   additional testimony and evidence you want to present?
  

 7            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, so we have -- Ms. Darling
  

 8   will walk you through our public engagement program,
  

 9   public open houses, stakeholder meetings, newsletters,
  

10   that sort of thing, all the efforts that were made to
  

11   engage and gain feedback from the public and stakeholders
  

12   concerning the project.
  

13            After the -- after that, she's going to go spend
  

14   a fair amount of time with -- she'll cover the comments
  

15   we received through the public engagement program and
  

16   summarize those by topic and give you a little better
  

17   understanding of the type of comments we received and
  

18   what they were, especially with regard to preferences and
  

19   how we tabulated those.
  

20            And then the last portion of Ms. Darling's
  

21   testimony will be providing you with an understanding of
  

22   how we developed the segments, the links, the routes, and
  

23   then the factors of the criteria that were then used in
  

24   order for the company to grade them.
  

25            Now, obviously, our grading system and how we
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 1   assign points and rank these routes, we think it's
  

 2   helpful.  We're going to present it to you, but,
  

 3   ultimately, at the end of the day, the Committee will
  

 4   decide and use your own judgment about which route you
  

 5   think is the best to serve this need.
  

 6            And so -- to your question how much time, I've
  

 7   got the public engagement chapter to present through
  

 8   Ms. Darling, and then we've got her discussion of her
  

 9   geospatial analysis and how we got to where we are with
  

10   these three routes and why Alternative A is the referred
  

11   route.
  

12            MEMBER WOODALL:  So are you talking about two
  

13   hours?
  

14            MR. DERSTINE:  No.  I think I'm talking about an
  

15   hour and a half.
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, let me tell you the
  

17   dilemma.  We'll probably get back after the tour and take
  

18   a break, and then we'll pick up with Ms. Darling in the
  

19   afternoon.  We start, then, the deliberations on the CEC.
  

20   I've just developed, I guess, a strong -- very strong
  

21   preference that we not try as a Committee, after hearing
  

22   all this information, try to attack that, you know, in an
  

23   afternoon when we have the next day, when we're fresh in
  

24   the morning, to go through that kind of material.
  

25            And I can see that tomorrow afternoon, if we --

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 189

  

 1   you know, especially if we go forward now, with breaks
  

 2   and that, we will be able to start the deliberative
  

 3   process on the CEC.  But I just -- I just -- I don't want
  

 4   the Committee to be rushed to try to finish tomorrow
  

 5   afternoon when we have the following day.  And I just --
  

 6   the few times we've done that, it's not, I think, been as
  

 7   good of an experience.
  

 8            Member Woodall.
  

 9            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Derstine, I may have been
  

10   incorrect, but I thought I interpreted that there was a
  

11   hint with respect to your geospatial analysis that you
  

12   thought it would be helpful, but, ultimately, it's up to
  

13   us.  So from that, I discern that maybe you might be
  

14   willing to truncate or even omit that portion of the
  

15   testimony, or was I not processing it correctly?
  

16            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, I think -- I think the
  

17   process that TEP used to develop these routes, we view as
  

18   it's important for you to understand how we got there in
  

19   terms of understanding the constraints and what was --
  

20   and the process that was there in terms of moving from
  

21   objective criteria as well as the land use.  We've
  

22   already talked about that.  We're going to present a new
  

23   map tomorrow with the existing residential land use and
  

24   then walk you through the process that we engaged in and
  

25   how we graded or rated these routes.
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 1            That -- I think, at the end of the day, you may
  

 2   say, I don't agree that that's a 28, I think it's a 25,
  

 3   or I don't care what your number is, I like this route.
  

 4            I mean, I think every Member of this Committee
  

 5   is going to use their own judgment about how they go
  

 6   about deciding what's the best route for this project and
  

 7   whether or not to issue us a CEC.  But I'm -- to your
  

 8   pleasure, we'll --
  

 9            MEMBER WOODALL:  I'm just speaking for myself,
  

10   but I've heard this before, and it's one of -- I mean no
  

11   disrespect to anyone, but it's kind of like how many
  

12   angels can dance on the head of a pin sort of analysis.
  

13   And I personally have not -- because I've heard it
  

14   before.  I personally have not found it to be
  

15   particularly -- have a bearing on my ultimate decision.
  

16   It's really based more on the evidence that you've
  

17   presented about what is in the routes.
  

18            How you mentally processed that was not as of
  

19   great interest to me.  I mean, I'm glad that you didn't
  

20   just throw darts, but it really was like, Well, I'm glad
  

21   that you explained your mental processes, but I'm looking
  

22   at evidence.  I don't really -- it's not helpful to me to
  

23   say, Oh, well, TEP did this.  I want to know what
  

24   evidence.
  

25            And so far, we've had discussions of the purpose
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 1   and need, we've had biological, we've had the zoning, and
  

 2   etc.  So how you internally danced around the May pole --
  

 3   and I don't mean that disrespectfully -- it's not that
  

 4   helpful to me personally, but I'm only one member up
  

 5   here.
  

 6            MR. DERSTINE:  I understand, and I appreciate
  

 7   it.  And I guess from our perspective, we want you to
  

 8   know we didn't throw darts, but I understand that you may
  

 9   not find that very helpful at the end of the day in
  

10   reaching your decision.
  

11            And so I leave it to the Committee to tell us
  

12   what's your pleasure in terms of how we present what's
  

13   left in our case.
  

14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, I think we should hear it.
  

15   I would find that exercise helpful.  If nothing else,
  

16   just to force me to think through the issues that you've
  

17   thought through and the manner in which you've reviewed
  

18   the evidence and analyzed I think would be very helpful
  

19   to me.
  

20            So I'm back to my dilemma.  I guess my
  

21   preference would be that we -- but I want to hear what
  

22   the Committee has to say.
  

23            My preference would be that we break, we have
  

24   the tour tomorrow, we finish with Ms. Darling tomorrow
  

25   afternoon, and we start the deliberative processes on the
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 1   CEC Thursday morning.  But I want to hear what the
  

 2   Committee has to say.
  

 3            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  I agree.
  

 4            MEMBER WOODALL:  I defer to the Chairman on
  

 5   that.
  

 6            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Good plan.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  I think, then, we can
  

 8   break now.  And I do see that some people are here
  

 9   probably to speak at 5:30.
  

10            MR. DERSTINE:  I was just checking with
  

11   Ms. DeCorse to see if there are any housekeeping items
  

12   that we needed to address.  I don't think there are, so
  

13   we're ready.
  

14            CHMN. CHENAL:  I would normally want to go ahead
  

15   with the public comment now.  I mean, I guess we could,
  

16   but we still have to be here at 5:30 in case someone else
  

17   shows up.  So -- I mean, I think maybe we would like to
  

18   do that.  We're certainly capable -- able to do that.
  

19            MEMBER WOODALL:  Just for the convenience of the
  

20   Members who are here, I would prefer to let them not have
  

21   to sit longer than is necessary.  And, of course, we will
  

22   be here at 5:30, so I would just as soon, for their
  

23   convenience, let them talk now, because they may want to
  

24   leave.
  

25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Sure.
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 1            Okay.  Well, then, are there any other
  

 2   housekeeping items that we should discuss?
  

 3            Thank you, Member Noland, for coming back.
  

 4            MEMBER NOLAND:  I did it as quickly as I could.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  You did very well.
  

 6            Any other housekeeping items from the Committee?
  

 7            (No response.)
  

 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  From the applicant?
  

 9            (No response.)
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, then, let's adjourn for
  

11   this afternoon hearing.  And I know it's approximately
  

12   ten after 5.  And we could take public comment right now,
  

13   see if there's anyone here that would like to provide it.
  

14   We'd like to hear it.  And then, when that concludes, we
  

15   can wait till 5:30, and then -- because that's the time
  

16   that's noticed for the hearing, and see if there's any
  

17   comment then.  And then we'll adjourn for the evening.
  

18            So if there are any people here for public
  

19   comment, I would ask you to make sure you sign in on the
  

20   sign-in sheet, and that's with Ms. DeCorse.  And then
  

21   come up to the microphone.  Please provide your name, and
  

22   we're here to hear what you have to say.
  

23            Not all at once.
  

24            MR. TANNER:  Good afternoon.  My name is Alan
  

25   Tanner, and I'm with Bourn Companies here in Tucson.  I
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 1   appreciate the opportunity to speak in front of the
  

 2   Commission.
  

 3            We are a development company based here in
  

 4   Tucson that is currently in escrow to purchase
  

 5   approximately 112 acres of what is known as the Bridges
  

 6   PAD development, which is located bounded by Park Avenue,
  

 7   36th Street, Kino Boulevard, and I-10.  And we are under
  

 8   contract to acquire that property from the 5151 Group,
  

 9   LLC, in its present form.  We expect to close on that
  

10   property this next month.
  

11            And I wanted to take the opportunity to address
  

12   TEP and the Committee because I understand earlier, there
  

13   was a representative, I believe Mr. Andy Gregory, that
  

14   spoke to the overall development.  But with our new
  

15   position in the development, I think there was some
  

16   question as to the -- the development schedule of some of
  

17   the planned commercial and residential portions of that
  

18   development.  And I wanted to share with the Committee
  

19   the nature of timing under which we are proceeding.
  

20            In expecting to close this next month, we've
  

21   been diligently working for the past six months to rezone
  

22   the property.  It's approximately 112 acres of the
  

23   350-acre project and just on May 22nd received mayor and
  

24   council -- Tucson mayor and council approval, 7-0
  

25   approval of rezoning.
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 1            And it's basically to facilitate what we're
  

 2   believing will be Tucson's premier corporate
  

 3   campus environment -- employment campus environment and a
  

 4   strong urban residential development component which will
  

 5   help round out the original vision of the PAD, which was
  

 6   a 350-acre mixed-use project.
  

 7            Today, Tucson Retail Group, which has developed
  

 8   the Costco that exists today, the Walmart, the Century
  

 9   Theatres, Dave & Buster's, and numerous restaurants, they
  

10   have about 110 acres on the south side of that project.
  

11   The University of Arizona Tech Park has the 65 acres that
  

12   is just to our -- just to our east.  And we are acquiring
  

13   the B subsection, 112 acres.
  

14            So upon --
  

15            CHMN. CHENAL:  You know, Mr. --
  

16            MR. TANNER:  Tanner.
  

17            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- I think this would be very
  

18   helpful to have a map up there with you having a laser
  

19   pointer to be able to kind of show us, give us a better
  

20   idea of where this is.
  

21            MR. TANNER:  Okay.  Sure.
  

22            CHMN. CHENAL:  You have it there, but would the
  

23   applicant be able to put the -- throw it up on the screen
  

24   for us, and we will give you a laser pointer.  It'll be a
  

25   lot easier.
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 1            MR. TANNER:  So, I mean, we could go to Google
  

 2   Earth.  Is that available?  I mean, I don't have a
  

 3   PowerPoint or ...
  

 4            Okay, sure.  Perfect.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  I'm sorry to interrupt you.
  

 6            MR. TANNER:  No.  Thank you.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  When you're talking about these
  

 8   different components, I think it would be helpful to hear
  

 9   how it relates to the --
  

10            MR. TANNER:  No, you're absolutely right.  I
  

11   appreciate the opportunity.
  

12            So the Tucson Retail Group, this section here,
  

13   110 acres, is -- so Costco is down here.  Walmart.  And
  

14   this is an older photo.  But those buildings, obviously,
  

15   are in place.
  

16            We are purchasing -- that is the 112 acres that
  

17   I'm referencing, and that is the B subsection of the PAD,
  

18   the Bridges.
  

19            The University's portion is this 65 acres right
  

20   here.  And I believe Mr. Bruce Wright will be prepared to
  

21   speak to that.
  

22            Our involvement with the Bridges over these past
  

23   six months was to facilitate -- we have an executed lease
  

24   with GEICO Insurance Company to construct a
  

25   200,000-square-foot regional headquarter facility for
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 1   them.  That deal, but for breaking ground, is about as
  

 2   good as you can get for certainty on going forward on a
  

 3   development.  And that first phase of the development is
  

 4   going to be right there in this green section there.
  

 5            So we've gone through -- not only have we gone
  

 6   through mayor and council process to amend the PAD there
  

 7   and have the zoning allow for this urban campus
  

 8   development, but we've also been working diligently for
  

 9   the past four acres on a strong residential urban village
  

10   component, which is planned for this section right in
  

11   here.
  

12            In fact, as recently as last week -- actually,
  

13   it was June 1st, we -- and we've been working with
  

14   national home builders for that.  We've received a letter
  

15   of intent for the first eight acres of this from the home
  

16   builders for this section right here.
  

17            And I think it's worthy to share that the vision
  

18   here is to have single-family residential in a more
  

19   densely defined area and then also have -- that would be
  

20   for-sale housing and then have townhomes that are both
  

21   for rent and for sale and then apartment project --
  

22   apartment components that all tie in to facilitating this
  

23   employment generator and factor in employers in the area.
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

25            MEMBER WOODALL:  I'm sorry, sir, to interrupt
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 1   your presentation, but --
  

 2            MR. TANNER:  Yeah.
  

 3            MEMBER WOODALL:  Are you still supportive of
  

 4   Alternative A?  Is that what your --
  

 5            MR. TANNER:  So thank you for the question.
  

 6            No, we are not supportive of Alternative A.  And
  

 7   we --
  

 8            MEMBER WOODALL:  Which one do you prefer?
  

 9            MR. TANNER:  Either B or C because --
  

10            MEMBER WOODALL:  Okay.  Thank you.  I just
  

11   wanted to make sure where you were coming from.
  

12            So go ahead, sir.
  

13            MR. TANNER:  Maybe our mistake, but we were
  

14   under the belief that Alternative A was on the west side
  

15   of Park and on the north side of 36th Street.  So under
  

16   that scenario here would be on the west or on the north
  

17   where the existing power poles are today.  And -- so they
  

18   have it now coming in here, as proposed -- my
  

19   understanding on Alternative A is impacting, obviously,
  

20   the proposed development that we are pursuing.
  

21            So I think there's two comments.  One is we're
  

22   strongly supportive and appreciative of TEP's efforts not
  

23   only for the substation, but for the lines and getting
  

24   the additional capacity to that area because we think
  

25   it's critical to the overall health of the area.  So we
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 1   very much appreciate the efforts.
  

 2            Once we understood this morning that
  

 3   Alternative A was on the east side of Park and the south
  

 4   side of 36th, we felt it important to come and share our
  

 5   input with the Commission.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Mr. Tanner, you
  

 7   were -- before Member Woodall's question, you were
  

 8   explaining how you were going to develop the parcels that
  

 9   you were going to acquire.
  

10            I believe you indicated -- I'm using my laser
  

11   pointer to reflect where the GEICO project may end up
  

12   being built.
  

13            MR. TANNER:  That's correct.
  

14            CHMN. CHENAL:  In the northwest corner of the
  

15   parcel, you were beginning to talk about a residential
  

16   component.
  

17            MR. TANNER:  That's correct.
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  I would like you to continue to
  

19   talk about the residential component and then talk about
  

20   the kind of development you anticipate on the west side
  

21   of Park Avenue there.
  

22            MR. TANNER:  Yes.  Thank you for the question.
  

23   So --
  

24            MEMBER WOODALL:  Just following up on the
  

25   Chairman's -- when you're doing that, can you explain the
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 1   negatives of the transmission lines being in the location
  

 2   that you now understand they're going to be with respect
  

 3   to each of these uses?  That would be helpful.
  

 4            MR. TANNER:  Sure.  Sure.  Thank you.
  

 5            So the first phase of the -- of the residential,
  

 6   which was the single-family housing components, are
  

 7   stacked in what they call 12 rack -- it's a very dense
  

 8   type of residential development -- right up here along
  

 9   36th Street and along Park Avenue.
  

10            So having -- and then the second tier back would
  

11   be the townhomes that I was referencing.  And the third
  

12   tier back would be the apartments that were referenced.
  

13   And then, obviously, we're constructing a large central
  

14   park here.
  

15            To have the transmission mains be right
  

16   essentially in the backyards of those residential units I
  

17   think is certainly detrimental to that -- to that
  

18   resident.  And not being quite clear on what the
  

19   additional impact -- not being quite clear of what the
  

20   additional impact on the additional land that would be
  

21   needed for the poles, we're somewhat unclear at this
  

22   point.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Excuse me.
  

24            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Excuse me, sir.
  

25            Mr. Beck indicated in his testimony earlier that
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 1   they would be flexible about where they would actually
  

 2   position the structures that hold the lines.  And I don't
  

 3   know what those dimensions are, but, Mr. Beck, could you
  

 4   talk to that point a little bit on that vertical portion
  

 5   along Park?
  

 6            MR. BECK:  Member Haenichen and Committee, yes,
  

 7   TEP will work with landowners and developer relative to
  

 8   placement of poles.  Our average pole span is 750 feet.
  

 9   We do -- can go up to about 1,000 feet.  So we can adjust
  

10   placement of the poles to impact individual properties as
  

11   little as possible.  And we're willing to work with the
  

12   landowner.
  

13            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Is it possible for you to
  

14   estimate the length in feet of that blue line there on
  

15   Park?
  

16            MR. BECK:  I think Patrick can scale in on
  

17   there.
  

18            MR. TANNER:  Maybe we can just pass that down.
  

19   That's a concept that depicts the -- I'll speak into the
  

20   mic.
  

21            This is a concept brochure that depicts how the
  

22   residential development is proposed to be executed with
  

23   those residential units abutting both the 36th Street
  

24   frontage and the Park frontage.  And you can see the
  

25   impact that that could possibly have there.
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 1            I think, as you're passing that around and
  

 2   reviewing, you asked about this.  We refer to this as B4.
  

 3   This is about 38 acres.  We contemplate that that will
  

 4   likely be additional corporate office -- office park
  

 5   development and maybe not as significantly impacted by a
  

 6   line than the 36th and Park corner.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let me ask a question at this
  

 8   point following up on Mr. Haenichen's -- Member
  

 9   Haenichen's question.
  

10            I guess at the southern end of the project on
  

11   Park and moving north to 36th Street, I believe I
  

12   overheard one person in the audience say that that
  

13   distance is approximately 1,000 feet?
  

14            MR. BECK:  Patrick, have you scaled that off
  

15   there?
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let me ask Mr. Beck.  Let's just
  

17   assume for a moment that's 1,000 feet.
  

18            How many poles would you anticipate along --
  

19   assuming it's 1,000 feet, and we'll adjust that
  

20   appropriately, but did I hear you say, Mr. Beck, that you
  

21   could actually do a 1,000-foot span?
  

22            MR. BECK:  We could do up to a 1,000-foot span.
  

23   Our typical would be 750.  So it would be anywhere from
  

24   two to three poles, depending -- you might have one at
  

25   each end and one in the middle, but we could shift them.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

 2            MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Tanner, you
  

 3   weren't here when I made this comment earlier.  It's not
  

 4   just the poles.  There's a corridor, number one, that --
  

 5   150 feet off of center, I believe.
  

 6            Is that right, Mr. Beck?  Center of Park?
  

 7            MR. BECK:  Center of the alignment -- the actual
  

 8   alignment that we're showing.
  

 9            MEMBER NOLAND:  The actual alignment.  Okay.
  

10            So that goes 150 feet into this property.  When
  

11   you did your rezoning, did you not have to provide some
  

12   engineering and projected layouts of the residential
  

13   units?  Was that the plan, the bigger board that you had?
  

14            MR. TANNER:  So good question.  No, that was not
  

15   a part of the bigger board that we had.  We certainly
  

16   contemplate that there will be some utilities put
  

17   adjacent to the right-of-way or in the right-of-way that
  

18   exists today.  But we had not, in our scope, contemplated
  

19   the additional -- it sounds like the additional amount of
  

20   area that might be required here.
  

21            MEMBER NOLAND:  So, Mr. Tanner, what did you
  

22   have to present layout-wise to the city council to get
  

23   your zoning approved?
  

24            MR. TANNER:  So those are concept plans, not
  

25   full-blown development plans.  We have submitted our
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 1   development plan for the GEICO portion, but that doesn't
  

 2   really address the issue that I'm sharing some
  

 3   sensitivity to with the residential unit or the urban
  

 4   residential development.  And so we have not formally
  

 5   submitted that yet.  We have been working with the civil
  

 6   engineer and the home builder to understand exactly the
  

 7   lots and how those lay out.
  

 8            So I appreciate your question.
  

 9            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

10            MR. TANNER:  So I appreciate the opportunity to
  

11   share our concern about Alternative Route 1, and yet it's
  

12   important to us to share our appreciation to the
  

13   Commission and for TEP's efforts to move forward and try
  

14   to strengthen and enhance this area.
  

15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, thank you, Mr. Tanner.  And
  

16   you don't know it, but you've just added to Ms. Darling's
  

17   burden tonight on how she's going to depict that on the
  

18   map tomorrow.
  

19            MR. TANNER:  Sorry about that.
  

20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you for that.  Very
  

21   helpful.
  

22            All right.  Do we have any other public speakers
  

23   this evening?
  

24            MR. WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the
  

25   Committee.  My name is Bruce Wright.  I'm the associate
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 1   vice president for Tech Parks at the University of
  

 2   Arizona here on behalf of the University of Arizona and
  

 3   also on behalf of the Bridges Property Owners
  

 4   Association.
  

 5            I would like to join with Mr. Tanner in thanking
  

 6   TEP for trying to address the need for additional
  

 7   electrical infrastructure in this area.  This is an area
  

 8   that is badly in need of modernization.  The surrounding
  

 9   neighborhoods and businesses have suffered from
  

10   reliability issues for a number of years.
  

11            The University is not a disinterested party
  

12   because we operate the Kino Community Hospital to the
  

13   southeast of this site, and we've had some issues with
  

14   respect to electrical reliability as well.
  

15            So we think that the proposed transmission line
  

16   and substation will help to modernize the system and
  

17   greatly address that issue.
  

18            Secondly, we understand that this is part of a
  

19   phased approach to infrastructure improvements for the
  

20   core portion of Tucson and will impact the ability of TEP
  

21   to align and respond to electrical needs to the north all
  

22   the way up to the main campus of the University.  The
  

23   University is adding additional buildings along with some
  

24   new student housing projects, which is going to create
  

25   additional demand for electrical service.  And we think
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 1   it's important as the major employer and as one of the
  

 2   three state universities that we have a reliable source
  

 3   of power to the main campus.
  

 4            But I'm here to direct my attention primarily to
  

 5   the Bridges.  The University is one of the three property
  

 6   owners at the Bridges.  We own the 65 acres at the corner
  

 7   of 36th and Kino Parkway all the way down to Tucson
  

 8   Marketplace Drive.
  

 9            And if I have the thing, I could show you what
  

10   that property is.
  

11            MS. DARLING:  Here you go.
  

12            MR. WRIGHT:  So our 65-acre parcel is this land
  

13   here bound by 36th, Kino Parkway, Tucson Marketplace
  

14   Drive, and MLK Way.  The University has been working to
  

15   develop this property for nearly 12 years.  We sort of
  

16   had a setback with the recession.  And now, with the
  

17   economy picking back up and with the new president at the
  

18   University Arizona, we're ready to move forward with
  

19   vertical development on the site.  And to meet that, to
  

20   be able to move forward, we need, obviously, electrical
  

21   service, and these improvements are very much important.
  

22            Our initial development will happen on a 20-acre
  

23   parcel, which represents these three parcels.  The first
  

24   is 300,000 square feet of office and lab buildings, which
  

25   we are currently planning for and would be constructed
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 1   within the next 24 months.
  

 2            An additional 150,000-square-foot applied
  

 3   research building for the University is also in the
  

 4   planning phase.  And we will be in the process through a
  

 5   private developer of soliciting a hotel property right at
  

 6   this corner.
  

 7            In addition, we're opening up the balance of the
  

 8   site for other development that could present itself over
  

 9   the course of the next several years.
  

10            The outset of our initial development is within
  

11   the next 24 to 36 months, so we'll be bringing those
  

12   buildings on line.
  

13            So these improvements are critically important.
  

14            We were very involved in the effort to try to
  

15   find a logical location for the substation, which is
  

16   proposed for right here.  We think this represents a
  

17   great compromise and outcome for the community.  We work
  

18   with the Neighborhood Association, the City and the
  

19   County, and the Property Owners Association with the idea
  

20   of providing the substation as close to the Bridges, but
  

21   also serving the needs of TEP and minimizing the impact
  

22   on the surrounding community.
  

23            And one of the side benefits from that is that
  

24   siting it there will also result in a collaborative
  

25   effort to develop this new County park, which we think
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 1   will be a huge community benefit.
  

 2            So our preferred route -- and I was not here
  

 3   earlier, so I'm not sure I have this right, is the lime
  

 4   green or I guess the B Route, which we think will have
  

 5   the minimal impact on our property as well as the
  

 6   surrounding community.
  

 7            The 150-foot corridor, as I understand it, would
  

 8   have a very significant impact on the development of this
  

 9   area and our park and would severely constrict or
  

10   restrain our ability to do planned development.  Of
  

11   course, when we did our development plans, we did not
  

12   have the transmission line, the corridor in line because
  

13   we were unaware that that would be the alignment for it.
  

14            And with that, I'd be happy to answer any
  

15   questions.
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

17            MEMBER WOODALL:  You appear to be very
  

18   supportive of the concept of the project, which would
  

19   directly benefit that particular property; correct?
  

20            MR. WRIGHT:  That's correct.
  

21            MEMBER WOODALL:  And yet you object to that
  

22   land, that property, being burdened with the
  

23   infrastructure that is necessary for it to serve your
  

24   property.  Can you explain your rationale for that?
  

25            MR. WRIGHT:  Well, I think I'm voicing our
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 1   preferred route.  Given the need and the urgency of doing
  

 2   these improvements, we would support any of the three
  

 3   routes if necessary.  But our preferred route would be as
  

 4   I stated.  And because, one, it would, I think, impact
  

 5   the community less in general and also would impact our
  

 6   property the least.
  

 7            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you for your candid
  

 8   response, sir.  I very much appreciate it.
  

 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Haenichen.
  

10            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Frankly, I can't see how
  

11   that -- that rationale.  If seems to me that neither of
  

12   those lines would affect your particular property.
  

13            MR. WRIGHT:  Well, as I understand it, the lines
  

14   would come down to the substation right here, and this is
  

15   our property right here.  So our ability to develop these
  

16   parcels right here would be constrained or impacted by
  

17   the transmission line, sir.
  

18            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Only on the very north part.
  

19            MR. WRIGHT:  That is correct, yes.
  

20            Again, I was stating our preferred route.  And I
  

21   would say that we would urge the Commission to approve
  

22   this project along one of the three routes.
  

23            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Thank you.
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Any further questions?
  

25            (No response.)
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.  Thank you, sir.
  

 2            MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you.
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  We appreciate your comments.
  

 4            Yes, Mr. Tanner.
  

 5            MR. TANNER:  Yes, thank you.  I just wanted to
  

 6   share -- and I echo Bruce's comments, last comment,
  

 7   certainly this needs to happen.  So thank you for
  

 8   everybody's diligence in trying to see through.
  

 9            If Alternative A was determined that that is by
  

10   far the best route, I would ask that maybe the Commission
  

11   consider the west side of the -- west side of Park,
  

12   potentially, for that, for the line, and potentially the
  

13   north side of 36th Street.  But if that -- if
  

14   Alternative A is strongly the favorite, I would just ask
  

15   that consideration, if possible.
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Haenichen.
  

17            MEMBER HAENICHEN:  Mr. Beck, could you respond
  

18   to that?  Could it go on the north and west sides of
  

19   those two roads?
  

20            MR. BECK:  Member Haenichen, I believe on the
  

21   west side of the Park, we may be able to do that.  I
  

22   think it may be more problematic along 36th, but it's
  

23   something we definitely would take a close look at.  And
  

24   we may be able to have an answer for you tomorrow
  

25   afternoon how technically feasible it is.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

 2            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

 3            Mr. Beck, I've got a question.  You're
  

 4   ultimately going to get down to the 100-foot
  

 5   right-of-way, is that correct, for the line?
  

 6            MR. BECK:  Wherever we have private easement,
  

 7   that is correct.
  

 8            MEMBER NOLAND:  Could you take your corridor
  

 9   down to 100 feet along those areas rather than 150?
  

10            MR. BECK:  Well, we are asking for 300, 150 on
  

11   either side.
  

12            MEMBER NOLAND:  Right.
  

13            MR. BECK:  If absolutely needed, we could go
  

14   down to 100.  As a commitment, our preference would be to
  

15   at least have something in the range of 200 to give us a
  

16   little flexibility.  But the intent would not be to move
  

17   way back into private property anyway.  So we would stay
  

18   as close to the roadway as we could.
  

19            MEMBER NOLAND:  Well, that would just really
  

20   encourage you to stay way closer to the roadway, not
  

21   impacting private property.
  

22            I have to say, TEP has always been good about
  

23   how big a corridor they ask for or right-of-way, much
  

24   better than any of the other utilities that we deal with.
  

25   Usually, you need more flexibility when you've got a
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 1   rougher terrain or a lot of landowners.  That doesn't
  

 2   seem to be the issue here.  It seems that you have
  

 3   maybe -- well, I don't know, three or four or five.  But
  

 4   that's something to consider and think about and maybe
  

 5   give back some input tomorrow.
  

 6            MR. BECK:  Yes, Member Noland.  We can respond
  

 7   tomorrow.
  

 8            MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.
  

 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

10            MEMBER WOODALL:  Mr. Beck, I was just wondering,
  

11   perhaps you could have meaningful interface with the two
  

12   representatives of the development project prior to
  

13   tomorrow so we could get a little more sense of how
  

14   comfortable they are with your suggestions.
  

15            MR. BECK:  Absolutely.
  

16            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you.
  

17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Noland.
  

18            MEMBER NOLAND:  You might also -- I'd like you
  

19   to share that slide with them that showed the corridor
  

20   and how you projected it on that property and on the
  

21   north side.  Oh, it was on the flyover.  I think that's
  

22   where you see the most impact.  And I think it would give
  

23   them a much better idea visually of what we're taking
  

24   about.
  

25            MR. BECK:  Yes.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  All good comments.
  

 2            Are there any -- okay.  Any further comments
  

 3   from the two gentlemen who have spoken?
  

 4            (No response.)
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  There are other people here.  We
  

 6   started a little early on the public comment phase
  

 7   because we concluded the hearing this afternoon about
  

 8   5:15 or so.
  

 9            So maybe the correct thing to do would be to
  

10   announce at this point, even though it's little past
  

11   5:30, that this is the time and place set for the public
  

12   hearing -- public comment portion of this hearing for
  

13   5:30 this evening and ask if there's anyone in the
  

14   audience that would like to speak about this project.
  

15            If so, if you could kindly sign your name on the
  

16   sign-in sheet and then approach the microphone and
  

17   provide your name.
  

18            And we're interested to hear what you have to
  

19   say.  This is a nonthreatening group.  We want to hear
  

20   what you have to say.
  

21            We'll have someone adjust that.
  

22            MS. TATUM:  I can reach.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  You shouldn't have to struggle to
  

24   say what you want to say.
  

25            MS. TATUM:  So I'm here representing one of the

         COASH & COASH, INC.                  (602)258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 178    VOL I    06/12/2018 214

  

 1   schools on Campbell Avenue.
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  And would you provide your name,
  

 3   please.
  

 4            MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.  I'm Takara Tatum, and I
  

 5   work at Southside Community School.
  

 6            And we just wanted to express our opinion in
  

 7   favor of Route A and not B or C since they go directly
  

 8   along our school.  Especially if the park that was
  

 9   proposed earlier is still in a plan, that would go right
  

10   along the park too, which seems like it would detract
  

11   from the purpose of putting a nice park there right next
  

12   to the school.
  

13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Ms. Tatum, if I could just, for
  

14   the benefit of the audience, make sure, I'm -- with my
  

15   fancy green laser pointer, I'm marking out where I
  

16   believe the school is located that you're a teacher at or
  

17   connected with.
  

18            MS. TATUM:  That's correct.  Yes.
  

19            CHMN. CHENAL:  And then the park area that's
  

20   described would be contiguous with the substation.
  

21   That's the area that I've outlined on the west side of
  

22   Kino Parkway.
  

23            MS. TATUM:  All right.  At earlier meetings, I
  

24   thought the park was going along Campbell and 36th on the
  

25   east side.  That's not --
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 1            MS. DARLING:  It is.  It's on the west side of
  

 2   Campbell.
  

 3            MS. TATUM:  Yeah.  But on the east side of
  

 4   that --
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think we should have the laser
  

 6   pointer to show where the park is going to be.
  

 7            MR. BECK:  Actually, Patrick, can you bring up
  

 8   that one.
  

 9            MS. TATUM:  Sorry.  My hands are shaking.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  No, don't worry about that.
  

11            MS. TATUM:  The park's right here; right?
  

12            MR. BECK:  Yes.
  

13            MS. TATUM:  Yeah.  So our school is right across
  

14   the street from that.  So our students are looking
  

15   forward to getting to use that park.  And then the power
  

16   station is at the opposite corner of the lot, correct?
  

17            MR. BECK:  Give us just a minute.  We'll have a
  

18   visual up there for you to see.
  

19            MS. TATUM:  So we just oppose it being right
  

20   along the school between us and that park.  Does that
  

21   make sense?
  

22            MS. DARLING:  Yeah.
  

23            MR. BECK:  North would be to the right.
  

24            MS. TATUM:  Yeah.  So we are currently just east
  

25   of that.  So our school would be facing that park.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  So your -- and what is your
  

 2   position at the school?
  

 3            MS. TATUM:  I am one of the teachers.
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Your preference would then be
  

 5   for Route --
  

 6            MS. TATUM.  Route A.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  As opposed to Route B or C?
  

 8            MS. TATUM:  Correct.
  

 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Are you opposed to the project
  

10   conceptually of providing a transmission line to the
  

11   substation?
  

12            MS. TATUM:  I think some of us at the school
  

13   are.  I think right now, it's probably beyond stopping
  

14   that, so I'm not here to attempt to stop your project.
  

15   I'm just here proposing you go the way that affects our
  

16   school the least.
  

17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Understood.
  

18            MS. TATUM:  That's all I have to say.  Thank
  

19   you.
  

20            CHMN. CHENAL:  And understand, it's not our
  

21   project.
  

22            MS. TATUM:  Yes.  It's TEP's.  Yes.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you, Ms. Tatum, for your
  

24   comments.
  

25            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  I do want to interject that
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 1   there's not just one school -- sorry.
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let me -- just a couple things.
  

 3            Number one, I want to make sure, Ms. Tatum, that
  

 4   you provide your contact information.
  

 5            MS. TATUM:  I did.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  You already have.
  

 7            Next, ma'am.  You have already spoken, but go
  

 8   ahead.  We'll hear what you have to say.
  

 9            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  I just wanted to clarify
  

10   that there's not just one school in that area, which is
  

11   Southside Community School, but there's actually four
  

12   additional schools in that area.
  

13            One is on Sunland, which is named Utterback
  

14   Middle School.
  

15            Then you've got one on -- I believe two blocks
  

16   down from Southside Community School, which is called
  

17   Cavett Elementary School.
  

18            And they actually have one school that's called
  

19   YouthWorks High School.  It's actually across the street
  

20   from Southside Community School.  It's on 36th Street.
  

21            And then, a few blocks east on Plumer and 36th,
  

22   you've got another elementary school, which is Pueblo
  

23   Gardens Elementary School.
  

24            And I think I counted five thus far.  Utterback,
  

25   Cavett, Pueblo Gardens, YouthWorks, and Southside
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 1   Community School just in that close vicinity there.
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  How close a vicinity?  Where are
  

 3   those in relation to this project?
  

 4            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  They are on the east side
  

 5   of our designated proposed substation and also on the
  

 6   south side as well.
  

 7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Are those the sensitive --
  

 8            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  There are about five flags
  

 9   signifying schools.
  

10            CHMN. CHENAL:  Can I ask the applicant to throw
  

11   up the now infamous sensitive receptor slide.
  

12            Before you speak, let's get to the slide up here
  

13   which may depict the location of these schools.
  

14            All right.  So, for the benefit of the Committee
  

15   and the audience, we have a slide that's the sensitive
  

16   receptor slide, which depicts the location of the
  

17   substation, and there are a number of schools.
  

18            And, ma'am, you've just referred to, I think,
  

19   five schools.
  

20            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  This is Southside Community
  

21   School.
  

22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Which is the one -- okay.  Just
  

23   due east of the -- on the corner of Kino and 36th.  Okay.
  

24            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  Across the street is
  

25   YouthWorks High School.  YouthWorks High School.
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 1            This is Pueblo Gardens Elementary School.
  

 2            This is Cavett Elementary School.
  

 3            And Utterback Middle School.
  

 4            I think I've got five there.  I just wanted to
  

 5   clarify that for the Members.  Thank you.
  

 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you very much.
  

 7            All right.  We're interested in what people have
  

 8   to say.  If you would please make sure you provide your
  

 9   contact information and then approach the microphone and
  

10   provide your name, and we're interested to hear what you
  

11   have to say.
  

12            Yes, Member Drago.
  

13            MEMBER DRAGO:  Mr. Chairman, shouldn't we get
  

14   her name again?  I know we heard her name, but for the
  

15   sake of the script, we will not realize who spoke.
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.
  

17            Ma'am, if you would please approach and provide
  

18   your name for the court reporter.
  

19            MS. CAÑEZ-ANDERSON:  I'm sorry if I didn't
  

20   provide my name.  Deonissa Cañez-Anderson.
  

21            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.
  

22            All right.  We had someone provide some contact
  

23   information.  If you'd approach the microphone and
  

24   provide your comments, we would very much appreciate it.
  

25   Don't be nervous.
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 1            MS. BARBIZON:  My name is Angelica Barbizon.  I
  

 2   put my contact information there.  I'm a teacher at
  

 3   Southside Community School as well.  That's the school
  

 4   right on the corner there of the four-way where -- the
  

 5   end of basically the yellow route right there.
  

 6            So I am a teacher there.  My daughter is --
  

 7   well, all my four daughters are students at this school.
  

 8   My eldest daughter is a brain tumor patient.  And she has
  

 9   had a brain tumor for two yours, has had surgery and
  

10   radiation treatments, 30 treatments of radiation, in
  

11   2016.
  

12            My main concern was hearing that there was a
  

13   possibility of the transmission lines being -- directly
  

14   crossing on the opposite side of the street in front of
  

15   the school going to that substation that's going to be
  

16   basically the next block over to the school.
  

17            I understand that the substation's location has
  

18   been determined and what's being decided now is the
  

19   route.  Obviously, I am opposed to that route directly in
  

20   front of the school passing through the Las Vistas
  

21   neighborhood.  There are way too many neighborhood --
  

22   houses in that area.  Besides just the factor of the
  

23   school, but all of the houses that are right in that
  

24   little area there.
  

25            I'm speaking for, like I said, that community.
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 1   The transmission lines, as far as research goes, do omit
  

 2   the EMF.  Most of it is during times where it's high
  

 3   usage, which is daytime where the children would be in
  

 4   school there, which is my biggest concern.  So I'm here
  

 5   for my children, especially for my daughter and stating
  

 6   that we are opposed to that.
  

 7            I would most likely have to move her schools
  

 8   because I've gone through a great deal of effort to keep
  

 9   her away from as many contaminants and health hazards as
  

10   I can.  I give her a very strict diet, and she's still
  

11   taking hormone replacement for her -- for the rest of her
  

12   life.
  

13            So her immunity is at risk with anything that's
  

14   outside factors.  She can no longer take any amount of
  

15   radiation.  For the rest of her life, she's gotten the
  

16   max dose of radiation.  So that's basically what I wanted
  

17   to say today.
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, thank you.  Our thoughts
  

19   and prayers are with you and your daughter.
  

20            MS. BARBIZON:  Thank you.
  

21            CHMN. CHENAL:  I might ask Tucson Electric Power
  

22   to maybe consider a little outreach here to provide some
  

23   information to -- on the concerns that were raised.  Not
  

24   necessarily now, but to maybe provide some information
  

25   that might assist in making any decisions that need to be
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 1   made.
  

 2            MR. BECK:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We will do that.
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.
  

 4            MS. BARBIZON:  Thank you.
  

 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you, sir.  Please approach
  

 6   and state your name, and we're interested in what you
  

 7   have to say.
  

 8            MR. DAVIS:  My name is Glenn Davis, and I am a
  

 9   resident of South Park neighborhood for 60 years.  And I
  

10   basically brought a little protest.  I just want to
  

11   submit it if I could do that.
  

12            CHMN. CHENAL:  You can and you may.
  

13            I will make sure this becomes part of the
  

14   record, Mr. Davis.
  

15            Now, is your property -- could you indicate your
  

16   property, where you live, sir?  There's a laser pointer.
  

17            MR. DAVIS:  Just near 22nd and Campbell.
  

18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, it would be helpful if
  

19   you could just show me.
  

20            MR. DAVIS:  I couldn't distinguish it from what
  

21   you have there anyway.
  

22            MR. BECK:  Did you say 22nd?
  

23            MR. DAVIS:  22nd and Kino.
  

24            MR. BECK:  Which would be above and off the map,
  

25   so it's north on the edge of the map.
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 1            MR. DAVIS:  And I have a property at Silver Lake
  

 2   and Kino and then also one near Holladay Elementary
  

 3   School.  And that's near 30 -- 33rd and Park.
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.
  

 5            MS. DARLING:  Park and 33rd is kind of on the
  

 6   edge there.  And then 22nd and Campbell would be up
  

 7   there.
  

 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  So how -- a mile away?  Half a
  

 9   mile away from the proposed substation?  I'm trying to
  

10   figure out, basically, the distance of your property.
  

11            MR. DAVIS:  I'm not quite sure how far it is,
  

12   but from the meetings that I have attended, there appears
  

13   to not be enough information once the substation is there
  

14   at Park and 36th Street, and also -- because that's
  

15   supposed to be a natural habitat.  And so I oppose the
  

16   changes at this time.
  

17            And so they haven't provided the information.
  

18   What I oppose is why would they put the sation there and
  

19   leave us to where whatever happens afterward, nothing can
  

20   be said.  They haven't considered the transmission route
  

21   going north.
  

22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Sir, do you have a preference or
  

23   a comment on the three routes that are proposed for the
  

24   transmission lines?
  

25            MR. DAVIS:  That's to get there.  But I'm not in
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 1   agreement to it even going there.
  

 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  But that's not necessarily
  

 3   our jurisdiction as to whether or not there should be a
  

 4   substation.  Ours is the route of the transmission line.
  

 5            MR. DAVIS:  Well, once it's there, then we won't
  

 6   have this conversation again because then it will be a
  

 7   must to where the lines are transmitted from there,
  

 8   doesn't give us the opportunity to have a say about it
  

 9   one way or the other once you place that substation
  

10   there.
  

11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, what our hearing is -- this
  

12   hearing is to consider whether or not to approve power
  

13   lines from this area to this area and whether it's that
  

14   route, that route, or that route.
  

15            So we're not here to consider whether or not the
  

16   substation should be put in place.  Our only decision is
  

17   whether to approve transmission lines and which route
  

18   those lines should follow and only those transmission
  

19   lines.
  

20            MR. DAVIS:  To get to --
  

21            CHMN. CHENAL:  From --
  

22            MR. DAVIS:  To get to final destination from
  

23   what you're speaking about to where?
  

24            CHMN. CHENAL:  From Irvington Campus -- if I'm
  

25   correct if this is the area -- to the Kino Substation.
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 1            MR. DAVIS:  And I oppose that also because that
  

 2   was designated as a natural habitat.  And there hasn't
  

 3   been any environmental impact studies or anything or how
  

 4   it would impact the community or anything of that nature.
  

 5   And just because it's a low-income minority neighborhood,
  

 6   it just don't mean that you can just put that there.
  

 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

 8            Member Woodall --
  

 9            I'm sorry.  If you have something else to say.
  

10            MR. DAVIS:  All companies back that up and while
  

11   justice has not been considered in this situation, there
  

12   are several things that have not taken place.  The
  

13   accounting to borrow money, which was designated for a
  

14   certain purpose, and that purpose has not been met if
  

15   this happens.
  

16            CHMN. CHENAL:  I just will point out that there
  

17   has been an application filed, a very extensive
  

18   application, that does address some of the issues that
  

19   you've just raised.  So you might look at that, and you
  

20   might get some answers to some of your questions.  I'm
  

21   not saying you will, but some of those issues have been
  

22   addressed in the comprehensive application that's been
  

23   filed by the applicant.  And that's pursuant to state
  

24   law.  They have to file an application that addresses
  

25   aspects certain of the issues you just raised.
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 1            MR. DAVIS:  Well, that would be with TEP.  But
  

 2   the County has not come forward and addressed this issue
  

 3   through the people in my community.
  

 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Member Woodall.
  

 5            MEMBER WOODALL:  Sir, I wasn't clear, and I
  

 6   apologize.  Are you concerned because once that Kino
  

 7   Substation is in there, you think lines are going to be
  

 8   running north?  Is that what you're concerned about?
  

 9            MR. DAVIS:  Oh, I'm sure they're going to be
  

10   running north.  We don't need the power over there.
  

11   They're not going to replace anything up there or
  

12   anything in our neighborhood.
  

13            MEMBER WOODALL:  So I was trying to figure out
  

14   if you objected to the substation because you thought at
  

15   some point in the future, transmission lines would be
  

16   going through your community from that substation.  And
  

17   that's not your concern?
  

18            MR. DAVIS:  Not only that, the property is
  

19   designated for another purpose.  And that is not the
  

20   purpose that it was designated for.
  

21            MEMBER WOODALL:  Thank you, sir.
  

22            MR. DAVIS:  Thank you.
  

23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Are there other -- thank
  

24   you, sir.
  

25            Are there other people who would like to comment
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 1   this evening?
  

 2            (No response.)
  

 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Going once, going twice, done.
  

 4            Okay.  I will ask the court reporter -- we'll
  

 5   have this marked as Chairman's Exhibit 2 for the record,
  

 6   just to make sure it's in the record, Mr. Davis's
  

 7   comments.
  

 8            And are there any other matters that we should
  

 9   raise as a Committee before we adjourn this evening?
  

10            (No response.)
  

11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Anything the applicant has to --
  

12   thinks we should address?
  

13            MR. DERSTINE:  No.
  

14            CHMN. CHENAL:  So tomorrow morning at 9 a.m.,
  

15   we'll meet here.  We'll make a short statement on the
  

16   record, and then we'll begin the tour.
  

17            And this meeting is adjourned for this evening.
  

18            Thank you for the folks that showed up tonight
  

19   to give your public comments.  It's very much
  

20   appreciated.
  

21            (The hearing recessed at 5:57 p.m.)
  

22
  

23
  

24
  

25
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